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Financial Highlights

MAFE 2

Statement of Profit or Loss and BRMEMEEBAR Year ended 31 December
Other Comprehensive Income HE+-A=+—HLEFE
RMB million
ARBEETT
2021 2020 Changes
Continuing R e —EEF b=l
Revenue W e 270.5 361.9 (25.3%)
Gross profit EF] 66.7 112.4 (40.7%)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BB &5F) (246.3) 71.1 (446.4%)
(Loss)/profit attributable to shareholders — Z</A 5] i& 58 FE (S
of the Company (#518) mF) (245.3) 72.7 (437.4%)
Basic =N
— For profit for the year —FEmA RMBAR (335 cents? ~ RVBARH9.9 cents? (438.4%)
Dividend per share (HK cents) FREE GBI
—interim — A 1.0 1.5
~final —KHA 0.0 2.0
- combined ) 1.0 3.5
31 December
Statement of financial position AR +Z-A=+—H
RMB million
ARBEEET
2021 2020 Changes
—E-—§ —EEF =)
Non-current assets ERENEE 900.7 1,017.4 (11.5%)
Current assets MENEE 653.9 764.6 (14.5%)
Current liabilities mENEE (203.7) (205.0) 0.6%
Net current assets MENEEFRE 450.2 559.6 (19.5%)
Non-current liabilities EREIEE (185.8) (146.8) 26.6%
Net assets FEE 1,165.1 1,430.2 (18.5%)
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Yongsheng Advanced
Materials Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group” or “Yongsheng Advanced Materials”), | am
pleased to present the Group’s annual results report for the year ended
31 December 2021 (the “Year under Review”).

During the Year under Review, the Group maintained its strategy of
diversifying its development in its main business of dyeing and processing
of differentiated polyester filament fabric which continued to generate
revenue for the Group. Following the completion of the construction and
the interior decoration of Yongsheng Plaza, the properties investment
sector of the Group has also generated stable rental income. In addition,
the Group actively explored resources recycling and environmental
protection projects to look for potential development opportunities during
the Year under Review.

Chairman’s Statement
FERS

Li Cheng ZE3H
Chairman and Executive Director
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

2021 is the first year of China’s 14th Five-Year Plan period, and high-
quality development of the textile industry has become the main theme of
the current industrial development. In the first half of 2021, as the epidemic
in the Western countries was brought under control, China’s textile
industry continued its demand growth momentum, and the industry’s
prosperity rebounded significantly. In 2022, the foundation of China’s
long-term macroeconomic improvement will remain unchanged, domestic
macroeconomic policies will focus more on stabilizing the growth
and the textile industry will adhere to the general keynote of seeking
progress while maintaining stability. As a model leader in the industry,
the Group is competitive by owning the relevant dyeing technology and
environmental protection equipment, as well as new and differentiated
industry benchmark products. Under the changing business environment,
the Group will focus on internal optimisation and active research and
development to enhance its overall competitiveness, and to further expand
its industrial presence.

In 2021, although some of the Group’s renovation, maintenance, alteration
and addition services (“RMAA”) projects were cancelled or postponed due
to the recurring COVID-19 epidemic in Hong Kong and relevant extended
economic impacts, the government’s various mandatory inspection
requirements for aged buildings (such as the Mandatory Building
Inspection Scheme) and the renewal and redevelopment direction for aged
buildings remained unchanged. Despite of the temporary adverse impact
on the demand of the Group’s RMAA projects in Hong Kong as a result of
the outbreak of COVID-19, the management of the Company is optimistic
that there is still a long term demand for RMAA projects in Hong Kong. In
early 2022, the fifth wave of the epidemic broke out in Hong Kong. The
Group is actively cooperating with the anti-epidemic policy implemented
by the Hong Kong SAR Government to stop the spread of the epidemic.
After the epidemic is under control and the anti-social distancing measures
in Hong Kong being lifted by the Hong Kong SAR Government, the Group
will recapture the development opportunities in the industry and continue
to develop its RMAA projects in Hong Kong in a stable manner.

The Group’s Yongsheng Plaza, located in Xiaoshan Economic and
Technological Development Zone, Hangzhou, was put into trial operation
during the Year under Review. Since completion of construction of
Yongsheng Plaza, it has become one of the symbolic buildings in Xiaoshan
or even Hangzhou. The Group’s headquarters has also been relocated to
Yongsheng Plaza, and most floors have completed investment promotion
and have been put into use. The urbanization and development process
in the PRC are expected to be further enhanced in the future, and there
will be a positive outlook and development in Hangzhou, which in turn will
drive the demand in residential or commercial properties in such region.
The investment properties held by the Group will diversify the Group’s
income sources in the long run, which is beneficial to the long-term
investment and sustainable development of the Group as a whole.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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As an enterprise which highly values social responsibility, the Group
is also actively expanding its renewable resources and environmental
protection business, while strictly controlling its main dyeing and finishing
business to meet the environmental standards, so as to diversify its
revenue sources from businesses with long-term development. In
2021, the Group continued to explore the strong demand for improved
municipal infrastructure in Southeast Asia brought by the Belt and Road
Initiative, and actively explored the water market in Southeast Asia.
In addition, the Group also expanded its business to various fields of
domestic environmental protection-related industries. During the Year
under Review, the Group acquired two parcels of land in Ma’anshan City,
Anhui Province through the judicial auction procedures to promote the
business opportunities of local solid waste disposal, and invested in new
construction materials projects with joint venture partners. In the future,
based on the national strategic policy and the Group’s strong financial
resources, the Group will continue to achieve a “two-pronged approach”
in its domestic and overseas environmental protection businesses. In
particular, domestically within the PRC, the Group will actively explore
different opportunities in the solid waste treatment industry, green energy
development and circular economy development model; for overseas,
the Group will grasp opportunities of working on projects with municipal
infrastructure industry that has rigid demand and sound cash flow, in
particular in developing water market in Southeast Asian with a focus on
water supply and wastewater treatment.

At the beginning of 2022, given that the spread of the epidemic in
Hong Kong continued to affect the prospects of the RMAA business,
and the domestic property prices were still under pressure from the
sluggish real estate market in the PRC, the Board decided to adopt a
more conservative and prudent accounting estimate to carry out an
impairment provision for the goodwill and intangible assets, a fair value
loss on investment properties, so as to reflect the possible continuing
impact of the macro economy. Excluding the abovementioned
impairment and the fair value loss, the Group still recorded an adjusted
profit attributable to shareholders of approximately RMB11.1 million in
2021, and the Group’s finances remained healthy with sufficient cash
flow to meet the sustainable development of its business. In 2022, we
will continue to actively seize opportunities in different industries, with
a view to diversifying business types and investing more in sustainable
development. Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
heartfelt gratitude to the management, all employees, Shareholders and
business partners for their continuous support and trust.

Li Cheng
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Business Review

E 00

MARKET REVIEW

In 2021, the textile industry faced challenges such as global supply
chain disruptions and raw materials shortages amidst the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic. However, there has been a rebound of global
consumer demand as the COVID-19 pandemic was relatively contained
as a result of the implementation of various preventive and control
measures and the economic stabilisation policies. Despite of repeated
outbreaks of COVID-19 in Southeast Asia and other regions, textile and
apparel exports of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) reached
record high during the Year. According to the statistics issued by the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the PRC, textile and
apparel exports reached approximately US$315.5 billion, representing
an increase of approximately 8.4% year on year. According to a survey
conducted by China National Textile and Apparel Council, the Textile
Industry Climate Index remained in the expansion range of above 50
points in all the four quarters of 2021. Driven by factors such as the
continued recovery of the consumer market and the easing of electricity
rationing and production restrictions, the Climate Index increased by
3.6 points to 62.3 points in the fourth quarter of 2021, reflecting the
resumption of a stable production and sales situation as well as the
continued growth. In terms of textile manufacturing, as the continuous
recovery of the economy development has driven consumption potential,
there has been rebound of orders and the high capacity utilisation in the
textile industry as well as the fast pace of production. Thus, the Group’s
dyeing and finishing business basically returned to its pre-epidemic
normal level with full production capacity during the Year. However,
Hong Kong was still in the midst of COVID-19 pandemic during the
Year, and most of the building renovation and reconstruction projects
have been postponed due to the government’s implementation of
strict COVID-19 pandemic prevention and control measures, causing
an overall depression in the RMAA (as defined below) market of Hong
Kong. Affected by the PRC government’s tightening of credit policies
and the regulations of real estate companies, the domestic real estate
market of the PRC has cooled down. According to the National Bureau
of Statistics of the PRC, the national housing prices have continued the
overall downward trend since August 2021 and it is expected to continue
until the end of 2022. The Group will prudently assess the impact of the
external environment and relevant policies on its business and maintain
its business stability under the volatile environment by leveraging on its
own excellent textile technology and high-quality products, as well as its
diversified business segments.

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The Group is principally engaged in: (1) dyeing and processing of
differentiated polyester filament fabric; (2) provision of renovation,
maintenance, alteration and addition services (‘RMAA Service”); (3)
properties investment; and (4) environmental water project operation.
The Group is committed to enhancing technical capacities in dyeing and
processing of differentiated polyester filament fabric, moving towards
the high-value-added market and identifying the market trend to satisfy
customers’ demand on products, thereby creating stable investment
value for the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”).

During the Year under Review, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately RMB270.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 25.3%, as compared to approximately RMB361.9
million in 2020. The gross profit was approximately RMB66.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 40.7%, as compared to
approximately RMB112.4 million in 2020. The gross profit margin
decreased to approximately 24.6% during the Year under Review from
approximately 31.0% in 2020, which was mainly due to the significant
increase in the price of raw materials of certain business which makes it
difficult to transfer such costs increment to customers in the short term.
Due to the rapid deterioration of the business environment of RMAA in
Hong Kong and domestic properties of the PRC, the performance of
the RMAA Service deviated from the management’s prior profit forecast.
After prudent consideration, the Group has made an impairment
provision of RMB151.8 million for the goodwill and intangible assets
during the Year under Review. In addition, the fair value of investment
properties decreased by RMB104.7 million as a result of the decline in
properties demand and market rental. Therefore, the Group recorded
a loss attributable to Shareholders of approximately RMB245.3 million
(2020: profit of approximately RMB72.7 million) and an associated
loss per share was RMB33.5 cents (2020: earnings per share RMB9.9
cents). In 2021, the adjusted profit attributable to Shareholders was
approximately RMB11.1 million after excluding the aforesaid impairment
and decrease in fair value.

During the Year under Review, the revenue derived from dyeing and
processing of differentiated polyester filament fabric, provision of
RMAA Service, properties investment and environmental water project
operation accounted for approximately 74.1%, 23.8%, 2.1% and 0%
of the turnover of the Group, respectively; while the operating profit
of such four business segments was approximately RMB43.2 million,
RMB(12.9) million, RMB(0.9) million and RMB(5.2) million, respectively,
after excluding the aforesaid impairment and decrease in fair value.

Business Review
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Business Review
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Dyeing and processing of differentiated polyester
filament fabric

Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Dyeing and Finishing Co. Limited
(“Yongsheng Dyeing”), a subsidiary of the Company, located in
Hangzhou, is principally engaged in polyester filament fabric dyeing
and processing and has been certified as a High and New Technology
Enterprise by the PRC government and is further recognised as a
Provincial Level Research and Development Center.

In 2021, global economy and consumption expedited their recovery,
whilst the PRC domestic textile market continued to recover. However,
the severe outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in Southeast Asia led to a
lower operation rate, and thus lowered the ability to support their own
industrial chains. Nevertheless, China’s productivity remained stable due
to the implementation of proactive COVID-19 pandemic preventive and
control measures by the Chinese government, leading to a rebound in
overseas orders and therefore driving the continuous growing demand for
domestic textile products during the Year under Review. During the Year
under Review, this segment of the Group recovered from adverse impact
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic in previous year, and resumed to
normal operation, and processed orders for dyeing processing at full
capacity. The segment revenue was approximately RMB200.3 million for
the Year under Review, representing an increase of approximately 14.1%
as compared to approximately RMB175.6 million in 2020. During the
Year under Review, since raw material prices continued to rise, the Group
made every effort to pass on the costs to customers for the purpose of
maintaining a stable gross profit margin, as evidenced by a slight drop
from 36.0% in 2020 to 34.0% in 2021. During the Year under Review, the
Group acquired six new patents, three of which are patents for invention,
together with more than 30 authorised patents and utility model patents,
marking the continuous innovation in dyeing and processing technology.
The Group continues to develop new products and new series of fabric.
During the Year under Review, the Group increased investments in the
research and development of products such as microfiber double-sided
velvet, spandex-free elastic fabric and double-sided microfiber sea-island
fiber fabric.
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Provision of RMAA Service

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of two categories of
RMAA Service in Hong Kong, namely (1) renovation and maintenance
works; and (2) alteration and additional works and fitting-out works. The
Group has obtained ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 certifications in quality
and environment management and has extensive experience in building
maintenance, renovation, waterproofing, additions, alterations and
building improvement in the sector of RMAA and fitting-out works in
Hong Kong. The resurgence of the COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong
in 2021 resulted in the postponement of redevelopment projects and
building rehabilitation projects due to safety concerns and manpower
shortage, and even cancellation of some projects. Coupled with the rise
in construction costs, the financial performance of this segment was
adversely affected during the Year under Review. During the Year under
Review, the Group recorded segment revenue of approximately RMB64.3
million, declined by approximately 65.3% as compared to approximately
RMB185.1 million in 2020. The Group had approximately 37 projects on
hand with a total contract sum of approximately HK$176.5 million.

Properties investment
The property assets held by the Group include:

(1) Yongsheng Plaza located at Xiaoshan Economic and Technological
Development Zone, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC.
Located in the new urban construction center of Hangzhou,
Yongsheng Plaza has a superior location with an aggregate gross
floor area of approximately 64,547.20 square meters with 24
storeys above the ground and 3 storeys under the ground. During
the Year under Review, most of the construction of Yongsheng
Plaza was completed, where only part of the interior decoration
remained to be completed and the investment promotion was
undergoing. During the Year under Review, lease agreements for
most of the office floors were signed and the stores have been
leased and started operations, which have started to generate
revenue for the Group. With implementation of tightening property
policies in China and the general economic downturn, the rentals of
retail and office in PRC continue to be under downward pressure.
Therefore, the Group has recorded an impairment of RMB104.7
million on the fair value of investment properties.
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(2)  eight office units for commercial uses in a building located in
Xiaoshan Economic and Technological Development Zone,
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, with an aggregate
gross floor area of approximately 2,648.78 square meters. All
the office units have been leased out and will bring a stable and
sustainable income for the Group, generating a rental income of
approximately RMB1.92 million during the Year under Review.
Xiaoshan District is a key development area in Zhejiang Province
and the Group is optimistic about its development prospect,
which is conducive to the Group’s asset structure and sustainable
development in the long term.

Environmental water project operation

As China has attached great importance to the protection of ecological
environment in recent years, a series of policies and plans including
those of “Carbon Neutral and Carbon Peaking” were issued by the
relevant departments. China has maintained a growth momentum in its
environmental protection industry, as driven by various factors including
the increasing investment from the state and governments at all levels,
as well as a large market demand brought by industrial development.
According to the analysis and forecast of Qianzhan Industry Research
Institute* (i BE Z 2 H3EP7) , the size of output value of the energy-
saving and environmental protection industry in China is expected to
exceed RMB19 trillion in 2027. During the Year under Review, the Group,
through a joint venture, invested in Zhejiang Deqing Jiemai New Material
Company Limited* I iE/5 @ M B RAE, “Zhejiang Deqing”),
a company which is principally engaged in the production and sales
of new building materials for structural reinforcement of buildings. It is
an extension of the Group’s efforts to expand the utilisation of waste
resource, thereby forming an industry chain of construction maintenance,
construction waste treatment and production of new construction
materials of the Group. During the Year under Review, the Group
successfully won a bid to acquire two land parcels and related ancillary
facilities such as factories and office buildings in Maanshan City at a
consideration through a judicial auction process, so as to further promote
environmental related industries. Based on the government’s supportive
policy “Regulations on the Management of Construction Waste in
Maanshan City” ({558 L TR EEIIR EIEHE)) issued in April 2021,
which regulates the management of construction waste in Maanshan and
adjacent cities, the Group has been actively communicating with the local
government to obtain the necessary licenses after the acquisition of the
properties and has also applied to relevant government authorities in the
PRC for using the properties as sites for environmental related projects.
Although the overseas water projects that the Group has planned to
participate in through the joint venture have been temporarily suspended
due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the joint venture partners
of the Group in Southeast Asia have been actively pursuing the relevant
projects by commencing preliminary works and conducting feasibility
studies.
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PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2022, the rise of COVID-19 vaccination coverage
rate and the continuous recovery of global economy provide more
demand for textile industry market. However, the development of global
epidemic continues to change, coupled with multiple pressures, such
as inflation, on the economic recovery and the expected tightened
monetary policies in developed economies, which will form a constraint
in consumption and consumer confidence. In addition, the international
textile production supply chain is recovering gradually, which may lead to
adjustments in the international procurement landscape. The centralised
influx of export orders to China may also change indicating a significant
increase in uncertainty for the export conditions. Under the complicated
international economy condition, although the fundamental elements of
China’s textile are stable, it is also facing challenges, such as weaker
consumer sentiment, persistently higher raw material prices, productivity
constrained by power rationing policy and escalated Sino-US trade
dispute. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the dyeing and processing of
differentiated polyester fabrics remains to be the development priority of
the Group. The Group plans to expand its dying production capacity by
acquisition and merger, and continue to strengthen its own brand building
by intensifying technology research and development, while focusing on
developing high value orders to increase overall gross profit margin.

Affected by the recurring COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong and rising
raw materials cost, redevelopment and rehabilitation projects of certain
buildings in Hong Kong were suspended or postponed. Due to the
strictly enforced restrictions on public gatherings and social distance
control, some projects were not opened to tendering and were failed
to proceed to tender evaluation process. There was no business for
the overall RMAA market in Hong Kong in the first quarter of 2022.
The Group predicts that the epidemic in Hong Kong will take more
time to be contained, and the influence of such postponement may
last until the end of 2022. The Group has adopted several measures
to reduce costs and closely monitored the epidemic development to
develop countermeasures. On the other hand, for the Group’s properties
investment business, long-term lease agreements were successfully
signed for most floors of Yongsheng Plaza, and the tenant solicitation has
been caring out in an orderly manner. However, due to the downward
pressure on the economy, the downturn in the real estate market and the
sporadic outbreak of COVID-19 in the PRC still bring uncertainty to the
local economy, thereby the investment value of properties of the Group in
the PRC is expected to remain under pressure.
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China is vigorously promoting peak carbon dioxide emissions and
carbon neutrality to facilitate the development of environmental
protection industry. According to the Report on the Development of
China’s Environmental Protection Industry (2021) ({hEIIR 1R &= 2 2
B £ (2021))) jointly prepared by the Department of Science,
Technology, and Finance of Ministry of Ecology and Environment and
China Association of Environmental Protection Industry, the revenue of
environmental protection industry was approximately RMB1.95 trillion
in 2020, representing an increase of approximately 7.3% compared
with 2019. It is expected that the revenue of water pollution prevention
and control, solid waste disposal and recycling, and environmental
monitoring industry will exceed RMB2.58 trillion, further releasing the
market demand for environmental protection industry. In line with the
development trends of national policies, the Group actively explores
and participates in environmental protection industry projects such as
water industry, solid waste disposal and waste utilization. In addition to
developing the domestic market, the Group is also following up relevant
overseas environmental protection projects to seize the opportunities of
green industry development abroad.

Looking forward, the Group is committed to diversifying its business
operations and refining product technologies, so as to continually
optimize and satisfy customer demand, and expand its market share
in various markets. In the face of the overall market uncertainty, the
Group will leverage its accumulated experience and business strategies
featuring with flexibility and resilience to explore opportunities amidst
challenges and create long-term value for the Shareholders.
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REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT U &5 K EF
The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue and TREIAEBRCBEERNNEBN KRG XEF A
gross profit by the Group for the Year under Review: 48 -
Revenue
change between
2021 2020 2021 and 2020
—E—F —EIEHF —E—FH
RMB’000 RMB’000 bkl <3-
Revenue & AR%TT AR¥FT Bl
1. Dyeing and processing 1R2BEMNT 200,338 175,647 14.1%
2. RMAA Service 2. RMAARRFS 64,321 185,115 (65.3%)
3. Properties investment SMERKRE 5,844 1,174 397.8%
270,503 361,936 (25.3%)

Revenue of the Group in 2021 was approximately RMB270.5 million, AEBR-ZE - —FNKRRNOBARK27058E
representing a decrease of approximately 25.3% from approximately T REENHNARIES61.98 & TR/ 4925.3% °
RMB361.9 million as compared with last year. The decrease in revenue AEBENKGR R LD FEZBIN K BRMAARS I &
of the Group was mainly due to the decrease in the revenue derived from Do REBRMAARB R BN EERAZKE
the RMAA Service. The main reason of such decrease in revenue derived BEARNBECOVD-19BERE BNEREBEEKIE
from RMAA Services is the resurgence of the COVID-19 pandemic FEEBEBHEE-

in Hong Kong which resulted in the postponement of redevelopment

projects and building rehabilitation projects during the Year under Review.

Gross profit
change between

2021 2020 2021 and 2020

—E—fF 2T TEZ—FH

RMB’000 RMB’000 —ECEF

Gross profit EF AR¥TT AREFT HEF &
1. Dyeing and processing 13RERMT 68,094 63,257 7.6%
2. RMAA Service 2. RMAARR 5 (6,575) 48,080 (113.7%)
3. Properties investment SYIERE 5,152 1,036 397.3%
66,671 112,373 (40.7%)

Gross profit of the Group in 2021 was approximately RMB66.7 million, AEEBR_E-—FHNEMNNAARKB6.7TEE
representing a decrease of approximately 40.7% as compared with the 7T REFRIRA4940.7%
same last year.
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SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased by
approximately RMB1.1 million, representing an increase of approximately
74.6% as compared to that of 2020. The increase was mainly due to
the increase in marketing activities and staff costs resulted from the
completion of Yongsheng Plaza.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses is around RMB45.4 million during the Year
under Review, which represented an increase of approximately 27.8%
as compared to that of 2020. Such increase in administrative expenses
was mainly attributable to: (i) the fact that the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC were entitled to exemption of social insurance contributions
for employees during 2020 as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic,
while such exemption no longer applied and normal social insurance
contributions were restored during the Year under Review, which led
to an increase in employee remunerations; and (ii) the expansion of
environmental water project operation of the Group.

FAIR VALUE (LOSS)/GAIN ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties consist of two commercial properties
in Hangzhou, the PRC. The Group’s investment properties were revalued
on 31 December 2021 based on valuations performed by Avista
Valuation Advisory Limited (“Avista”), an independent professionally
qualified valuer, at approximately RMB674.7 million. The Group
recognised fair value loss on investment properties of approximately of
RMB104.7 million for the Year under Review. To determine the fair value
of the investment properties, the valuer adopted the generally accepted
valuation method, income approach, which takes into account the net
rental income derived from existing leases and/or receivable in the current
market with appropriate provision made for the reversionary income
potential of the leases, which is then capitalised to determine the market
value at an appropriate capitalisation rate. Where appropriate, reference
has also been made to comparable sales transactions available in the
relevant markets.
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The Fair value loss during the Year was arising from retail and office rentals
in PRC continue to be under downward pressure due to the outbreak of
Omicron, being the COVID-19 variant, the implementation of tightening
property policies in China and the general economic downturn.

As the investment properties are medium to long-term investments for
the Group to maintain a stable and recurring income for the Group, and
the fair value loss is a non-cash item, it will not have a substantive impact
on the cash flow for the Group.

The key parameters and assumptions for determination of the fair value
of investment properties are set out below:

Market rents

As mentioned in the paragraph headed “Fair value (loss)/gain
on investment properties”, impacted by the epidemic and the
downturn in economic sentiment in 2021, the confidence of
investors as a whole continued to decrease in the property market
in the PRC, resulting in an overall reduction in market demand and
a downward pressure on market rents in the region. The market
rents used in the valuation were determined by the valuer after
arm’s length assessments on the market rents of comparable
Grade A offices around the location of the properties and the
neighboring areas, which reflected the then prevailing market rents.
The range of market rents used in the valuation decreased from
RMB73 — RMB210 per square metre per month for the year ended
31 December 2020 to RMB73 — RMB190 per square metre per
month for the Year under Review.

Reversionary Yields

The Reversionary Yields used in the valuation was derived from
the valuer’s analysis on the relationship between prevailing market
rents and existing capital values of similar properties in the area.
The Reversionary Yields used in the valuation ranged from 4.0%
to 5.5%, while the capitalisation rates used in this valuation were
arrived by reference to comparable Grade A offices in Hangzhou
and taking into account the characteristics of the properties. Such
expected return reflected the quality of investments, expectations
of the likelihood of future rental growth and capital appreciation, as
well as the associated risk factors. The capitalisation rate adopted
as at 31 December 2021 was similar to that adopted as at 31
December 2020 (ranging from 4.0% to 5.5%).
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IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For the Year under Review, the Group recognised (i) the impairment
loss of intangible assets of RMAA Services Companies (as defined
below) of approximately HK$64.8 million (equivalent to RMB53.7 million);
(ii) the impairment loss of goodwill of RMAA Services Companies of
approximately HK$118.2 million (equivalent to RMB98.1 million).

Additional information in relation to the basis of the determination of the
impairment is set out below:

(i) Impairment test on intangible assets of RMAA
Services Companies

The Group acquired (“Acquisition”) 100% equity interest in
Summer Power International Inc. (“Summer Power”) on 22
February 2019 (“Acquisition Date”). Summer Power is a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, which is principally engaged in investment holdings
and holding 100% equity interests of Widely Construction &
Engineering Limited (“Widely”, together with Summer Power,
the “RMAA Services Companies”), which owns the brand of
“Widely” (“Brand”). Widely was established in 2009 and had been
operating for 12 years as of the Acquisition Date. Through the
Acquisition, the management of the Group has the intention and
ability to continue using the Brand, which can continue to bring
benefits to Widely. Thus, the Brand owned by Widely is identified
as an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life in and allocated
to the RMAA Services cash-generating units (“CGU”).

For the purpose of performing annual impairment test on Brand,
the Directors use the Relief-from-royalty method, being the
generally accepted intangible asset valuation method, to estimate
the future economic benefits that RMAA Services Companies
will save each year for owning the Brand, and discount these
benefits to its present value using a discount rate applicable to
the risks associated with realizing the benefits. The valuation
method has been applied consistently as at 31 December 2020
and 2021. Given the impact of the COVID-19 epidemic on Hong
Kong’s economy, the recoverable amount of the Brand dropped
significantly from approximately HK$103.9 million (equivalent
to RMB87.5 million) as at 31 December 2020 to approximately
HK$0.3 million (equivalent to RMBO0.3 million) as at 31 December
2021. Taking into account the above factors, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$64.8 million (equivalent to RMB53.7 miillion) was
recognised for the Year under Review.
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The following is the main parameters and assumptions are UTF&ENREBEUNR_E_—F+"B=+—
adopted in the intangible assets impairment test of the Brand, as at BENEFLEERENARANEIZ2H8ERE
31 December 2021: B

Revenue attributable to the Brand

The RMAA Services Companies conducted business
through Widely, which is a major general contractor
providing RMAA (Repair, Maintenance, Alteration, Addition)
Service for buildings in Hong Kong. Due to the outbreak
of COVID-19, the approval of engineering projects that
awarded to Widely has been delayed with no further
progress during the Year. As at 31 December 2021, the
management predicted that the outbreak of COVID-19
would have a significant impact on the business of the
RMAA Services Companies. It is expected that the approval
will be further delayed in the future until the epidemic
situation improves. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, the
total revenue of the RMAA Services Companies in 2021
decreased by approximately 65.3% as compared with
the total revenue in 2020, and it is estimated that the total
revenue in 2022 will decrease by approximately 45.9% as
compared with the total revenue in 2021.

Net royalty

The Brand royalty rate dropped from 7.6% to 0.3% due
to the decrease of profitability level of Widely. Widely’s net
royalty refers to 1/3 of 2026 forecasted EBIT margin level of
0.75%, using 0.3% of revenue as the brand’s royalty rate.

Discount rate

A pre-tax discount rate of 20.4% is adopted after
considering the Brand’s required rate of return on the basis
of the RMAA Services Companies’ weighted average cost of
capital plus 1.0% risk premium.
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Financial Review

EA3%5EIRE
(i) Goodwill impairment of RMAA Services (i) RMAARRF AT EERE
Companies

Upon completion of the Acquisition, goodwill acquired through
the Acquisition was allocated to the RMAA Services CGU.
According to the requirements of relevant accounting standards,
the Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of RMAA Services CGU. In terms of determining the value in use
of the RMAA Services CGU, the Directors apply the generally
accepted valuation method (i.e. discounted cash flow models),
which estimates the future economic benefits to be generated
by the RMAA Services CGU and discounts such benefits to their
present value at the discount rate applicable to such risks relating
to the realization of such benefits. The valuation methodology
was applied consistently as of 31 December 2020 and 2021.
Due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the global
economy, the value in use of the RMAA Services CGU decreased
from approximately HK$334.0 million (equivalent to RMB281.1
million) as at 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$0.4 million
(equivalent to RMBO0.3 million) as at 31 December 2021. Given
the above factors, a goodwill impairment loss of approximately
HK$118.2 million (equivalent to RMB98.1 million) was recognized
for the Year under Review.

Set out below is the main inputs and assumptions adopted in the
impairment test of RMAA Services CGU as at 31 December 2021:

1. Growth rate of revenue

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, as aforementioned the
approval of engineering projects awarded to Widely has
been delayed with no further progress during the Year. As
at 31 December 2021, the management predicted that
the outbreak of COVID-19 would have a significant impact
on the business of the RMAA Services Companies. It is
expected that the approval will be further delayed in the
future until the epidemic situation improves. Therefore,
the revenue of the RMAA Services Companies in 2021
decreased approximately 65.3% from that in 2020, and its
revenue in 2022 is expected to be decreased approximately
45.9% from that in 2021.
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2.  Gross profit margin

As affected by the impact of COVID-19 and the delay
in approval, budgeted revenue of the RMAA Services
Companies will demonstrate a significant decline. Although
labour costs are also expected to be controlled to reduce
expenses for the upcoming year, overall gross profit margin
of the RMAA Services Companies will remain low, remaining
in the range from 13.8% to 16.4% during the five-year
forecast period from FY2022 to FY2026.

3. Pre-tax discount rate

As of 31 December 2021, the Company adopted a pre-tax
discount rate of 22.0% for the RMAA Services CGU. The
pre-tax discount rate is determined on the basis of weighted
average cost of capital (‘“WACC”). The WACC is the average
rate of return that the Company expects to compensate
all of its various investors and the expected return on all of
the Company’s capital. Each source of capital (e.g. equity
and debt) is assigned a prescribed rate of return, which
is then weighted in proportion to the contribution of such
each source of capital to the structure of the Company.
Cost of equity is estimated using the capital asset pricing
model based on the beta coefficient of identified comparable
public companies engaged in similar businesses with RMAA
Services Companies. The pre-tax discount rate of 22.0% for
31 December 2021 increased from 18.1% for 31 December
2020 due to the decrease in expected income tax in Hong
Kong.

4. Long-term growth rate

The long-term growth rate was determined with reference to
the long-term inflation rate in the Hong Kong, in which the
RMAA Services CGU is expected to derive its revenue from
and incur operating expenses.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by approximately 305.7% to RMB7.2 million,
primarily due to the cessation of capitalisation of borrowing costs when
the Yongsheng Plaza was ready for its intended use during the Year under
Review, and the borrowing costs incurred thereafter were recognised in
the profit or loss for the Year under Review, which led to an increase in
finance cost.
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Financial Review
BA#% 1 EE

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL AND
CONTRACT ASSETS

Impairment losses on financial and contract assets decreased by
approximately 92.1% to RMBO0.8 million, primarily due to the decrease
of the balance of contract assets and trade receivables of the RMAA
Services Companies.

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

The Group recorded loss attributable to shareholders of approximately
RMB245.3 million in 2021, while the Group recorded profit attributable to
shareholders of approximately RMB72.7 million in 2020. After excluding
the abovementioned impairment and the decrease in fair value, the Group
managed to record an adjusted net profit of approximately RMB11.1
million.

EREENEERERIR

TRARGHNEERBEBERLVNNA%REARE
0.8B 8B T TEANRMAARBATIMNENEERK
8 5 I WGRIREER A

RRER (L (B548) A

AEBR-_Z - —FHRERIEHHEEOARE
2453EB MAEBRNR _ZE T FRHREBRE
EEEMOANRE72.78 8 T &30k LA FE
BEREERZ AEBRSCHEBANNARKE
MABEETe

CASH FLOWS RERE

2021 2020

T TECTE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AERETFTT

Net cash flows from operating activities RETBPIRIREREF4E 31,361 2,047
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREGTHFARESREF5E (79,364) (66,130)
Net cash flows from financing activities ME RIS IRE RS2 47,369 11,801
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRRERIAEEEY 86,551 89,718

For the Year under Review, net cash generated from operating activities
was approximately RMB31.4 million, representing a significant increase
as compared with that of 2020, mainly due to the Group asked its
customers to settle their payables to the Group mainly through cash
instead of bills receivables during the Year under the Review.

Compared with 2020, the increased cash flow used in investing activities
was approximately RMB13.2 million for the Year under Review, which
was mainly because of the investments to of environmental water-related
projects.

Increase in net cash generated from financing activities was mainly due to
the increase of bank borrowings during the Year.

== Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2021

REOEFE KEEPATREFEAR/VARE
B1A4BEBRIT R ZFRBEM - HETEZEH
REBHRAEEREBEENEREZRIBEA
REMFBRURERDAEREERENBARR

BT TRFMAL ROBEFANKRETSPIAR
TREBEMOARBI2EET HEERARK
BIRMRAKBERIES -

MERFRBEESFEAFREN DEBEANF
MERTTAERRIEM -



Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and bank balances,
including pledged deposits amounted to approximately RMB86.6 million
(81 December 2020: approximately RMB89.7 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the total bank borrowings of the Group was
approximately RMB236.6 million (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB168.3 million).

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s key financial ratio
reflecting its liquidity and gearing level, were as follows:

Financial Review
B4 #%E1EE

RBEERMBER

RZE-T—F+"RA=+—H xEENRER
R{THER (BREBEFER AR ARK866BET
(ZEBEZ2F+ZR=+—H SN ARH89.7EE
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2021 2020

—E_—F —ZTEHF

% %

Current ratio TREIELE 3.21 3.73
Debt to equity ratio BEEEREEE 0.33 0.12

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and
related hedge

The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China with most of the
transactions settled in Renminbi (‘RMB”), except for the business of
provision of RMAA Service as it is conducted in Hong Kong with the
transaction settled in Hong Kong Dollars (HKS$). The reporting currency of
the Group is RMB.

The Group is exposed to minimal foreign currency exchange risk.

The Group’s cash and bank deposits are predominantly in RMB. The
Company will pay dividends in Hong Kong Dollars if any dividends are
declared.

Employee benefits and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total workforce of 304
employees (31 December 2020: 308 employees). The employees of the
Group were remunerated based on their experience, qualifications, the
Group’s performance and the prevailing market conditions.

During the Year under Review, staff costs (including Directors’
remunerations and the salary of the employees) amounted to
approximately RMB40.4 million (31 December 2020: RMB38.0 million).
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The Group offers its staff competitive remuneration schemes. In addition,
discretionary bonuses and share options may be granted to eligible staff
based on individual’s and the Group’s performance.

The Group participated in the social insurance schemes operated by the
relevant local government authorities, which include retirement pension,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, industrial injuries insurance
and maternity insurance.

The Group emphasizes on team building and the Group’s success is
dependent on the contribution of all employees.

Significant investments held as at 31 December
2021

AEROHESTREHEAFSE M8 tbsh
FEEARBEAARFTERRRRAGERE TRM
IBTEAL R BB I 1 o

5B 2 S48 W0 T TS E B 004 5181
HRKSE %ﬁh\%%ﬁh\lﬁﬁhﬁiﬁ
R

AEFSRERERRTERNRNEBRN2ES
THER

R_EB_—F+_"A=+—HHFANE
ARE

Investment Fair value at Type of
Assets Manager Custodian amount Agreement date Year end investment
BEEEA FEA REE HEBH RERATE REHY
2021 RMB’000 RMB’000
ZEZ—F ARETT ARBTR
Minsheng Wealth Management  China Merchants Securities 24,218 24/6/2020 5,522 1
Co.,Ltd. Co., Ltd.
REMEBEBEEERAT  BEESRHERATE T E
AAZTIH
Shanghai Tiange Investment Heng Tai Securities Co., Ltd. 22,000 25/2/2021 22,509 1
Management Co.,Ltd.
PERRKREEEARRAE  1BHREFRHBRER &
—_AZ+aH
Shanghai Tiange Investment Heng Tai Securities Co., Ltd. 20,000 1/2/2021 20,610 1
Management Co.,Ltd.
PERRKREEEARRE  1BEHREFRHEBRAF —BC—F
—B—H
66,218 48,641
Note: Bzt

Type 1 investment refers to (i) money market trusts; (ii) private investment
funds; (i) money market asset management products; (iv) bond repurchase;
(v) money market funds; and (vi) bank deposits, etc..

Save as disclosed above, there were no significant investments held by
the Group as at 31 December 2021.
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Financial Review

BA#5E1RE
Details of loan receivables as at 31 December2021 WR_Z_-_—F+_H=+—B®NEWK
T
SR
Term of
Source of Guarantee/ Contract Principal Annual the loan
Borrower borrowers security date amount interest rate (month)
EE sl fEMIKIR R/ BHEE iy FHE  ERERAB)
RMB
AEE
Borrower A ™1 Introduced by controlling No pledge, 11/5/2021 50,000,000 6.0% 12
shareholder of the Company; no guarantee
Independent Third Party
BRFAWED HARBERKRENE ERREER “F_—&
Biu%=H fA+—H
Borrower B ™" Introduced by controlling No pledge, 8/7/2021 45,000,000 6.0% 12
shareholder of the Company; no guarantee
Independent Third Party
BB H= RAREERRENE ; ERREER “F-—4
BiU%=H tANH
Borrower C ™" Introduced by controlling No pledge, 11/5/2021 10,000,000 6.0% 12
shareholder of the Company; no guarantee
Independent Third Party
fERAC % RAREERRENE ; ERREER “F_—&
BUE=7H 1A+—H
Borrower D ™2 Introduced by controlling No pledge, personal  28/12/2020 11,160,000 5.0% 12
shareholder of the Company; guarantee by sole
Independent Third Party shareholder of
the Borrower D
B D ) RARBERRENE ; BILEERADN  ZZTTE
Biu%=%A S E L EYN - +TZBZHA
f® H
Borrower E M9 Introduced by controlling a pledge on the 2020-2021 32,783,000 12.0% 18
shareholder of the Company; rights to collect
Independent Third Party revenue from
the treatment
services
BRGE #59) RARBERRENE ; UBEKEERYE —Z22FE
Biu%=%A W B U 2 YRR &
(sl
Borrower F Potential joint venture, please Pledge of equity 20/11/2020 9,950,000 8.0% 18
refer to the announcement interests in
of the Company dated 26 Borrower
January 2021 F, personal
guarantee by
shareholders of
the Borrower F
fBMAF BEAERE F2RAR BRI ERAFN ECTE
BHAA—Z_—5—A 1 ~ R A PR +—BZ+H
S WA= PN i B SR AVME AHELR
158,893,000
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Notes:
(1) These loans are trust loan arrangements with commercial banks.

(2)  Borrower D repaid the all outstanding balance and accrued interest,
which was originally repayable on 28 December 2021, on 4 January
2022 due to some repayment technical issues.

©)) Outstanding balance as at 31 December 2021 of a supply chain
financing loan granted by the Group, inclusive of principal and accrued
interests.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not grant any other loans to
independent third parties during the Year which remained outstanding as
at 31 December 2021.

The Group granted the above loans by utilising its general working
capital. Prior to granting each of the loans, the Group conducted due
diligence on the borrowers, including but not limited to, obtaining the
latest financial statements of the borrowers, previous repayment record
of the borrowers, source of funding, etc.. The Group also adopted loan
monitoring measures to safeguard its interest in granting the loans: e.g.
request the borrowers to provide latest financial statements on a regular
basis and notify the Group for any material change in shareholding and
management structure, monitor the fund flow of the borrowers, etc..

The Board has considered the risks of the abovementioned loans.
For further details of the risks are set out in Note 42 to the financial
statements.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Cheng (“Mr. Li”)

aged 59, is an executive Director and the chairman (the “Chairman”) of
the Board. Mr. Li is also the chairman of the nomination committee under
the Board and one of the authorised representatives of the Company.
Mr. Li has more than 30 years of experience in textile and trading industry,
and is mainly responsible for overall business strategy and management
of the Group. From August 1985 to May 1993, Mr. Li had been engaged
in trading of textile products as a sole proprietorship. He worked as the
general manager of Xiaoshan Yongsheng Trading Company from March
1993 to November 1997, and from November 1997 to June 1999, he
assumed the role of general manager of Xiaoshan Yongsheng Chemical
Fiber Company Limited (currently known as Hangzhou Yongsheng Group
Limited, “Yongsheng Group”). He served as the general manager of
Hangzhou Yongsheng Weaving Limited (“Yongsheng Weaving”) from
June 1999 to April 2003. Since 2003, Mr. Li has been appointed as a
chairman of the board of directors of Yongsheng Group. Mr. Li has been
a senior economist since October 2013. Since August 2014, Mr. Li has
been a director of LN 7t R = 4R f2 15 B BR A Bl (Hangzhou Shining
3D Tech Co. Ltd., NEEQ stock code: 830978), the shares of which were
quoted on National Equities Exchange and Quotations (‘“NEEQ”) of the
PRC.

Mr. Li completed his professional study majoring in dyeing and
processing engineering in Zhejiang Institute of Silk Textile (now known as
Zhejiang Sci-Tech University) in July 1985. In March 2004, he completed
a course on corporate director advanced business administration
which was held by Ningbo Jianfeng Management Technology Research
Centre. Between 2006 and 2012, Mr. Li had also completed various
courses including the Senior Training Course on the Philosophy of New
Technology and Enterprise Growth—Growth enterprise and the Senior
Training Course on Financial Investment in Real Operations respectively
offered by the school of humanities and the school of media of Zhejiang
University, the Senior Training course for Business Administration
Executives offered by Zhejiang Gongshang University, the training course
for senior enterprise operators and managers in Hangzhou City on “356
Engineering Programme” in relation to investment, financing and capital
operation training offered by Fudan University. Mr. Li was appointed as
the deputy chairman of The Professional Committee of Zhejiang Province
Privately-operated Economic Research Centre in December 2002. Mr. Li
has completed the CEO Finance Program for China Enterprise in 2016,
which was held by the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business.
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Mr. Li has been elected as a representative of the Hangzhou City
Xiaoshan District People’s Congress of the PRC from December 2016.
Mr. Li was elected as a member of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
between May 2005 and December 2016. In November 2018, Mr. Li was
elected as the vice president of first session of Hong Kong Hangzhou
Chamber of Commerce. He was also elected as the chairman of the
Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District Wenzhou Chamber of Commerce in July
2010, the vice-chairman of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District General
Chamber of Commerce in December 2012, the standing council member
and vice-chairman of the China Chemical Fiber Association in April
2012 and April 2015 respectively. In October 2008, Mr. Li was named
as the “Staff Caring Outstanding Entrepreneur” of Hangzhou City which
was jointly awarded by the Federation of Trade Union of Hangzhou City
and the Industry and Commerce Joint Committee of Hangzhou City. In
February 2013, Mr. Li was awarded the “Outstanding Socialist Builder”
for the years 2010—2012 by the Office of China Hangzhou City Xiaoshan
District and The People’s Government Office of Hangzhou City Xianshan
District. Mr. Li is the uncle of Mr. Li Conghua, an executive Director.

Mr. Ma Qinghai (“Mr. Ma”)

aged 47, is an executive Director and the general manager of the
manufacturing division of Yongsheng Dyeing. Mr. Ma has more
than twenty years of experience in the textile industry, and is mainly
responsible for management and supervision of ordinary operation of
the Group’s dyeing business. Mr. Ma was the technical supervisor and
workshop officer of Zhejiang Hongli Group Limited Printing and Dyeing
Branch Company from August 1994 to February 2001. Mr. Ma held the
position of domestic trading manager of Yongsheng Group from January
2002 to July 2005 and was previously a director of Yongsheng Group.
Mr. Ma served as the vice factory director, factory director and deputy
general manager of Yongsheng Dyeing from August 2005 to February
2008, and has held the general manager position of Yongsheng Dyeing
since February 2008.
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In July 1994, Mr. Ma completed his professional study major in dyeing
and processing in Zhejiang Province Common Intermediate Professional
School. He completed the Senior Training Course for Chief Executive
Officer of Growth Enterprise offered by the school of humanity of
Zhejiang University in April 2007. He completed the course of Business
Management from Donghua University in July 2015 and obtained his
professional Diploma. Mr. Ma was awarded the “Progressive Individual
of Xiaoshan Dongpian Printing, Dyeing and Chemical Industry Provincial
Level Environmental Protection Key Regulatory Area Remediation
Work” by the People’s Government of Xiaoshan District of Hangzhou
City in October 2007. Mr. Ma obtained the award of “Outstanding
Contract Manager of Xiaoshan District” jointly offered by the Hangzhou
Administration for Industry and Commerce Xiaoshan Branch and
Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District Enterprise Contract Management
Association in 2010.

Mr. Li Conghua (“Mr. Li CH”)

aged 48, is an executive Director. Mr. Li CH has more than 15 years
of experience in the textile industry, and was mainly responsible for
management and supervision of ordinary operation of the Group’s
trading business before the disposal of the trading business of textile-
related products by the Group in May 2015. Mr. Li CH is currently
responsible for conducting product market trend analysis. He worked as
a chemical fiber materials salesperson in the chemical fiber department
in Xiaoshan Yongsheng Trading Company Limited from June 1997 to
December 2000, and worked as a department manager in chemical
fiber department of Yongsheng Group from January 2000 to December
2004. Mr. Li CH has also completed the Senior Training Course for Chief
Executive Officer of Growth Enterprise offered by Zhejiang University in
January 2008. Mr. Li CH is the nephew of Mr. Li Cheng.

Mr. Xu Wensheng (“Mr. Xu”)

aged 55, is an executive Director, has over 30 years of experience in
the construction industry. He is also a member of the remuneration
committee of the Board. He has joined the Group since 2016 and was
the vice general manager of the construction project of Yongsheng Plaza,
a building which is located at Xiaoshan Economic and Technological
Development Zone, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC. Prior
to joining the Group, he was the general manager of each of Jiangsu
Zhongkai Properties Development Limited* CL#xPHEMESLEA
FR/A &)) and Dalian Xinkongjian Properties Development Limited* (K%
FTEEMERZEARAE), which were companies established in
the PRC and were principally engaged in property development. Mr. Xu
obtained a bachelor’s degree from the Nanjing Institute of Architectural
Engineering* (R R T 12 2 %) (currently known as Nanjing Tech
University (R R L2EAK2))in 1992.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Wong Wai Ling (“Ms. Wong”)

aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director. She is also the
chairlady of the audit committee (“Audit Committee”) and the
remuneration committee under the Board. Ms. Wong has more than
thirty-three years of experience in accounting and auditing, and mainly
provides her independent judgment on strategy, performance, resources,
code of conduct and other aspects of the Company. She had worked
in major international accounting firms and local accounting firms before
she set up her own accounting firm in Hong Kong in 1993.

Ms. Wong is an independent non-executive director and chairperson of
the audit committee and remuneration committee of Overseas Chinese
Town (Asia) Holdings Limited (Main Board stock code: 3366). Ms. Wong
is a non-executive director of Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co.
Limited (Main Board stock code: 6893). Ms. Wong was an independent
non-executive director of AVIC International Holdings Limited (the shares
of which were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) with stock code: 161 and had been
voluntarily withdrawn from listing with effect from 17 April 2020). She
was an independent non-executive director of China Ruifeng Renewable
Energy Holdings Limited (Main Board stock code: 527) between 16 May
2006 and 31 January 2019, an executive director of Tonking New Energy
Group Holdings Limited (previously known as JC Group Holdings Limited)
(GEM stock code: 8326) between 21 June 2013 and 18 October 2016,
and an independent non-executive director of Glory Flame Holdings
Limited (GEM stock code: 8059) between 2 August 2014 and 22 March
2016.

Ms. Wong obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from University of Hong
Kong in November 19883 and a postgraduate diploma in accounting and
finance from the London School of Economics and Political Science,
University of London, in the United Kingdom in July 1985. She has
been registered as a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong since
June 1991 and an associate of The Association of Chartered Public
Accountants in April 1990. Ms. Wong has become a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (‘FCCA”) and a fellow
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘“FCPA”)
since May 1995 and February 2001 respectively. Ms. Wong has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director since 7 November
2013.
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Mr. He Chengying (“Mr. He”)

aged 59, is currently the dean of the Business School of Guangxi
University and the executive head of the Institute of China ASEAN Open-
door Finance (Bl — 2R R &R BAKPIE HZER#ITIRE) . Heis also a
member of the audit committee and the nomination committee under the
Board. Mr. He graduated from the Department of Accountancy of South
Western University of Finance and Economics, holds a Master Degree
of Economics from Zhejiang University, a Doctoral Degree of Economics
from Xiamen University. He previously worked for Shenzhen Investment
Holding Corporation, China Eagle Securities, Guosen Securities and
United Securities. He is a professor, senior economist and a special
research fellow of the China Management Science Research Institute and
Researcher (Professor) of Zhejiang University of Finance and Economy.
Mr. He had previously engaged in state enterprise, state-owned asset
management, as well as directly participated in drafting and formulating
policies for state enterprise and state-owned asset management
reforms. Subsequently, Mr. He has engaged in stock market innovation,
asset reorganisation, as well as capital market operation and research.
He has accumulated extensive experience in corporate reform, asset
reorganisation and capital management planning. He has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of China Automobile
New Retail (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 00526), since September 2006. Mr. He has
been appointed as an independent non-executive Director since 1 April
2022.

Dr. Wang Huaping (“Dr. Wang”)

aged 56, is an independent non-executive Director. He is also a member
of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee under the Board. Dr. Wang mainly provides his independent
judgment on strategy, performance, resources, code of conduct and
other aspects of the Company.

Dr. Wang has been serving as a professor and a doctoral advisor in the
Faculty of Materials Science and Engineering of Donghua University since
October 2002. Dr. Wang is renowned for his research in nanomaterials for
fiber forming and polymer-based nanocomposite fibers, spinning forming
theory and processing technology, systems of new clean production:
ionic liquid/fiber-forming polymer and has published a number of papers
on those topics.
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Dr. Wang is an independent director of Jiangsu Jiangnan High Polymer
Fiber Co. Ltd, a company which is listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600527) and Yiwu Huading Polyamide Fibre Co.
Limited, a company which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 601113). Dr. Wang was an independent director of Zhejiang
Unifull Industrial Fiber Co., Ltd, a company which is listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002427), and resigned on 4
January 2017.

Dr. Wang obtained a doctorate degree from the Faculty of Materials
Science and Engineering of Donghua University in March 2002. From
January 1989 to March 1992, Dr. Wang was employed by the China
Textile University (currently known as Donghua University) as a trainee
researcher from March 1992 to September 1995, Dr. Wang worked
at Donghua University as an officer of the Technology Laboratory of
Chemical Fiber Engineering Research Centre. Dr. Wang served as
an assistant researcher, a deputy officer, an officer, and an associate
researcher in the Faculty of Materials Science and Engineering from
March 1992 to September 2002. Dr. Wang was appointed as the
associate dean of the Faculty of Materials Science and Engineering
from November 2004 to April 2010. Since September 2008, Dr. Wang
has been a director of the Institute for Engineering Research Center of
Advanced Glass Manufacturing Technology.

Dr. Wang is the deputy director of the Gaoxin Fibers Professional
Committee of China Chemical Fibers Association, the deputy director
of Fibers Professional Committee of China Textile Engineering Society,
deputy director of Fibers Professional Committee of Shanghai Textile
Engineering Society, the deputy director of Industrial Standard Committee
of China Chemical Fibers Association, a committee member of Expertise
Committee of China Nonwovens & Industrial Textiles Association, the
expert of the Textile Industry Division of the National Development and
Reform Commission, a committee member of Technical Committee of
the Engineering Research Centre of the Textile Equipment of the Ministry
of Education and the deputy director of the Editorial Committee of China
Synthetic Fiber Industry. Dr. Wang has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since 19 August 2014.

Please refer to the section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s
interest and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
under the “Report of the Directors” of this annual report for details
of interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations held
by the Directors and chief executive of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Feng Hao (“Mr. Feng”)

aged 39, is the head of finance department of the Group, and is mainly
responsible for financial reporting and treasury management for the
Group. Mr. Feng has more than 10 years of experience in accounting
and financial reporting. Mr. Feng joined Yongsheng Group in September
2018. He was the financial director of Raffles Resources (Shanghai)
Limited from October 2010 to August 2018. He was also the vice general
manager in Raffles Resources (Shanghai) Limited from March 2016 to
August 2018.

Mr. Feng completed his bachelor degree majoring in Communication
Engineering from East China Normal University in June 2006. He further
obtained a master degree of professional accounting and a master
degree of commerce from Deakin University in June 2010.

Mr. Liu Chun Kwok (“Mr. Liu”)

aged 45, is a director and general manager of Widely Construction
& Engineering Limited (“Widely Construction”), a subsidiary of the
Company. He is mainly responsible for supervising the overall business
strategies and major business decisions of Widely Construction. Mr. Liu
obtained a science bachelor degree in construction engineering and
management from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2013. Mr. Liu
has over 18 years of experience in the building maintenance engineering
industry. He served as a project manager in several construction
engineering companies. Mr. Liu has extensive experience in planning,
operation and management of maintenance projects with different sizes
and natures. He found Widely Construction in March 2009.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Chung, Kwok Mo John (“Mr. Chung”)

aged 53, is a vice president of the Company since February 2018. holds
a Bachelor of Economics degree from Macquarie University, Australia
in 1992 and is also a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and CPA Australia, with over 20 years of experience in
auditing, financial management and corporate finance. Mr. Chung was an
auditor in Arthur Andersen (an international accounting firm) from 1992
to 1999. From 2000, Mr. Chung had held several senior management
positions, including chief financial officer, executive director and
independent non-executive director, in a number of listed companies in
Hong Kong.

Currently, Mr. Chung is also an independent non-executive director of
each of the following listed companies on the Stock Exchange:

B & S International Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1705)

- YTO Express (International) Holdings Limited (stock code: 6123)

- BYD Electronic (International) Company Limited (stock code: 285)

- Zhengye International Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
3363)

- Tokyo Chuo Auction Holdings Limited (stock code: 1939)
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Mr. Li Wenhua (“Mr. Li”)

aged 50, is the director and the general manager of Yongsheng
construction project. Mr. Li Wenhua has more than 15 years of
experience in the commercial properties investment development
industry, and is mainly responsible for managing the Company’s daily
operations, supervising project engineering and investment promotion.
From 1996 to 2005, Mr. Li Wenhua was responsible for the Company’s
sales work in Hangzhou Yongsheng Group Limited. He worked as the
vice general manager of Zhejiang Yongsha Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. from 2006 to 2011. He assumed the role of general manager
of Tongxiang Yonghua Commercial Operation Management Co., Ltd.
from 2012 to 2019. He has served as the general manager of Yonghao
Investment Management Co., Ltd. since 2019.

Ms. Yeung Wing Kwan (“Ms. Yeung”)

aged 40, is the company secretary of the Company. Ms. Yeung is
an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. She obtained a bachelor degree in commerce
from the University of Sydney and a master degree in corporate
governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She has over
10 years of company secretarial experience in listed companies in Hong
Kong. Ms. Yeung was the company secretary of China Daye Non-Ferrous
Metals Mining Limited (stock code: 661), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, from September 2012 to August 2015.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERER/WRS

The Company was committed to achieving and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance, the principles of which serve to
uphold transparency, accountability and independence in all aspects
of business and endeavour to ensure that affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group’s corporate governance practices are based on the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). During the Year under Review, the Board considered that the
Company had complied with the Code.

The Board will periodically review the Company’s current corporate
practices and procedures and will maintain and further enhance the
standard of corporate governance practices of the Company, in order to
ensure it is in line with international and local best practices and maximise
the interests of the Shareholders, investors, employees, business
partners and the public as a whole.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the Model
Code and such code of conduct during the Year under Review.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the Group’s business. The Board includes a balanced
composition of executive and independent non-executive Directors so
that independent judgement can be effectively exercised.

During the Year under Review and as at the date of this annual report, the
Board comprised four executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors as follows:
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Name of Director HEEHEH
Executive Director HiTES

Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman) B E ()
Mr. Li Conghua TREELSE

Mr. Ma Qinghai EEBRE

Mr. Xu Wensheng (G4 ames
Independent non-executive Director BIIERITES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling =5 xequm

Mr. Shiping James Wang (resigned with effect from 1 April 2021)
Mr. He Chengying (appointed with effect from 1 April 2021)
Dr. Wang Huaping

The brief biographical details of and relationships among the existing
Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 27 to 35. Save as disclosed under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report, there
is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship
among Board members and in particular, between the Chairman and the
chief executive officer.

During the Year under Review, the Board maintained a high level of
independence, with more than one-third of the Board comprised
independent non-executive Directors, who had exercised independent
judgement. The independent non-executive Directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications whenever the names of the
Directors are disclosed.
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The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his or her independence pursuant
to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Based on the confirmations received, the Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors satisfied the requirement of
independence under the Listing Rules.

Board meetings and general meetings

Board meetings are held regularly. In addition to regular meetings,
meetings are held as and when necessary under particular
circumstances. During the Year under Review, the Board meetings were
held. The Directors attended the meetings in person or by telephone in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”).

A record of the Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings and the
general meetings held during the Year under Review is set out as follows:

AR EWHRBIUFATESTRBELTRAE
BIBRFTEAYIBIL M55 B LN FEE B I MRS
L RBEFMENMNREEE A RRARAHERBUIF
WITEEHARELHRIEABILMENRE -

ERTEERRRKE

EFEEHERER -AABRAGHN TRER
ENREBRTARERZ NOBEER BE1TE
FEER -REARFDZEBEEMA ((EARER
A EFRENBBEBIZSMEZE-

EFHFEREBRFARTHNEST TR MREKRE
BURCERESIUNT ¢

Attendance/
Number of general
meetings held

Attendance/
Number of Board
meetings held

HERE HERE
FRBITESRE FRBITIRERARE
BERY RE
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Li Cheng EWE 4/4 1/
Mr. Li Conghua FHESYE 4/4 1/
Mr. Ma Qinghai E5EtE 4/4 11
Mr. Xu Wensheng XAt 4/4 11

Independent non-executive Directors BIUEPITES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BEBYLT 4/4 1/1
Mr. He Chengying EE b 4/4 0/0

(appointed on 1 April 2021) R ZE-——FHF—HEZE)

Dr. Wang Huaping FELET 4/4 11
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The annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company was held on 27
May 2021. Our forthcoming AGM will be held on 27 May 2022. Our
Directors, chief financial officer and company secretary and other senior
executives of the Company will attend the AGM together with our external
auditors to answer any questions from the Shareholders. All Directors
treasure the opportunity to canvass the views of the Shareholders at the
AGM held annually.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management
of the business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly
to discuss the overall strategies as well as operational and financial
performances of the Group. Certain matters are reserved for decisions
by the Board, including matters relating to: (i) the formulation of the
Group’s overall strategy and directions; (i) any material conflict of interest
of substantial Shareholders of the Company or Directors; (iii) approval
of the Group’s annual results, annual budgets, interim results and other
significant operational and financial transactions; (iv) changes to the
Company’s capital structure; and (v) major appointments to the Board.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group and implementation and execution of policies
and strategies decided by the Board to the executive Directors and
management of the Company.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties including risk management, internal controls, those under D.2.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code and relevant compliance issues relating
to the business operation of the Group.

The Board reviews and monitors the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior managers; develops, reviews and
monitors the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
employees and Directors.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic planning
experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the Group. The
Directors collectively bring a variety of experience and expertise to the
Company.
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Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

The Company has established the nomination committee under
the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) on 7 November
20183. The Nomination Committee has from time to time identified
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and make
recommendations to the Board. The main consideration in selecting
candidates for directorships is whether their characters, qualifications and
experience are appropriate for the businesses of the Group.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract for a term of 3 years which may be terminated by either
party giving to the other party at least 3 months’ prior written notice.
All independent non-executive Directors are subject to rotation and re-
election at the AGM in accordance with the Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at each
AGM, at least one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. All such retiring Directors, being eligible, may
offer themselves for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Li Conghua, Ms. Wong
Wai Ling and Dr. Wang Huaping, will retire from office as Directors, being
eligible, and will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy on the Board shall hold office until the
next annual general meeting and shall there be eligible for re-election. As
no director was appointed as an addition to the Board. Accordingly, there
are no Directors who shall retire from office at the AGM, and being eligible,
offer himself/herself for re-election.
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Insurance of the directors and officers

The Company has arranged liability insurance for the Directors and
officers of the Group in respect of legal action against them which is in
compliance with code provision C.1.8 of the Code.

Induction and continuous professional development

Newly appointed Directors will receive guideline and reference materials
to enable them to familiarise with the Group’s business operations
and Board’s policies. The Company is committed to arranging and
funding suitable training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. Each Director is briefed and updated from time to time to
ensure that he is fully aware of his responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the governance
policies of the Group. All the Directors also understand the importance of
continuous professional development and are committed to participating
in any suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of training
received by the Directors during the Year under Review is set out below:
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Types of continuous
professional development

programmes
HEEERRIAEEY

Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Li Cheng Wit 1
Mr. Li Conghua FHRESLE 1
Mr. Ma Qinghai EEELE 1
Mr. Xu Wensheng X BRE 1
Independent non-executive Directors BIIEMITES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BRlRZtT 1
Mr. He Chengying BRIt

(Appointed on 1 April 2021) (R —FI 5 —HEZ) 1
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFEL 1
Note: Biat
1. Read relevant materials of workshops/internal trainings/updates on the 1, BEf e AERER AR R EE M

Listing Rules and other applicable regulations.

BRZERNENRER

KESEMEIER AT 2021F% 41



Corporate Governance Report

TEELRERS

BOARD COMMITTEES EEHEY

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has AR EEERTHE EE 2B THAEZIK
delegated specific functions to three Board committees, namely the Audit FT-EAEELZEG NEZEZET RLEEER
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee, FNEEE FEHIAOT .

details of which are as follows:

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director EENR BZEEY REZEEY HNEEE
Executive Director BITES
Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman) ESE (FF) Chairman
*E
Mr. Li Conghua FHRESLE
Mr. Ma Qinghai ESBLE
Mr. Xu Wensheng R E Member
Ing=|
Independent non-executive Director JFIIIEHITESE
Ms. Wong Wai Ling =% $=Xoqum Chairlady Chairlady
FE FE
Mr. He Chengying EEt=bes Member Member
(Appointed on 1 April 2021) (T —1F & &
795 — H EZA(E)
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFELT Member Member Member
[p3=1 [53=1 [B3=|
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review the Company’s financial information, review and supervise the
Company’s financial reporting process and internal control procedures,
nominate and monitor external auditors and provide advice and
comments to the Board. The Audit Committee is established with specific
terms of references which deal clearly with the committee’s authority and
duties and are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of Company’s internal control (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programs
and budget) and risk management systems as delegated by the Board,
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
engagement of the external auditor for the audit and non-audit services.
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

There were three meetings held during the Year under Review and the
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attendance by each committee member is set out below: HEB &M -
Attendance/
Number of meetings
Members of the Audit Committee BZZEgNE HERYE GERH
Ms. Wong Wai Ling (Chairladly) BEBRYT (FE) 3/3
Mr. He Chengying EEtEes 3/3

(Appointed on 1 April 2021) (R ZEZ—FF—HEZT)

Dr. Wang Huaping FEFELT 3/3

During the Year under Review, the Audit Committee discussed and
reviewed the interim and final results of the Group and certain other
businesses. The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control was also
discussed at the meetings. The Audit Committee has also reviewed with
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters including a review of the interim report, annual report
and the final results of the Group for the Year under Review. The Group’s
final results for the Year under Review has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee before submission to the Board for approval.
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The Audit Committee has also reviewed this annual report, and confirmed
that this annual report complies with the Listing Rules. In the opinion of
the Audit Committee, there are no material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. There is no disagreement between the
Board and the Audit Committee regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.

Auditors’ remuneration

The Group’s external auditors is Ernst & Young. The remuneration paid or
payable to the external auditors of the Group for the Year under Review
comprised fees for audit services of approximately RMB1,350,000 (2020:
RMB1,250,000). During the Year under Review, there was no non-audit
service provided by the Group’s external auditors.

Directors’ and auditors’ responsibilities for
financial statements

All Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. The
auditor of the Company acknowledges its reporting responsibilities in the
auditor’s report on the financial statements of the Company for the Year
under Review. The statement by the auditors of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the independent
auditor’s report contained in this annual report. The Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial
statements on a going-concern basis.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director and
two independent non-executive Directors. The roles and functions
of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is established with
specific terms of reference which deal clearly with the committee’s
authority and duties and are available on the website of each of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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During the Year under Review, the Nomination Committee has reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board and assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee has also reviewed the Board’s diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and nomination policy.

As part of the Board Diversity Policy, the Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance its
performance. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against selection criteria. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, which
would include but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination
Committee will from time to time review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

One meeting was held during the Year under Review and the attendance
by each committee member is set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of meetings

Members of the Nomination Committee REEEEHRE HERYGERE

Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman) =k d (F/E) 171

Mr. He Chengying Bt 1/
(Appointed on 1 April 2021) (R =T —FPI 5 —HEZT)

Dr. Wang Huaping FEFEHEL 1/1

Throughout the Year under Review, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed and discussed the composition, size and structure of the Board,
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and re-
election of Directors.

In considering the nomination of new directors, the Company will propose
the candidates to the Nomination Committee, which will review and make
recommendation to the Board on the expertise, skills and experience of
the candidates appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company.

The composition of the Board has a significant element of diversity, in
terms of skills, regional and industry experience, background and gender.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the remuneration committee under
the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) which comprises one
executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include
consulting the Chairlady of the Board about their remuneration proposals
for other executive Directors, making recommendation to the Board
on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management, by reference to, among
other things, market level of salaries paid by comparable companies, the
respective responsibilities of the Directors and senior management and
the performance of the Group. The Remuneration Committee’s authority
and duties are set out in written terms of reference that are posted on the
website of each of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic salary,
allowance and discretionary bonus.

Salary adjustments are made where the Remuneration Committee
takes into account performance, contribution and responsibilities of the
individual. Apart from basic salary, executive Directors and employees are
eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into account factors such
as market conditions as well as corporate and individual's performance
during the year.

The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management.
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Remuneration Purpose Reward Policy details
i) BH FRAM KRB
Basic salary To reflect the market value of each individual Cash payment monthly Reviewed annually with market trend
HiHE RBEBEAZDIHER FAREMN BERTISBE LR
Allowance To attract and retain employees Reimbursement Market conditions
R waIRRERE THE mHER
Discretionary performance To motivate employees to deliver high levels of performance  Cash payment - Individual performance

bonus of the Company and individual performance goals - Company performance
HIERIRIEA HEREERRABFHBEKENRIFUR REMR —EAARR

EMEARRER — REIRR
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One meeting was held during the Year under Review and the attendance
by each committee member is set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of meetings

Members of the Remuneration Committee HNEEENE HERY GERE
Ms. Wong Wai Ling (Chairladly) B2E2RZT (FE) 1/1
Dr. Wang Huaping FEFEL 1/1
Mr. Xu Wensheng WX E 11

Throughout the Year under Review, the Remuneration Committee has
discussed and recommended to the Board for approval of the Directors’
and senior managements’ remuneration of the Group for the year of
2021, the bonus payments to the Directors and senior management of
the Company in 2021.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is committed to managing business risks and maintaining a
proper and effective system of risk management and internal control to
safeguard the Shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets. The
Board acknowledge that such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. On 30 December 2015 and 20 December 2018,
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been amended to
include risk management as part of the internal control of the Company.
During the Year under Review, the Board reported the risks associated
with the Company and the Audit Committee was satisfied that the risks
have been properly dealt with by the Group.

The Group has established a risk management policy which sets out the
process of identification, evaluation and management of the principal
risks affecting the business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and assessing principal
risks within its divisions on a quarterly basis and establishing
mitigation plans to manage the risks identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control activities, attending
annual meetings with each division to ensure principal risks are
properly managed, and new or changing risks are identified and
documented.

3. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.
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The Company has the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information. In practice, employees of the
Group who become aware of any events and/or matters which he/she
considers potentially inside information, will report to the designated
personnel of the Company who, if considered appropriate, will pass such
information to the Board for the purpose of considering and deciding
whether or not such information constitutes inside information and
disclosure of which shall be made immediately.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of risk management and
internal control covering all controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Board is satisfied that the Group had fully
complied with the Code in respect of internal controls during the Year
under Review.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group during the
Year under Review falls within the following band:

FABDRBEANBEEREMNENENREF A
BEE-RETR BEAEEEESTEMEM4K
HEERABZAEBERNRHER  REERFRAEA
AEEABER MEABAERBBE KEH
EFSREFMHEUREERREEMBEERS
RS H B BRI R B o

EXSCEBERZESNAEEAREENAL
EENENAERMETFERS  HTREME
EERAHENNMEEESE EFEENEE
EROEFEFRNEE2EETABREBEZENTR

= 4R E T B

REBEER ZEESREEENHFINRENFT
HEE :

Number of individuals

A¥

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,00078 7T 8
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 75 %£2,000,0007% 7T 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 77T 23,000,000/ 7T 0
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 77T 2 4,000,0007 7T 0
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 775 %£5,000,0007 7T 0
10
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COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 15 November
2013 (the “Prospectus”), Mr. Li Cheng and Ever Thrive Global Limited
are the controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”). To protect the Group from any potential competition,
the Controlling Shareholders has given an irrevocable non-competition
undertaking (the “Non-competition Undertaking”) in favour of the
Company on 7 November 2013. Pursuant to the Non-competition
Undertaking, each of the Controlling Shareholders has, among other
matters, undertaken with the Company that each of the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates (other than the Group) shall
not engage in any business which will or may compete with the business
currently and from time to time engaged by the Group. Details of the
Non-competition Undertaking have been set out in paragraph headed
“Relationship with our controlling shareholders — Non-competition
Undertaking” of the Prospectus.

The Company has received the annual declaration from each of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their respective compliance with
the terms of the Non-competition Undertaking during the Year under
Review. The independent non-executive Directors, having reviewed the
aforementioned annual declarations and made reasonable enquiry, are
satisfied that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the terms
of the Non-competition Undertaking during the Year under Review.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yeung Wing Kwan (“Ms. Yeung”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 31 May 2019.

Ms. Yeung plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring
efficient and effective information flow within the Board and that the
Board'’s policy and procedures are followed.

The company secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. The company secretary reports to the Board through the
Chairman. All Directors may have access to the advice and services of
the company secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters and facilitates the induction and professional
development of the Directors.

The company secretary is also responsible for ensuring the procedures of
the Board meetings are observed and providing the Board with opinions
on matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures of the Board
meetings.
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During the Year under Review, the company secretary had received no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is fully involved in the selection and appointment of the
company secretary.

The biography of the company secretary is set out in the section headed
“Directors and senior management” on page 35 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) by way of cash or by other means
that the Board considers appropriate. It is the policy (‘Dividend Policy”)
of the Board, in recommending dividends, to allow the Shareholders to
participate in the Company’s profits, and at the same time, to ensure the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Company’s
decision to declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and the amount
of such dividends will depend upon, among other things, the current
and future operations, financial condition, liquidity position and capital
requirements of the Group, as well as dividends received from the
Company’s subsidiaries and associates, which in turn will depend on the
ability of those subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend. In addition,
any final dividends for a financial year will be subject to the approval
of the Shareholders. The declaration and payment of dividends by the
Company is also subject to any restrictions under the laws of Cayman
Islands, the laws of Hong Kong, the Company’s amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association and any applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

Whilst this Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on the
financial and cash-flow position of the Group, the Board will continue to
review this Dividend Policy from time to time and the Board may exercise
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify this
Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no
assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any particular amount
for any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company that any dividend will be
paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

=0 Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2021

REIEER > RRWECET EHRAEI.20F1F
SR SDS NE ERNE e =

EXE2E2HEATWENREREE-

NREVENBERN A FREBEESRERE
BE —&-

iz SR

AABNBEBRESTANEFTERRBENHMT
XAARERR (TIRR)) BIRKIKARE  #HEIK
MREDESFENER REHMK)) > EEBRE
DEARB N LEFERERELADEEFREFERE
ERKER - AABNREERIKTEAREZ
RERZREZEEHIUAR (HPaE) RERE
REE -MBRRT RBESR R R EERBE LR
FBURTREMNBAERBMERADNEZKRE &
REBANZEMNB LB RBERTIRMRE ZHE
Beltsh B E IR EMRHPREARKERR
HER AOFBE-ARARDBERKREKNTRETERE
THEMREER BBEZEIN AR ZEBEFT KK
SIEBERRARMAAREMERER HA K
ROIETERFER

KRERRRMEFTREEAERAMBRRERM
ERNZER MEFERFEIFRTILREE
R EFENIENRERRETERYBZERRRE
TEBHNBEEREEN BT/ HERILRE
ER - i N RER A EAR EHEEIRSUKSER
BELBEZRE -REBREFERAERE IR
AR ESEERAREFEH B ERORIASE
R/ S4B R A A B R AE R B A E IR
Be



THE SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders, at the date of deposit of the requisition, holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the company secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles of
Association for including a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting.
The requirements and procedures are set out above in the paragraph
headed “Convening an extraordinary general meeting by Shareholders”.
Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, no person (other
than a retiring Director) shall be eligible for election to the office of Director
at any general meeting unless a notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the head
office or at the registration office no earlier than the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting
and the minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least seven days. The procedures for
the Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director is posted
on the website of the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
SEND ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong, presently Unit C2, 29/F, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, No.18
Harcourt Road, Admiralty Hong Kong, by post for the attention of the
company secretary. Upon receipt of the enquiries, the company secretary
will forward the communications relating to:

1. the matters within the Board’s purview to the executive Directors;

2. the matters within a Board committee’s area of responsibility to the
chairman of the appropriate committee; and

St ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, enquiries and
client complaints to the appropriate management of the Company.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has established and maintained a dialogue with
Shareholders by conveying information to the Shareholders and investors
through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports);
annual general meeting and other meetings that may be held; and all the
information submitted to the Stock Exchange for disclosure, as well as
corporate communications and other publications which shall be posted
on the website (http://www.chinaysgroup.com) of the Company.

The Company undertakes to convey information to the Shareholders and
investors in a timely and effective manner at all times.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary who will direct the
enquiries to the Board for handling. The contact details of the Company
Secretary are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
Unit C2, 29/F, Tower 1,

Admiralty Centre,

No. 18 Harcourt Road,

Admiralty, Hong Kong

Tel No.: (852) 2776 5228

Fax No.: (852) 2994 9699
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The Company will handle both telephone and written enquiries from the
Shareholders from time to time. Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns
will be forwarded to the Board and/or relevant committees of the Board,
where appropriate, to answer the Shareholders’ questions.

Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal
Control

The Audit Committee continues to review the risk management and
internal control system on behalf of the Board. The review processes
include but are not limited to holding meetings with company secretary,
chief financial officer, internal control staff and external auditors, reviewing
relevant work reports and discussing major risks with the senior
management of the Company. For the Year under Review, the Board
considers that the risk management and internal control system of the
Company was effective and sufficient. The risk management and internal
control system for finance, operation and compliance of the Company is
effective and adequate.

In addition, the Board has confirmed that the accounting and financial
reporting functions of the Company have been performed by the
employees with appropriate qualifications and experience who have
received adequate and appropriate training and development. The Board
has confirmed that the internal audit function of the Company is sufficient,
the relevant resources and budget are sufficient, and the relevant
employees are equipped with appropriate qualifications and experience,
and have received sufficient training and development.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Whistleblowing Policy

The Group had formulated a whistle-blowing policy to increase
employees’ awareness to uphold integrity. The chairman, chief executive
officer and the audit committee of the Company will receive report of the
whistle-blowing incidents and have the discretion to initiate independent
investigations according to the nature of the incidents or refer the
incidents to relevant regulatory authorities. The Group communicated
with investors and stakeholders periodically by publishing quarterly
financial and business updates, organising visits to its factories and
arranging focus group meetings with institutional investors and stock
commentators. The Group also published announcements in relation
to its major development in accordance with the seven “Principles
of Responsible Ownership” published by the Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC”).
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Constitutional documents

During the Year under Review, the Company did not make any changes
to the memorandum of association and Articles of Association of the
Company, the current version of which is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

Number of shares

The total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December
2021 was 732,543,090. The Company will periodically announce the
total number of its issued shares in its monthly returns.

Important schedule for the Shareholders - AGM

An AGM will be held at Unit C2, 29/F, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, No.18
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong on 27 May 2022. A circular containing,
among others, details of the AGM has been despatched to the
Shareholders together with this annual report.

Information for Hong Kong branch registrar

Tricor Investor Services Centre
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Tel No: (852) 2980 1333
Fax No: (852) 2810 8185
Email:is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Website: www.tricoris.com
Office Hours: 9:00 am — 4:30 pm
(Monday to Friday, except public holidays)

Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of complying
and applying with the Code but also about promoting and developing
a healthy and ethical corporate culture. The Company will continue to
review and, where appropriate, improve the current practices on the basis
of the experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views
and suggestions from the Shareholders to improve and promote the
transparency are welcomed.

On behalf of the Board

Li Cheng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the Year under Review.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law (as revised) of the
Cayman Islands on 19 April 2012. The registered office of the Company
is at 2/F Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902, Grand Cayman
KY1-1103, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business in Hong
Kong is at Unit C2, 29/F, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, No. 18 Harcourt
Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong. The principal activity of the Company
is investment holding and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
(i) dyeing and processing of differentiated polyester filament fabric; (i)
provision of renovation, maintenance, alteration and addition services
(“‘RMAA service”); (iii) properties investment; and (iv) environmental
water project operation.

Further discussion and analysis of the business activities of the Group,
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Business Review” as set out on pages 5 to 7 of this annual report. These
discussions form part of this report of the directors.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company and each member of the Group as at 31
December 2021 are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group and the financial conditions of the Group for the
Year under Review are set out in the financial statements on pages 98 to
264 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimise the Group’s environmental impact by
water-recycling initiatives, sewage treatment implementation, energy
saving and wastage reduction, and encouraging recycle of office supplies
and other materials. The Group also requires its factories to operate in
strict compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and rules
and possess all necessary permission and approval from the relevant
PRC regulators.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognise that employees, customers and business
partners are the keys to the sustainable development of the Group. The
Group is committed to building a close and caring relationship with its
employees and business partners and improving the quality of services to
the customers.

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of
the Group. The Group ensures all staff is reasonably remunerated and
its workers are provided with regular training courses on operation of
different types of machinery, as well as work safety. The Group strives
to motivate its employees with a clear career path and offer them
opportunities for advancement and improvement of their skills. The
Group also rewards its employees for their work performance through
incentives, such as bonuses and options, to motivate their continuous
contribution.

The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers and
has ongoing communications with its customers and suppliers through
various channels such as telephone, electronic mails and physical
meetings to obtain their feedback and suggestions.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the Mainland China while the ordinary shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. The Group’s establishment and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.
During the Year under Review and up to the date of this annual report, the
Group’s operation has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC and Hong Kong in all material respects.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves during the Year under Review are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on page 262 of this annual
report.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had distributable
reserves of approximately RMB664,522,000 (2020: approximately
RMB849,713,000) available for distribution to the Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share capital and share option scheme are set
out in notes 31 and 32 to the financial statements and the paragraph
headed “Share option scheme of the Company” below, respectively.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommended the payment of a final dividend (the
“Final Dividend”) for the Year under Review (2020: HK$0.02). This,
together with the interim dividend of HK$0.01 per Share that was paid in
2021, amounts to an aggregate dividend payment of HK$0.01 per Share
for the full financial year of 2021.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board is not aware of any
Shareholders who have waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the Year under
Review are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year under Review, the percentages of major suppliers and
customers of the Group of the purchases and sales for the Year under
Review are as follows:

The aggregate purchases

Five largest suppliers accounted for 31.5%
The aggregate sales
Five largest customers accounted for 38.7%

So far as known to the Directors, other than those disclosed in the
section headed “Continuing connected transactions and related party
transactions” below, none of the Directors, their close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or substantial shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the above major suppliers or customers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of approximately RMB300,000
during the Year under Review (2020: RMB670,000).

BANK BORROWINGS

During the Year under Review, the Group had bank borrowings of
approximately RMB236.6 million, which was mainly used for the
properties investment.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year under Review and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Mr. Li Cheng (Chairman)

Mr. Li Conghua

Mr. Ma Qinghai

Mr. Xu Wensheng

Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Mr. He Chengying (appointed with effect from 1 April 2021)

Mr. Shiping James Wang (resigned with effect from 1 April 2021)
Dr. Wang Huaping
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Mr. Li Conghua, Ms. Wong Wai Ling and Dr. Wang Huaping will retire as
Directors at the forthcoming AGM. Being eligible, they offer themselves
for re-election at the AGM. None of the retiring Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
Details of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
are set out in the circular of the Company which had been despatched to
the Shareholders together with this annual report.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from 7 November
2016 (except for Mr. Xu Wensheng whose service contract commenced
on 29 November 2019 and Mr. He Chengying whose service contract
commerce on 1 April 2021) subject to termination, among others, by
giving not less than three months’ notice in writing. Each of such Directors
will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM every
three years. Director’s fees are payable on a pro-rata basis for any non-
full year’s service. The remuneration of the Directors is determined with
reference to their duties, responsibilities and experience in the Company,
and the prevailing market conditions. No Directors have waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with the
Directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Year under Review or at any time during the Year under
Review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year under Review.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance had
been entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the controlling shareholders of the Company or any of their subsidiaries
during the Year under Review.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save for the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during
the Year under Review was the Company, its subsidiaries or its ultimate
holding company or any subsidiary of that ultimate holding company a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any
time during the Year under Review and up to and including the date of this
annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and based on the confirmations received, considers
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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EHEERE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERBEEITHRASKRG
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN R R ERENE R R RE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES
As at 31 December 2021, interests or short positions in the Shares, RZEZ—F+ZB=1+—H EFKXEA2TN

underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and any of its BRETHAEBRARBRETAEEEIE (EER
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities ERBEFFESTIESZ S RIPERY (BEHERBPER
and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Law of Hong Kong) (“SFO”) il 1) FBXVER) R0~ HER M REREZ T FEER
held by the Directors and chief executive of the Company which have BES RAEERAEXVEET RSN E NG AR
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to REBRFNERIXE (BEREES AP ERAG
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short BRAGNESEREFIRABEENERIRXA)
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of AR RB)BREB S MG HRAEIS2EFEN
the SFO) or have been entered in the register maintained by the Company BMANERIKE > IRE _E TR A 1042
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to ZTFREANEARRE MBI AANERICK AT :

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules are as follows:

(A) Long position in the Shares and underlying (A) MG ERERRPETFE
Shares
Number of
Shares and
underlying Approximate
Shares held/  percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature interested shareholding
FR¥E/
BEEEZERN KR A9 B 1
B4 g1,/ HE HERARINEE BaLE
Mr. Li (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 479,132,990 65.41%
=54 (W) RPEEE T
Mr. Ma (Note 2) Beneficial owner 7,075,677 0.97%
BRE (Wzt2) BEmEAA

KESHMEIERAT 2021F% Bl
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EEGHRE
Note 1:  As at 31 December 2021, Mr. Li beneficially owns 90% Kz RIE—F+"B=1+—8B Fk
of the issued share capital of Astute Horizon Limited LY ERHEBEESARLATI0NNE
which in turn, beneficially holds 272,661,290. Mr. Li also ?’Vfﬁﬂyzli MERERABTERFE
beneficially owns approximately 95.71% of the issued 272,661,290 B8 17 c B LN B m
share capital of Ever Thrive Global Limited which in turn, BEBRIRIKERATIA5.71%NE &
beneficially holds 206,471,700 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Li TRA MEBRRKERARDERT
is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares held 5206,471, 7008 B 15 © H ItE > 7LEE 5
by Astute Horizon Limited and Ever Thrive Global Limited RBEERAIME  FRERRATE
for the purposes of the SFO. Mr. Li is also the director of ERESBRABARERIRIKERA
Astute Horizon Limited and Ever Thrive Global Limited. BRANEBRMTEEREE =&
Y NAERERARDKERIRIRER
NEIMNESR-
Note 2:  As at 31 December 2021, share options to subscribe Kz RIEBEZ—HF+Z“A=+—H'5
for 4,400,000 Shares were granted to Mr. Ma. Besides, EE RO HE4,400,0008% iR 17
Mr. Ma beneficially owns 2,675,677 Shares. Therefore, MERE L BREERESR
Mr. Ma was interested in 7,075,677 Shares in aggregate. 2,675,677 1D - FIL > B EEH
1R7,075,677IR AR D PR HEwh o
Note 3:  As at 31 December 2021, the total number of issued a3 RIEZ—Ff+ZA=+—8B%

7B D HB B #3732,543,090 AR 17 ©

(B) M EZBERDHNITFE

Shares was 732,543,090.

(B) Long position in shares of associated
corporation

Number of
Name of Associated Shares held/  Percentage of
Name of Director Corporation Capacity/Nature interested shareholding
FR¥ RS B
s M EE TS g%/ 48 eab 4= BoLE
Mr. Li Ever Thrive Global Limited Beneficial owner 446 95.71%
= e EERIRKABRAT BaHEBA
Astute Horizon Limited (Note 7) Beneficial owner 100 90.00%
ERARRE Wat1) BEmEAA

BAXFIREEIIN R _—F+_H4
—t+—H EERLARFANERSTHAEN
ERALBRETAER LB (TERHHERK
HAE&E) IR - ABRER D N BERESERHEE
RIEEE RIS 5B 535218 AL A ZIEFT
MPBEMANTEESIRE  IREE
EFR BN G AR B KB BE AR o

Apart from those disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2021,
none of the directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in any of the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) that is required to be
recorded and kept in the register in accordance with section 352
of the SFO or any interests required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

==, Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2021



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
other member of the Group:
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FERRKEEMA TR KRR
17 B9 = B i3k

RIET—F+"RB=+—H ' BESMRM  UTF
AL EFHERAENEBITHRAERIN AR
RAWEFERRMVBBARN TEEREZ SR
E1RBISEXVEFE 2R3 B RVIR X AR A& A B KB
KRB RE  NERNEERSANAE
FERERBER TRAEREFAEMEEATRE
RE LREBHNERERNRAHEES %I LAY

EWA
==

Number of Approximate

Shares held/  percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature interested shareholding

FRfs A BEA R 1

IRERaE 1t 515,/ HHE kin &8 BaLE

Astute Horizon Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 272,661,290 37.22%
ERBRRAT (Wat1) BmEBA

Ever Thrive Global Limited Beneficial owner 206,471,700 28.19%
HRIRIKBIRAE] BmEBA

Ms. Chen Fangqin (Note 1) Interest of spouse 479,132,990 65.41%

RS et (WfaET) BRI s

Note 1: Ms. Chen Fangqin is the spouse of Mr. Li. Therefore, Ms. Chen
Fanggin was deemed, or taken to be interested in all the Shares
which are interested by Mr. Li for the purposes of the SFO.

Note 2: As at 31 December 2021, the total number of issued Shares was
732,543,090.

M1 RERLERFRENES Bt stBs5k
HERAME > BEFRIRBA/AEFERFE
SEBAREN2ERMPHER R

Mizt2 . RWZBEZ—F+ZA=+—8> BEITRHAE

(#3732,543,0908% ©

KM RAS 202145k B3
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 7
November 2013 as to attract and retain the best available personnel
and to provide additional incentive to the eligible participants under the
Scheme. Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board is authorised, at its absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to
subscribe the Shares to any employees (full-time or part-time), Directors,
consultants or advisor of the Group, or any substantial shareholder of the
Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business
partner or service provider of the Group. The Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on 7 November 2013,
subject to early termination provisions contained in the Scheme.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer
for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a Share
in respect of any particular option granted under the Scheme shall be
a price solely determined by the Board and notified to a participant and
shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date on which an
option is offered to a participant; (i) the average of the closing prices of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date on which an option is
offered to a participant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date
on which an option is offered to a participant.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the listing date
of the Company (i.e. 27 November 2013).

The Company may at any time refresh such limit, subject to the
Shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in compliance with the
Listing Rules, provided that the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under all the share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue unless approved by the Shareholders in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period as the Board may determine which shall not
exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.

During the Year under Review, no share options were granted
(15,000,000 share options and 16,300,000 share options were granted
on 6 January 2015 and 30 December 2015, respectively, under
the terms of the Scheme (collectively, the “Grants”), representing
approximately 4.28% of the issued shares of the Company as
at 31 December 2021). Details of the Grants are disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 6 January 2015 and 30
December 2015, respectively.

Up to 31 December 2021, the following set forth the summary of the
changes in share options granted, details of which are set out in Note 35
to the consolidated financial statements:
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BRERRBEZFEGINESTEEENRREAE
BTRE B RER NS BN BRER D B AES
TH WARZ IR BMRILGEXPARE -

CIEFR TEEHERE (CBER_Z2—h1F
—EAE&_§—£¢+_E:+Em%aﬁ§m
B % H15,000,0001% B A& # 5216,300,00017 & i
#EEIEY) HEREARBAR_EZ—F+=
B=Z+—HEZTRMHHN4.28%) - REMEER
ENRAARBSHAAZS—AF—BAAHEZE
—HE+ZB=+HMNAMmA-

EE-F-—G+ZA=+—0 SEHBREN
SHHBNT  HHRN A G ERRM TS

Number of unlisted share options
FLmERESE

Share price of
Cancelled/ the Company
Name and As at Granted forfeited Exercised As at as at the date of
category of 1 January during during during Exercise 31 December Date of grantof ~ Vesting period of End of exercise grant of share
participant 2021 the year the year the year price 2021 share options share options period options
HRZRIA
ot $W?ﬁ/ - R=g=- $ - BigEd
SABMARER -B-A EREH P ERTR it + “BZT-0  HRESKES WRESES fTfEmERAS HEmER
(HKD, /DE/S/HCE/ (HKD, /)e/Share)
) SRET)
Directors
8%
Mr. Ma Qinghai 2,200,000 - - - $1.095 2,200,000 6 January 2015 50%: 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025 $148
. 5 January 2025
EEERE Z3-nf 50% —E-A"ENA_HE CE_If
—BRE Z ’ﬂi =hi= —B&H
50%: 1 April 2017 to
5 January 2026
50%: ZE—t EWH E S
ZB°1%-R
2,200,000 - - - $1.195 2,200,000 30 December 2015 50%: 2 April 2017 to 30 December 2025 $1.52
30 December 2025™
‘ﬁ -1f 50% —EB—tEMA_RE ZE_RE
A=+H “BCEF+CA=TH* +ZR=1H

50%: 1 April 2018 to
30 December 2025
50% 23— \FME—HE
“ECREtCAStET
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ERERE
Number of unlisted share options
FLmBRESE
Share price of
Cancelled/ the Company
Name and As at Granted forfeited Exercised As at as at the date of
category of 1 January during during during Exercise 31 December Date of grantof ~ Vesting period of End of exercise grant of share
participant 2021 the year the year the year price 2021 share options share options period e op tions
ot S ER/ - B = - ﬁA 1%
SEEHTRER —-A-A ERET P ERiTE e +2A=+-A  BREELAS BRESES fiEfERAS
(HKD /oerSharg/ (HK /)erSﬁare)
SR ET)
Other employees 3,589,400 - - 650,000 $1.095 2,939,400 6 January 2015 50%: 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025 $148
5 January 2025
HfiES “F-1f 50%: fmilﬂ RE  ECaf
—A7~H “ZCRE-R —R%A
50%: 1 April 2017 to
5Janua 2025°
50%: = t&lﬂ -AE
_2_ £
6,934,800 - - 336,000 $1.19 6,598,800 30 December 2015 50%: 2 April 2017 to 30 December 2025 $1.52
30 December 2025
“Z2-nf% 50%: —E—+EMA_RE ZE_EE
+ZA=1A ZECREtZA=R” +ZA=1H
50%: 1 April 2018 to
30 December 2025™
50%: A—)\EIEH_ RE
ZECREFCA=TE
Total
fazt 14,924,200 - - 986,000 13,938,200
Notes: BaE -
. The vesting and exercise of the options granted under the Scheme on . BiIEZ BN _E—AF—A/BEHEERE

6 January 2015 are subject to the performance conditions set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 6 January 2015.

o The vesting and exercise of the options granted under the Scheme on

30 December 2015 are subject to the performance conditions set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2015.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year under Review, the Group entered into the following
continuing connected transactions which are subject to the reporting and
annual review requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions are set out below:
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Tenancy Agreements

On 22 October 2021, 182 ¥) % (#1)1) A BR/A B (Changsheng Property
(Hangzhou) Company Limited*) (“Changsheng Property”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as landlord, entered into (i) tenancy
agreement (“Tenancy Agreement One”) with Hangzhou Xiaoshan
Yongsheng Foreign Trading Company Limited (475 M &8 LU 7k % %t 4b
B 5B R 27 (“Yongsheng Trading”), as tenant, in respect of the
leasing of an area with gross floor area of approximately 498 sqg.m.
on 22nd floor of Yongsheng Plaza located at Xiaoshan Economic and
Technological Development Zone in Hangzhou, the PRC (“Property
One”) for a term of three years commencing from 1 November 2021 to
31 October 2024; (i) tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement Two”)
with Hangzhou Yongsheng Holdings Company Limited (#7) 7k 2%3%
BB BR/AF) (“Yongsheng Holdings”), as tenant, in respect of the
leasing of an area with gross floor area of approximately 1,440.81 sg.m.
on 23rd Floor of Yongsheng Plaza located at Xiaoshan Economic and
Technological Development Zone in Hangzhou, the PRC (“Property
Two”) for a term of three years commencing from 1 November 2021 to
31 October 2024; and (i) tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement
Three”) with Hangzhou Yibang Technology Company Limited (#71#M %
R BEAT) (‘Hangzhou Yibang”), as tenant, in respect of the
leasing of an area with gross floor area of approximately 146.63 sg.m.
on 22nd Floor of Yongsheng Plaza located at Xiaoshan Economic and
Technological Development Zone in Hangzhou, the PRC for a term of a
year commencing from 1 November 2021 to 31 October 2022.

Principal terms of each of the relevant tenancy agreements are set out as
follows:

Report of the Directors
EFERS

BinE
M2 —F+AZ+8 MEYE ) BREA
B (EEME ARENEEWB AR fEAETE)
BN KB EINEZBRAR (KERES) 0 F
AT ) BLALF AR EAT N 7 2 L A 7 152 1 7 8 & oKk A%
KE2218  BEEMBEAN498F H RN EE (T¥E—))
STUAERE ((HEHE—)) HBAER 2" —F
+—HB—HEEZZNE+HA=+—HLE=%F ;(i
FUNKERIZER AR AT (REER > EAEP) i
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Tenancy Agreement One Tenancy Agreement Two Tenancy Agreement Three
HEHE— HEHET HEHE=
Date: 22 October 2021
A 2T —H+BZ+CH
Parties: () Changsheng Property, as landlord; and () ~ Changsheng Property, as landlord; and () Changsheng Property, as landlord; and
(i) Yongsheng Trading, as tenant (i) Yongsheng Holdings, as tenant (i) Hangzhou Yibang, as tenant
HES) () REME FHEL K ) REME HEL K () REME FHEL K
(i) KEEZ ERER (i) KR fERER (i) WMNEE ERER
Premises: Property One Property Two Property Three
L/E mE— MEZ mE=

KESHIMEIBRAT 2021F% BT
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ERERE
Tenancy Agreement One Tenancy Agreement Two Tenancy Agreement Three
HEHE— HERET HEHE=
Principal use: as offices and for commercial use only
TERR: BIERAZ L EFEHERR
Term: Three years commencing from 1 November 2021 to 31 October 2024 (both days inclusive) ~ One year commencing from 1 November 2021
to 31 October 2022 (both days inclusive)
18 BE_E_—&£+-A-HRE_Z_NE+A=1+—H @EEEMA) =& St oy py SRl SV
B=+—H (BEEEMA) L—F
Monthly rent: - Firstand second year: RMB54,303.79; -  First and second year: RMB8,028.00
and RMB159,960.00; and
(exclusive of utility charges and management
- Third year: RMB55,932.90 - Third year: RMB164,758.80 fees)
(exclusive of utility charges and (exclusive of utility charges and
management fees) management fees)
B - BREZFEARME430379T; R - BREZF ARME159,960.007t; AKHES8,028.007T
& FEELRASXEREESD)
- B=F . AE55932.907T - B=F A\R¥164,758.8070
FEELARSXEREESR) FERELRZXEREES)

Annual caps The maximum aggregate annual caps under Tenancy Agreement One, Tenancy Agreement Two and Tenancy Agreement Three between

2021 and 2024 is RMB2,667,501.48
FELR REEERE— HERR-_RAERR= S FE_S_NENEESFE FREHEA ARB2,667,501.487T
Confirmation from the independent non-executive Directors B IEMITEEREER

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non- B EmR H‘J%14A.551L’% B RITESEEBMN
executive Directors had reviewed the above continuing connected LISEMER U ERZERZ B THETIL -
transactions and confirmed that the transactions had been entered into:

0] in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group; iy MRAEERBEHBREF;

(i) either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there is no (iy  I%(a)lE & LR ; I (o)fd I 7 7] & LL &K

available comparable terms, on terms no less favourable to the MORBRABREXBEBBIE=FHERIEHT
Company than terms available to or from independent third parties; KRBIERR 5 &
and

(i)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them iy REBEREZEXZNEREBEREAFTSEN
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Mo RRERT @R -

Shareholders as a whole.
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Confirmation from the auditors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board had engaged
the auditors of the Company to perform certain assurance procedures
on the continuing connected transactions. As of 31 December 2021, the
annual transaction amount of the continuing connected transactions was
approximately RMBO0.6 million in aggregate, which did not exceed the
proposed maximum annual transaction amount for 2021. The auditors
of the Company has provided the Board with a letter, confirming that
they were not aware of any matters that cause them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions disclosed have exceeded the annual
cap set by the Company.

Details of other related party transactions of the Company for the Year
under Review and undertaken in the usual course of business are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. Saved as
disclosed above, none of these related party transactions constituted a
discloseable connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the best knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of
the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has maintained appropriate Directors’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors during the Year under Review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the Year under Review.

AUDITORS

There was no change in auditor of the Company during the past three
years.

The financial statements now presented have been audited by Ernst &
Young, Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 24
May 2022 to Friday, 27 May 2022, both days inclusive, for the purpose
of determining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend the forthcoming AGM
to be held on 27 May 2022, during such period no transfer of Shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for attending the AGM, the Shareholders
should ensure that all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms are lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 23 May 2022.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the financial results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 263 to 264 of this
annual report.

By Order of the Board

LI Cheng

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

This is the 6th Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG”) report
published by the Company for the purpose of disclosing the initiatives of
the Group in relation to its ESG development.

As per the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
(the “Reporting Guide”) published by the Stock Exchange, the Board
has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting.
The Board is responsible for assessing and determining the risks in
relation to the ESG of the Group, as well as ensuring the establishment
of appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems by the Group. The management of the Group is responsible for
confirming to the Board of the effectiveness of these systems.

The ESG report aims at improving the stakeholders’ confidence and
understanding of the Group’s environmental and social performance
as well as the sustainable development strategies of the Group. The
Board of the Company has reviewed and confirmed the ESG report has
contained material, complete and balanced contents.

The report is prepared based on the principles set out in the Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

The ESG report covers the Group’s three main businesses in the PRC:
(i) dyeing and processing of differentiated fabric, (i) RMAA service, (iii)
properties investment and (iv) environmental water project operation.

This report covers the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year
under Review”).

Throughout the Report, we adopt the reporting principles of materiality,
quantitative, consistency and balance, as described below:

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted and reviewed annually
to assess the relative importance of the ESG topics identified. Topics that
are relevant and important to the operation of the Group and stakeholders
must be covered in this Report.

Quantitative: If the key performance indicators (KPIs) have been
established, they must be measurable and applicable to valid
comparisons under appropriate conditions.

Consistency: ESG data presented in this Report are prepared using
consistent methodologies over time unless otherwise specified either in
text or footnote.

Balance: The Group appoints an external sustainability consultant in
the preparation of the report to present an unbiased picture of our
achievements and performances
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HEREQRS

BOARD STATEMENT OF ESG MANAGEMENT
STRATEGIES

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company committed to
incorporating the ESG mindset into business operations. The Board
accepts full responsibility for the sustainability of the Group, including
formulating strategies, overseeing the Group’s ESG related risks and
opportunities, and approving the ESG Report. The Board are also
required to keep abreast of and comply with the latest regulatory
requirements before the approval of the ESG Report.

The Board believes that the management of ESG-related risks and
opportunities is essential to the Group’s efficient and effective operation.
The risk management and internal control systems assure accuracy,
reliability and the timeliness of the data presented and sustainable
development measures. The Board will also regularly review the
implementation effectiveness of the systems and whether they cover
major control measures on material ESG issues.

STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The Group’s stakeholders include governments and regulators,
shareholders and investors, employees, business tenants, consumers,
suppliers and community. The Group attaches great importance
to communicating with stakeholders and has established effective
communication channels with stakeholders to learn about their demands
and expectation, to discuss and respond to the corporate social
responsibility concerns of all stakeholders, so as to promote the growth
of both sides.
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Stakeholders
MRS

Expectations and concerns
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HEREQRS
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HEREQRS

ENVIRONMENT ASPECT

In response to the national requirement for accelerating the development
of “conservation-oriented society”, the Group proactively complied with
relevant laws and regulations in relation to emissions and pollutants
control, and implemented the “Quality and Environmental Management
Manual” in association with the management procedure manuals in
relation to waste water treatment, gas emission, waste handling and
resources management process to monitor the treatment and disposal
of waste water, gas emissions and waste disposal. The Group has been
accredited with the ISO 14001 environmental management certification
since February 2015 and has completed the external audit and renewal
related to ISO and the expiry date of the ISO extended to 2024 during the
Year under Review.

Application for Global Recycled Standard 4.0 (referred to as GRS
4.0) was first made in 2020. The certificate was successfully
obtained in February 2020, which is an international, voluntary and
comprehensive product standard that sets out the requirements for
third party certification of recycling content, chain of custody, social and
environmental practices and chemical restrictions. It currently aims at
increasing the use of recycled materials in products and to reduce and
eliminate the hazards caused by their production, to lay the foundations
for the international marketing of products and to carry out annual audits
and renewals of GRS standards.

A1. Emission policies
Gas emission policy

The Group has formulated the “Gas Emission Management
Procedure” in order to effectively and efficiently manage its gas
emission and ensure the Group’s compliance with the relevant
rules and regulations regarding gas emissions in the PRC.

The Group primarily produces the greenhouse gas (“GHG”) due
to energy consumption in the production process. Pursuant to the
GHG Protocol (an international standard for measuring emissions
from private and public operations) in translating the GHG emission
resulted from energy consumption under Scope 2 Guidance
of the GHG Protocol (an international standard regarding how
corporations measuring emissions from purchased or acquired
electricity, steam, heat and cooling), the Group has a total GHG
emission of approximately 10,890 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalence during the Year under Review.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

In December 2020, Yongsheng Dyeing invested RMB265,000 to
complete the remediation and upgrading of major volatile organic
compounds (VOCs) and invested RMB2.2 million in real-time online
monitoring of VOC management. According to report by Hangzhou
Tongbiao Environmental Monitoring Technology Co. Ltd* (4751 3&®
ZIRIBE AR M AR /AT, all indicators of VOCs have met the
requirements of this remediation, and have successfully passed
the remediation performance assessment, further standardising
the prevention and control of volatile organic pollutants. For water
consumption, effort was made to improve water recycling; and for
power consumption, air compressors and online transformation
are adopted; electronic transformation has been carried out, and
the annual energy consumption of water, electricity and steam has
dropped by more than 5%, and all pollutants have reached the
emission target, achieving better economic and social benefits.

The Group’s objective is to achieve decreasing the GHG emission
by 6% and 12% in coming 5 years and 10 years respectively.

Waste water treatment policy

The Group has formulated the “Waste Water Management
Procedure” in order to effectively and efficiently manage the
treatment and disposal of waste water and comply with the rules
and regulations regarding waste water disposal.

The Group adopted measures to separate waste water produced
during its production from other uses. Waste water segregation is
adopted in the production sites in order to facilitate segregation in
treatments for different types of waste water.

The Group’s waste water is mainly produced in the dyeing facilities.
In 2020, the Group installed the Distributed Control System
(“DCS”) central control system and ammonia nitrogen automatic
monitoring system for wastewater treatment process in its
workshops. The DCS central control system is designed to monitor
the whole process of wastewater treatment by continuously
monitoring sewage inflow, inflow temperature, PH value, operating
condition of circulating water pump, discharge amount and
other real time indexes on a 24-hour basis. With such system,
wastewater treatment was under overall monitoring and steady
control, ensuring discharged wastewater after treatment met
environmental requirements, such as Chemical Oxygen Demand
under 200mg/L, PH value within the range of 6 to 9, ammonia-
nitrogen below 20mg/L and total nitrogen below 30mg/L.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HEREQRS

In December 2020, Yongsheng Dyeing invested approximately
RMBO0.8 million to upgrade all the sewage pipelines in the plant
area to realize “zero liquid discharge”. New oil & water separator,
3-pool septic tank and initial rainwater collection pool were built,
and 18 rain-sewage joints were dug and repaired and 66 damaged
points in pipelines were repaired without excavation, and signs for
rain and sewage and flowing direction of about 300 manholes were
set, thus the goal of “full collection of sewage, complete diversion
of rainwater and sewage, standardized discharge from sewage
pipe” was achieved.

The Group's objective is to achieve decreasing the water waste by
8% and 15% in coming 5 years and 10 years respectively.

Waste management policy

The Group has formulated the “Waste Management Procedure”
in order to effectively and efficiently manage the treatment and
disposal of solid waste.

Hazardous waste produced by the Group during its production
process mainly includes dyeing sludge and waste oil from stenter.
The Group stores such hazardous waste separately by their
classification and adds labels on each depositary to specify the
type, quantity and deposited time before they were transferred to
professional third party for disposal.

In June 2018, Yongsheng Dyeing invested approximately
RMB218,000 to purchase a high-pressure diaphragm filter press
to upgrade the sludge treatment part of the sewage system, which
not only significantly improved the printing and dyeing sludge
treatment efficiency, but also made the treated sludge have a
very low water content, thus significantly reducing the cost of
subsequent sludge disposal.

During the Year under Review, there is no investment made for
reducing waste as a result of the COVID 19 outbreak.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Non-hazardous waste produced by the Group mainly derived
from packaging materials in production and domestic wastes
from staff dormitory and office. The Group strives to reduce the
packaging materials of the products. The Group maintains optimal
design for packaging materials in accordance with environmental
protection requirements, for example: to reduce product size,
minimise packaging and save storage space. Given the needs to
meet customer expectations and logistics requirements, the Group
strives to cut down the usage of packaging materials. Wooden
supports are used for product storage and auxiliary transportation
and will be disposed of as general industrial waste only when
damaged. The new wooden supports are those recyclable old
wooden supports. On the other hand, domestic wastes are
handled by municipal cleaning service.

The Group has always used packaging materials carefully to
reduce unnecessary wastes. The Group understands that after
customers receive the Group’s products, there is a high chance
that they will not keep the packaging materials but discard them.
Therefore, the Group actively takes different measures to reduce
the use of packaging materials. In addition, all packaging plastic
bags and adhesive papers are recycled as covering materials
for product protection during the production process, and the
waste packaging plastic bags and adhesive papers are all handed
over for recycling. Also, the Group strictly controls the supply of
packaging materials to prevent the use of materials that cause
serious pollution to the environment.

The Group’s objective is to achieve decreasing the hazardous
waste by 5% and 10% in coming 5 years and 10 years
respectively.
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R -HEREQRS

2021 A1 Emissions KPI ZE T A IR AE RIS E

TR A E B B F E RN R ER PR

The following table sets out the gas emission and waste disposal

data of the Group for the Year under Review: EEEY RIBHE

KPI Specific indicator Emission Intensity

KPI BiBER BEE EBE

Al.1 Waste water 592,584 tons 9,218.79 tons/RMB million sales

Al1 EEXK 592,5840 9,218.79M8 B E T AR EHELE

A1.2 GHG

Al2  CRERE
Scope 1 95 tons 1.48 tons/RMB million sales
EHE1 950iA 1.48ME, BB T AR IEHES
Scope 2 10,890 tons 169.41 tons/RMB million sales
#[E2 10,8908 169.4108, " BE T AR IEIHELE
Scope 3 325 tons 5.06 tons/RMB million sales
#E3 3250 5.06ME " BE T ARBIHELE

A1.3 Hazardous waste 500 tons 7.78 tons/RMB million sales

A3 BEEEY 5000 7.78ME  HE T ARBIHELE

Al.4 Non-Hazardous N/A N/A

A4 EEEY 3E B TEA

The following table sets out the consumption rate of electricity,
water and packaging materials for the Year under Review:

A2. Use of resources

TRIHENEEFANET KR BEME

BOHFER !

A2, BR{ER

KPI Specific Indicator Resource Intensity

KPI BESER BR BE

A2.1 Energy 18.24 million kwh 0.28 million kwh/RMB million sales

A21  BEIR 18245 BT R 0.28BEEBTER, BETAREHER
A2.2 Water 592,584 tons 9,218.79 tons/RMB million sales

A22 K 502,58401 9,218.79M ' BHE T AR EHELE
A2.5 Packing Materials 378 tons 5.88 tons/RMB million sales

A255  GEER 3781 5.88MF,  BE T ARIBIHELE

Please refer to paragraph A3 below for description of energy
use efficiency initiatives adopted by the Group and the results

achieved.

TS Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2021

=S

W B R PRES BB A& o

A2 T XA BB AEBETRMERER



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

During the Year under Review, as the Group’s Yongsheng Plaza
was under construction and completed in the second half of
2021. The decoration was now in process. We took all reasonable
measures to minimize the environmental impact during the
construction process.

In terms of waste disposal, we set aside a dedicated temporary
space for waste storage at the construction site. Waste is stored
by category, with safety precautions and visible signs for waste that
may cause secondary pollution. Waste shall not be scattered or
mixed during transportation, and will be sent to the units or sites
approved by government departments for treatment and disposal.

In terms of construction waste, decoration waste and material
dumping, the Group takes the following measures:

(1)  The construction waste and decoration waste shall be
dumped by category in a centralized way and cleaned
in a timely manner. Closed containers shall be used for
temporary domestic waste and water can be sprinkled
before removing waste, if appropriate, to avoid dust.
Quialified transportation companies will be engaged to
remove waste, so as not to dump waste indiscriminately.

(2)  The construction waste in the building structure and
decoration waste will be transported through closed special
waste channel or closed containers, and is strictly prohibited
to be thrown in the air. The construction site is equipped with
an enclosed waste collection facility, with construction waste
and domestic waste stored separately. The construction
waste will be removed in time according to regulations with
water sprinkled in advance to reduce the air pollution of
dust. Vacuum cleaner shall be used as much as possible
and dust-generating equipment, such as wind blower, shall
be avoided when cleaning dust and waste before pouring
concrete. Protective measures, such as local shielding,
covering and water showering, may be adopted when
conducting mechanical chiseling.

(8)  The waste on the upper level will be transported to the
ground by tower crane, material hoist or pulley, and no
arbitrary piling and throwing of waste is allowed. On-site
waste shall be transported outward in time, and no overnight
waste shall be stored on site. During the construction of
earthwork, a dedicated person will sprinkle and sweep the
floating soil stored at the site every day to prevent dust when
wind is blowing. The lime powder and all kinds of adulterated
bulk materials must be stored in the warehouse or tightly
covered. Anti-dust measures shall be taken for sand, stone
and other bulk construction materials and earthwork, such
as surface cure, covering and others.

(4)  We strictly deal with decoration waste, it shall be cleaned
and classified by the staff. Those that can be recycled shall
be recycled by relevant recycling units, while those that
cannot be recycled shall be entrusted to the local sanitation
institute for harmless treatment.
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AS.

The Group’s RMAA services fall under the construction industry
which may generate some hazardous waste due to the business
nature. Widely Construction & Engineering Limited (“Widely
Construction”) endeavors to take all reasonable measures to
minimize the impact on the environment during its operations
and has been seeking ways less harmful to the environment.
The control measures include: (i) spraying water when dusty
construction activities (such as demolition, drilling or excavation)
are carried out; (i) transferring waste to other sites for reusing; and
(iii) sorting waste for recycling.

Widely Construction

FEFENRMAARG BN R RETENEBIE
BRI EELE - LERSEY - -BHNERIRE
BRAR ((BRFMERE) ORI EEE
o EEBEBRRTRERLSHRENEER
—EHESKHERBEERDOHNTN - EFIIEH
BIE ()ETTSREERINE TGS (MIFE - S#EER
SHATHE) B EITRK ()R EYEZEEM
TETBAR ; RKli)EEY) D 8 KOl -

BFZEE

GHG Emissions

BE AR

Direct Emission (Scope 1) (tons)
Direct Emission (Scope 2) (tons)
Direct Emission (Scope 3) (tons)
Non-hazardous waste disposal (tons)

Non-hazardous waste intensity
(tons/construction project)

Environmental protection measures

The main types of energy which the Group used in production are
electricity and steam; all were supplied by the municipal facilities.

The Group aims at increasing energy efficiency through proper
equipment maintenance and replacement of factory equipment.
The Group has reduced electricity consumption from production
by upgrading and replacing air compression systems. The Group
adopted the “coal-to-steam” system which uses steam as driving
force of stenter machines. Such system significantly reduces gas
emission.
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During the Year under Review, Yongsheng Dyeing successfully
passed the test on the enterprise’s electric energy balance
conducted by the Government of Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province. The test mainly focused on the following two
major parts of the enterprise: i) electricity consumption and power
balance test, including power load, daily load rate, main electricity
consumption per day, high and low voltage output line three-
phase current and other parameters; and ii) the actual operating
conditions test on on-site electrical equipment to understand
whether electrical equipment operates smoothly and whether there
is power-saving potential.

Based on the above test data in two aspects and combined with
the comprehensive analysis of the current status of equipment
operation, the Group proposed a related rectification plan for the
production process. Through rectification, Yongsheng Dyeing
finally saved energy by over 7%.

In July 2020, Yongsheng Dyeing engaged CCTEG Hangzhou
Research Institute (EH £ BHINIRRIFZEE AR AR to
make a comprehensive electric energy balance test report on
the company. By December, a total of RMB3.28 million has been
invested to carry out technical renovation of related equipment and
lines, and the rectification plan has been basically completed. At
present, it is estimated that Yongsheng Dyeing can save 950,000
kwh of electricity and RMB750,000 of electricity charges annually,
basically reaching the expected goal of reconstruction and passing
the test on the enterprise’s electric energy balance conducted
by the Government of Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province.

The Group has a circulating cooling water system in place to
reduce the consumption of water for cooling down during this
Period. Furthermore, Yongsheng Dyeing has installed a water
recycling system to recycle dyed water generated from its
production and reduce water consumption.

During the Year under Review, Widely Construction advocated
to reduce the consumption of fuel, electricity, and improve the
resources efficiency by: (i) encouraging its employees to switch off
the lights and electronic appliances before they leave the office; (ii)
encouraging its employees to set the temperature of the office’s air
conditioner to 25.5 Degree Celsius; (i) encouraging its employees
to use double-sided printing instead of single-sided printing; and
(iv) arranging the surplus materials on the construction sites to be
re-used in other construction sites instead of dumping.

RIR-HERERES
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Environmentally friendly products application

During the Year under Review, the Group continued to use
environmentally friendly products that were granted with two
national invention patents. The “Nylon Ultrafine Fabric Filament
and Leather-Feel Velvet Fabric” are manufactured with lower
temperature printing and dyeing methods, which significantly
reduced energy consumption and emissions, as compared with
the manufacturing of regular polyester ultrafine fiber. Meanwhile,
the microfiber filaments of “Ultrafine Fabric Filament and Naked

IRREm R

REBRER  AEREETCHERMERX
HRFEMNRFRER - [ERERBAMERMK
R T ERERENR S EEE &A
TREVE R AR R A B A A BE R MR D BEOR
HEERHER - B TBEERARERE
REY B ERMTTEEETRERLH
FTEEXM EMSEEBRPHBRLIH
THBEK - ZEMESHNERRRKERT

Shammy Fabric” require less or no dyestuff in production resulting ENRE R IRTR ©
in less or no sewage being discharged during the production
process. These two patented products achieve energy-saving and
environmental protection at the same time.
Evaluation of the environmental performance: IRIERIBAIETE
Yongsheng Dyeing
KERHEE
2021 2020 Changes
—T—F —TCTE )
50.86 million 44,62 million
Production volume meters meters 14.0%
ES 50.86 5 & 3K 44625 B K 14.0%
Water usage (tons/per meter) 0.01075 0.01313 (18.1%)
ke
(Mg, 5XK)
Electricity usage (kwh/per meter) 0.33854 0.35 (3.3%)
HE&s
(FEE/&X)
Steam usage (tons/per meter) 0.00162 0.00161 0.6%
B#AE
(0, §K)
Water treatment usage (tons/per meter) 0.01144 0.01298 (11.9%)
KERIES
(Mg, K)
2021 Initiatives e Water recycle initiatives
B —F i KIBIRET &
e Sewage pre-treatment facility
[B% 7K 78 B IR 5% T
e Shift from coal-to-gas to reduce exhaust emission
PR PO B 0 BE R
e Increased the overall efficiency in electricity usage
17 R A
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A4. Climate Change

Climate change can significantly affect our business operations if
the climate-related risks are not appropriately assessed. According
to the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosure, climate-
related risks are divided into two major categories: transition risks
and physical risks.

In-line with the mega-trend, there is a global transition to a
lower-carbon economy which refers to transition risks. Policy,
technology and market changes in mitigating and adapting a
low-carbon economy may lead to changes to the Group. The
sustainability committee is proactively looking for new technologies
and equipment to respond to low-carbon economy. There is no
significant impact on operations at the present stage.

Physical risks can be caused acutely (event driven) or chronically
(long-term shift) in climate patterns. Due to the nature of the core
business, climate change has a limited impact on daily operations
so there is no significant impact at the present stage.

A4.

RIR-HERERES
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SOCIAL ASPECTS
Care for the employees
B1. Employment

The management of the Group believes that “cooperation” and
“reciprocity” are the key success elements in a harmonious
employment relationship. Hence, the Group strictly complies
with regulations to safeguard our employees’ lawful rights. All
employees of the Group in Hong Kong are covered by Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the
Laws of Hong Kong); while employees in the PRC are covered
by the Labour Contract Law of the PRC, Social Insurance Law,
Juvenile Protection Act, Measures for Paid Annual Leave, the
Minimum Wage Regulations, and our female labours are also
protected by Female Workers’ Labour Protection Regulations of
the PRC. Apart from competitive salaries and incentives such as
bonus and share options which is based on the evaluation of their
contributions to the Group, the Group also provides promotion
prospects and training opportunities to staff. During the Year under
Review, the Group is not aware of any material non-compliance.

The Group also provides a series of facilities and benefits for its
staff and their families. The Group is committed to equipping its
staff with all-rounded skills and developing the full potential of its
staff. Most of the senior management worked over five years for the
Group.

Gender equality and diversity

The Group promotes equal opportunity and advocates diversity.
All recruitment and promotions are based on meritocracy and all
candidates will be considered during the recruitment procedures.
Selection of candidates will be based on a diverse range of
criteria, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience, skills and knowledge.
Necessary procedures are also exercised to ensure fair and non-
discriminatory recruitment.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 304 employees
and all of them are full-time employees. During the Year under
Review, the Group’s overall average employee turnover rate is
approximately 0.3%.

Sd Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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The following table sets for the turnover rates of the Group’s employees TREHAEEES N B BEFE AR
for the Year under Review

Number of
employees
resigned
Summary of Employee Data in Year 2021 Turnover rates
—E-—5F
B S BB E BRES AR 3RS
By gender Male 1 0.5%
Eigk k-l bay B4
Female 0 0.0%
7
By age Aged 18-30 0 0.0%
BRERE D 18 305%
Aged 31-40 1 1.0%
31E405%
Aged 41-60 0 0.0%
A1 ZE60R
Aged over 60 0 0.0%
605 A =
By geographical region Hong Kong 0 0.0%
sl =y BE
PRC 1 0.3%
H
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Number of Percentage of
employees as at employees as at
Employee Structure 31.12.2021 31.12.2021
R-E-—% n-e-—f
+Z-HB=+—H +=ZBA=+—H
BT ZETHE ZETHSL
Total number of employees 304 100.0%
BT/
By gender Male 213 70.1%
R85 B4
Female 89 29.9%
gegi
By age Aged 18-30 38 12.5%
HERE D 18-305%
Aged 31-40 98 32.2%
31-40%%
Aged 41-60 165 54.3%
41-605%
Aged over 60 3 1.0%
605% A £
By employment type General Staff 276 90.8%
R EERE D —RET
Middle Management 18 5.3%
FIREIEE
Senior Management 10 3.3%
EiREIEE
By geographical region Hong Kong 17 5.6%
&8 o B5H
PRC 287 94.6%
R
Staff activities ET,Z7%

The Group has organised various leisure activities and festival
celebrations for its staff. During the Year under Review, the Group
organised a series of activities to celebrate festivals like Chinese
New Year, Women’s Day, etc.. The Group also organised staff
travel and other sports activities, in order to encourage work-life
balance among its staff. The Group arranged thanks giving gifts to
its staff during Chinese New Year, Mid-Autumn Festival, etc.. Being
a caring company, senior management of the Group regularly visit
staff under inferior living conditions and assist them with sincere
gratitude.

The Group applied for subsidies of staying in Hangzhou and held
the Chinese New Year’s Eve activities for its staff that were unable
to return home during the Spring Festival due to the epidemic.
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Health and Safety

Emphasis on Production Safety

The Group strictly abides by the local laws and regulations related
to employee health and safety, such as the Production Safety Law
of People’ Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
and the Measures for the Supervision and Administration of
Occupational Health Surveillance. The Group regulates the work
regarding production safety and prevention of occupational
diseases in a standardised way and strengthens the protection
of female employees through a series of internal rules and
regulations.

In addition, in accordance with the requirements of systems
such as the Safety Production Management System, the Group
enhances accident and non-compliance management, supervises
production safety, and carefully analyses and reflects on the
lessons learned from non-compliance or production accidents to
prevent further non-compliance. The principal of “four prohibitions”
on incomplete cause investigation, incomplete disciplinary action
for responsible staff member, incomplete rectification measures
and incomplete training for relevant staff member is upheld to
improve safety education and implement rectifying measures.

The Group has installed comprehensive fire alarm systems and
fire-fighting equipment at each workplace to reduce potential fire
risk. All of the Group’s new staff has to attend the safety trainings.
Apart from the basic safety training, the Group also has focused
on implementing the “6S” lean management system in daily works.
The Group also requires proper safety training to be conducted
before new equipment or techniques being employed or being
operated.

RIR-HERERES

B2, #EHZZ

BTt E

FEEBERETEMRE T RERZ2ER
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BRI - HHERERERS
Emphasis on occupational disease prevention BB R E
As employees’ health and safety are of paramount importance HREINEEREZE2EWRNER  A&EEEM
to the operation of the Group, the Group has accordingly EHE—RIBEBAEZEERRUNAEE TR
formulated a series of relevant personnel management policy to TR BmRE BN T ERE -
provide employees with a healthy, positive and motivative working
atmosphere.
The Group posts notices and warning signals at workplaces where FEEERECENMFETSAMNETR
occupational hazards may occur in order to raise employees’ self— REEEITERMERH-
protection awareness.
In 2021, there was no working day lost due to work injury and there A TEZ—FouwEAIEmMBATIEAE.
were no employee casualties due to work. TEETRERTERAFHMIETHEZR-
Work-Related Fatality Year 2021 Year 2020 Year 2019
AT ERAERMIET —E-—F —ECEF —E—HE
Work injury cases < 3 days T 51E2E< 35 0 1 0
Work injury cases > 3 days TE1E%E> 38 0 0 0
Fatalities FET 0 0 0
Lost days due to work injury ATHEMBARITIEHE 0 9 0
B3. Development and training B3. #EERIEI
Communications are keys to the success of the Group. Internal BERAEEMINBEE  AEBTHET
management meetings of the Group were held regularly, such as ABEEgR WEEAEGR EXTHE
management monthly meetings, periodic meetings for ad-hoc E - EEEAOEEREG LI BIRFA
projects, functional meetings and daily team briefings. Also, in ZEAERE REMRESEAERERES
order to promote a safe production environment, efficiency and KEEBBAETRHEAREI WHETLA
enhance the quality of the Group’s products, systematic trainings B BN TEZ 2t g MR
were provided to staff, such as new staff induction program, fire A SRR RENERME

prevention seminars, work safety seminars, seminars on technical
topics, managerial skills, rules and regulations updates, etc..
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A total of 5,200 training hours were conducted in the Year under
Review, and training hours (categorized by gender and employee

category) are shown below:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR-HERERARS

REIBEFERN > &HETT5,200/NEIE > 5555 &
M REEERRE D) HEYT !

Occupational Training Data 2021
LS| —E-F
Training Hours of Employees by Gender Male 3,825
R 2 BV R B3I R 8K B4
Female 1,375
gz
Training Hours of Employees by Category General Staff 4,910
R 8 B e B 15l B TEET
Middle Management 225
FAREIRE
Senior Management 65
EREEE
Percentage of employees received training by Gender Male 81%
BERE D REERIBIIE AL B
Female 70%
Z4E
Percentage of employees received training by Category General Staff 80%
ZEN D RERZEIIE ST Z®ET
Middle Management 61%
AR EIEE
Senior Management 30%
EiREEE
Average Training Hours of Employees by Gender Male 22.1
R B D BB E T IIE IR 8L St
Female 22.2
Z4
Average Training Hours of Employees by Category General Staff 22.1
BB D B R & T IEHIRF 8L LZBET
Middle Management 22.5
PAREIRE
Senior Management 21.7
SR EIERE
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BRI - HHERERERS
B4. Labour standards

The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations
in relation of the prohibition of child and forced labour. The Group
strictly prohibited employment of any staff under the age of 16.
The human resources department of the Group strictly implements
measures to prevent any violations thereof, for example, identity
cards, certificates of skills and graduation certificates of each staff
member are verified before signing formal employment agreements
with the candidates. In case any irregularities in ages, identities
and/ or validities of employment status were found, employment
will be terminated immediately, and the Group will report the
incident to relevant authorities. The Group has complied with all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to employment matters
during the Year under Review. The Group also has measures
in place to reconfirm whether the newly recruited staff meets
the recruitment criteria. The Group will pay minimum salary on
a monthly basis which is no less than those required by local
government in accordance with the government regulations during
the probation period. It will determine staff salary in accordance
with the skills and technical requirements of the position.

B4.

FITHRA

FEEBRRETEMBLEIRRAFE I
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Efficient process for talent development
EMHIAT BRI

Objective setting
BRRE

Competency Development
BENER

Performance Appraisal

RiETE

Vocational Development
HEER

Establishing clear performance
targets to create value for
achieving the Company’s
business objectives
REBWNEEBR RAE
(FERERAEEE

Conducting in depth analysis
and formulating a targeted plan
for performance development,
S0 as to ensure performance
optimization

RADHT > TS B IERE
WEEESE MEEEENR
PN

Conducting systematic
assessment and evaluation
on the results of performance
targets
HBBEWERTHARNR
REZE B

Proposing a clear plan that
provides a path to career
success for employees
BRRERETE > 2 B THRMHE—F
BERMENE

e Communicating with the
responsible personnel to
confirm the short-term and
long-term performance
output objectives
undertakings
BeENEE WA
MEMABENEEESD

e Setting development targets
to ensure the growth of
organisational capability
SRR IRABBAE IR RMY
BRERER

e Clarifying the content
and direction of our
trainings and ensuring their
implementation
BRFEIE I A B 75 ) > BE R

S

e Carrying out training and
capability improvement
work with a focus on core
competence development
Bz OENE R REE
B NiRF TAF

e |mproving the management
skills to support the
achievement of a high
performance process
REEBEERE UXFS

BERRENBIR

e Establishing performance
assessing standards for
performance targets
HEHEW BT REZEET

e Evaluating the effectiveness
of the employees’ learning
and development program
TMEETRRERREIEE
BB RIE

e Careers development and
guidance for employees
ETHEREEE

¢ Design and implementation
of performance incentive
system
BXHBRE RSB
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¢ Aflexible career
development system that
allows inter-departmental
transfer, vertical promotion
and cross-grade promotion
BENHEERERE R EHR
BEEEEA BEESA

* In-house mentor program

PERE M5t B

e Task training program

EFIEINE

e Internal job rotation
tmEstE

e |nternal prq‘eot program
WERIEE 8
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Supply chain management
Corporate certifications, qualifications and awards

The Group promotes the concept of “innovation” with strong
research and development capabilities. The Group has obtained
certifications in quality and environment management aspects
(1ISO9001 and I1ISO14001). In addition, the Group has obtained
a series of corporate certifications, qualifications and awards as
listed out in the “Certifications and Qualifications” section above in
recognition of its effort in promoting “innovation”. The Group has
completed the external audit and renewal related to ISO and the
expiry date of the ISO extended to 2024 during the Year under
Review.

Procurement reliability and relationships with suppliers

The Group monitors its procurement procedures closely as raw
materials directly affect the quality of products. During the Year
under Review, the major suppliers of the Group were mainly
located in Zhejiang province, Jiangsu province and other regions
of the PRC and had over 5 years of relationship with the Group
on average. When liaising with new suppliers, the sourcing
department of the Group is responsible for evaluating the potential
suppliers with reference to the criteria set out in the “Stakeholders
Environmental Management Procedures”, for example the
compliance of relevant statutory requirements, product quality,
production stability, compliance with safety and environmental
protection rules and regulations and pricing. The Group only
engages the suppliers which have passed the evaluation.
Subsequent to the engagement of the suppliers, the Group
performs regular evaluation of its suppliers in order to monitor
product quality. For the Year under Review, the Group worked
closely with 253 suppliers, 200 and 53 of them are in Hong Kong
and China respectively.

Emergencies management

The Group formulated the “Emergency Management
Procedures” and “Fire Prevention Management Procedures”
and other production safety management systems to cope with
emergencies. In addition, the Group has designated personnel to
conduct safety inspections on production facilities and conduct
instant follow-up when any exceptional situation was found.

In order to minimise the environmental and social impact due to
emergencies, the Company will set up a central team to manage
emergencies and designate relevant personnel to formulate
evacuation plans, conduct post-incidental repair and investigations
in order to avoid the re-occurrence of similar incidents in
accordance with the “Ratification and Prevention Measures
Management Procedures”.

BS.
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RIBE - (1S REARRS
B6. Product responsibility B6. EmEFE

The Group is committed to offer quality products to customers
and comply with the requirements of relevant standards in relation
to health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy matters of
its products. The Group has formulated the “Product Monitoring
and Measurement Management Procedures”, the “Defective
Product Management Procedures” and the “Data Analysis
Monitoring Procedures” in order to strictly manage product quality.
The following chart illustrates the quality and environmental
management system framework of the Group:

The quality and environmental
management system framework of the Group

FTEBZEERIREEERRAER

e Customer m

requirements
e Environmental factors

FERRNWATRPREBREER BTEMH
EnRERZE - ES RERFESFEZME
BRERE - AEBEHE EmNERA
EEERF  FERREERRFI REH
DTEGRER UEREEEREE
ITRAEENEERRIGEEERANER:

e Laws and regulations

Management

) duties
requirements T m
o EEFER
o IRIBEIRIR

o EEERER Measurement,
Resources analysis and Customer
mzeln?g(;ment improvement satisfaction
HREE A D Environmental
M performance
EESE
IRIRER

Product realisation

(Manufacturing) Products
anuracturing JX [}
EQER R -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

During the Year under Review, there were no material recalls,
significant complaints against the products, or any material amount
of sales return for safety and health reasons.

Patents

As one of the leading manufacturers of dyeing and processing of
differentiated polyester filament fabrics in the PRC, product quality
is the top priority of the Group. The Group owned 11 utility model
patents and 2 invention patents. The number of patents owned by
of the Group is as follows:
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patents patents being owned

BHAER BRMEER EEENRAH

Yongsheng Dyeing KR REE 2 11 13

The Group sets “innovation” as the top priority for its business
growth. The Group pays great attention to the protection of
intellectual property rights and product secrecy in order to
safeguard the results of its innovation. The product information
department is responsible for managing the patents and projects
of the Group. The Group will cooperate with intellectual property
service companies to improve the quantity and quality of future
patents applications. The Group will continue to develop a
sustainable innovation model through internal research and
development, industry-university-research cooperation and others
research and development efforts.

The Group will also perform periodic customer satisfaction surveys
in order to understand customer demand.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HEREQRS

Privacy Protection and Intellectual Property

The Group is committed to comply with the privacy laws and
regulations. The Group undertakes to strictly comply with the
requirements of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter
486 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Corporate Finance Consultant
Code of Conduct and local legislations, to ensure that all data are
securely kept in the internal system with access control. The Group
has separated the customer data from other ordinary information
to protect customers’ privacy. Meanwhile, only authorized
personnel can access the personal data collected from the
Group’s customers. Through the internal training and confidential
agreements with employees, the Group emphasizes confidentiality
obligations and the legal consequences of the breaches of relevant
rules.

While striving for excellent quality and high-tech quality, the Group
complies with the requirements of Patents Ordinance (Cap. 514)
and Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FZE A R+
FEEFI%)) focusing on protecting original designs and legally
obtaining copyrights. Also the staff periodically check the Hong
Kong Intellectual Property Journal and other international source,
we will raise objection accordingly if there is new application
of trademark registration which is likely to make confuse with
the Group’s trademarks. To improve productivity and market
competitiveness, the Group has obtained relevant patents for its
products and has used them in its operations. The Group also will
conclude an e-commerce platform agreement with customers to
achieve the consumer data protection.

During the Year Under Review, we were not aware of any incidents
of non-compliance with regulations and/or voluntary codes
concerning the Group's service information and labelling, as well as
marketing communications including advertising.
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SR R R A EE

REBRNBTIRERRER - AEEK
EERET(EAER RLAR) FRA) (FEEM
55486%) ~ E B E R MR T ER K EMOE
BORE BERANBRAZSREFREER]
WEHERER - AEBCRERENRH
tZEERDFEE WRER PRI
AR SAERRALATEREAERR
FPWENBEAEL -BBAMEINIREES
STUREHZR AEERBREEERER
ERRAPSIERNERER

FERFURERSNKEENEE > &
BT (FERRP) (FBEGFES145) K (F
EANRENBEEFZE)NER  ETERERA
REMEGEERRE-BR ETEMRERS
BANHERARMEMBEERELN  MEFHD
RAMEAFERAEENERES  HM
EHEREEZ BESEERTHRF -
FEFECESHEBANERSERN  LELES
ER-AERATRHEZTFREITEFEB YA
g UWBERWHBERENRE-

REBEERN HMHLFNBTEAERBRE
EEARBEAREEUAREHEN (B1EE
=) BERK/SHBERTRINE S



B7.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Anti-corruption

The Group emphasises on transparency and responsibility in
order to fulfill the corporate motto of “integrity”. The Group strives
to achieve zero occurrence of incidents that are detrimental to
the interests of shareholders, investors, customers and other
stakeholders of the Group. The Group had formulated a set of anti—
corruption policies to ensure compliance with all applicable anti—
corruption laws and regulations in relation to bribery, extorting,
fraud and money laundering. All directors, staff, agents and
representatives and any individuals acting on behalf of the Group
are prohibited from directly or indirectly offering, giving, soliciting or
receiving any form of bribe, kickback or other corruptive payment
or anything of value, to or from any person or organisation,
including government agencies, individual government officials,
private companies and employees of those private companies
under any circumstances. During the Year under Review, the
Group did not have any non-compliance with laws and regulations
in respect of anti-corruption, including but not limited to Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Criminal Law of the PRC.

Moreover, the Group had formulated a whistle-blowing policy to
increase employees’ awareness to uphold integrity. The chairman,
chief executive officer and the audit committee of the Company
will receive report of the whistle-blowing incidents and have
the discretion to initiate independent investigations according
to the nature of the incidents or refer the incidents to relevant
regulatory authorities. The Group communicated with investors
and stakeholders periodically by publishing quarterly financial and
business updates, organising visits to its factories and arranging
focus group meetings with institutional investors and stock
commentators. The Group also published announcements in
relation to its major development in accordance with the seven
“Principles of Responsible Ownership” published by the Securities
and Futures Commission (“SFC”).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HEREQRS

BS.

In December 2021, the Board and different departments of the
Group improve employees’ comprehensive understanding of fraud
concept, fraud behavior, and methods to prevent and defuse
fraud and enhance their awareness through providing various
anti-franchluant study materials and off-line trainings. During the
Year under Review, the Group did not receive any complaint from
employees.

Whistle-blowing policies are published on the homepage of the
Group's official website (www.chinaysgroup.com). Customers,
suppliers, business partners and employees can report any
suspicious event by means of e-mail, telephone and mailing:

Phone No.: +852-2776 5229

Fax: +852-2994 9699

Community investment

Community service

Management of the Group actively participates in the public
positions in community service. The chairman of the Group
has been elected as the Vice Chairman of the 11th Executive
Committee of Xiaoshan District Federation of Industry and
Commerce, the 4th Council Member of the China National Textile
and Apparel Council and a representative of the Hangzhou City
Xiaoshan District People’s Congress of the PRC since September
2016. The chief executive officer of the Group has been elected
as a member of the Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference since
December 2016.

The Group is keen on contributing to the society. During the Year
under Review, the Group donated approximately RMB300,000 to
surrounding communities and social organisations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Community care

During the year of 2020, the Group was once again listed as one of
the “Top Ten Enterprises (+38122£) ” and won the honorary title of
“Advanced Taxpaying Enterprise (43%5 4t (B %) " released by the
government of Jingjiang Street of Hangzhou. The Group has been
ranked first in the taxation of emission rights for printing and dyeing
enterprises in Xiaoshan District for many consecutive years.

During the Year under Review, the Group made the charity
donation through the Spring Breeze Action Network and under
the scheme held by Charity Federation of Xiaoshan District of
Hangzhou.

Apart from paying high attention to corporate developments, the
Group also cares about the development of the communities
where its factories and offices locate. The Group has not only
provided financial support to those who are in need in the
surrounding communities, but also organised community events
and encouraged its staff to participate.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B EEEHR S

e
EY:

To the shareholders of
Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yongsheng
Advanced Materials Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) set out on pages 108 to 262,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
IR ER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHENER S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) ISR EIZEIE (B)

Key audit matter

MEBEZEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZPUNAREMREZSEER

Construction contract revenue recognition

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised revenue from
construction contracting and the related businesses of RMB64,321,000.
The Group applied an input method which recognises revenue based on
the costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage of
total estimated costs for each contract. The input method involves the use
of management’s significant judgement and estimates, including estimates
of the progress towards completion, the scope of deliveries and services
required, total contract costs, and the remaining costs to completion.
RB&EE_ZE_—F+_A=+—HLFE> SERRIREBEESH
R ABREHHIRAANKE64,321,0007T © E%EEFE% ERNBERS
HAISR B S AP 5| B A AN P A 48 1 51 A A BY LE B S8 UM s B9 ) AR AR ©
WAL REAEEBNERFE R QFGTTIEE - FIER
R R ARFFEE ~ S4B A K 5t THIBR T A A ©

Because of the significant judgement and estimates adopted in recognising
oonstruction contract revenue, this is considered as a key audit matter.

RN ERERSOUWARRB S RHE R & MERMEEEREARSE
ZEIH

The accounting policies and related disclosures for revenue recognition of
construction contracts are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

ERRESANWARINETRERBEEABEHRN SHYBRERWEE
2.4~3kK50
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BESHIEAET

We performed the following procedures in relation to
revenue recognition of construction contracts:

RPIBTHRERSHRERDABI TIER

1) We evaluated and tested controls over
the accounting process of contract costs,
contract revenues and the calculation of the
stage of completion.

1) BAEEONET - a0WRERTIEERN
SFENE IR FERIREETTE ORI -

2) We reviewed significant construction
contracts on a sampling basis to check the
total contract revenues and other key contract
terms.

2 HEMHEKBHREABRESY UZEHES

MU R H M EEZ SRR

3) We checked the contract costs incurred on a
sampling basis to check against supporting
documents, such as delivery and acceptance
notes and invoices.

3) EHMHEZEMEENBREMA MBI
NEBNEEREEET R HR.

4) We evaluated management’s judgement and
estimates in the determination of estimated
total contract costs on a sampling basis by
discussing the progress of the construction
contracts with those in charge of the projects
and by comparing actual contract costs
incurred with budgeted contract costs; and

4) RBRMEBHEBEEESEATARERSONE
B ruRmEENERSAMRAETEES
%’\Jﬁ}i$§_ﬁ R MR TEEREENET
Tt B AR AR A R b5t 5 &

5) We re-calculated the revenue recognised
under the input method on a sampling basis
and performed analytical review procedures
according to different construction contract
types.

5  HMHEEWHERE AEED R
TiREAERRSNELRITOINEZE
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Key audit matter

REEZEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
IR ER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EBEZPNAERERREREE

Provision for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for trade receivables
and contract assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had trade receivables and contract
assets of RMB24,637,000 and RMB19,583,000, respectively, before
provisions for impairment of RMB4,966,000 and RMB927,000, respectively.
NZET—F+ZA=+—H> EBEEBECEBIZRERERENEED
A& AR124,637,0007c & A R #19,583,0007t (1EH B ERE AR
4,966,0007T 52 A K #5927,0007TAl) ©

The determination as to estimated credit losses involves management
judgement and estimates. Management considers specific factors to decide
the ECLs such as the age of the balances, location of customers, existence
of disputes, recent historical payment patterns and any other available
information concerning the creditworthiness of counterparties. Management
uses this information to determine whether a provision for impairment is
required.

REEGF EEREREEEBFRAE R -EREMNETTRBR
EEEETENABEROEAGRNRE -TRAMAEME - BSEFTM
MVABRLEREA KBRS EENEAEMPIEER -EEEE
AZEERETE RS AL RERRE-

Because of the significant management judgement involved and estimates
adopted in determining the ECLs as well as the materiality of the amounts
involved, this is considered as a key audit matter.

MR EERAGEEBENBEEEFHERAE L IRB st BEFY 88
B HEAMREESBAREZER

The accounting policies and related disclosures for trade receivables and
contract assets are included in notes 2.4, 3, 22 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BRIBZRIRIBRENEEN S FTEBER RERIRZEHIN M BERE
Mi5E2.4~ 322524

ESENRFER SN EENEHIEEEA (IR
1FERTHR)) HitE

We performed the following procedures in relation to
the provision assessment for trade receivables and

contract assets:
EMBEZRRAIERESNEENEETHH
TUTER

1)

We evaluated the design and implementation
of management’s controls over the
assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables and contract assets.

BTG EEENEZRRANEBERENE
ENTEIRMENTEERENRTRE
Ji ©

We sent trade receivable confirmations and
checked bank receipts for the payments
received subsequent to the year end on a
sampling basis; and
BOEREEE 7 RUCGRIER R E %R
RELHBWEBINRABITHRE ; &

We also assessed the assumptions used
to determine the ECLs for trade receivables
and contract assets by checking the ageing
of the receivables and the historical payment
patterns as well as evaluating the impact of
the macroeconomic factors that management
considered or the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables by checking the
correlation between such macroeconomic
factors and the historical observed default
rates.
BAMTMEEEERRRERENEE
TR EEBEMANRR BERERE
WHENRERETERERAUARBAES
ZEEFERIINENZNERMY T
EEBFERNZBESERZNZERR
F S BREWGRIBRE /]
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Key audit matter

REEZEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EBERPNAERERRERSEIE

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recognised goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives of approximately RMB96,676,000 and
RMB53,254,000 respectively, before accumulated impairment losses
of approximately RMB96,676,000 and RMB52,979,000 was provided
respectively, during the year.

A B —FF+"A=+—H> BEERFAFLRSREGERES
# N\ R #96,676,0007T K A R #52,979,0007T A > 43 B FE 8 5 2 A1
FIRTHEE B EEN AR 96,676,0007T 5 A R #553,254,0007T ©

Under International Accounting Standard 36 Impairment of Assets, the Group
is required to perform an annual impairment test for goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives. Management performed impairment tests on
these assets by using discounted cash flow models as at 31 December
2021. The assessment was complex, and it involved significant judgements
and assumptions, such as long-term growth rate and discount rate.
RIEER S ERFEREERME BSEEEHEEMERAFRTE
ERPEEET RFERBAR - R _Z2-—F+"A=+—0"8
BERKAMNRRSAEANZEEEETRENS ST HRAER Y
RN RAAE RE RN EEFIE R 5t e

Because of the significant management judgement involved and
assumptions adopted in performing the impairment test, this is considered as
a key audit matter.
ACETRBENARREEEFEERAE RERBRR  wEMEER
MEAREZEE

The accounting policies and related disclosures for impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite lives are included in notes 2.4, 3, 16 and
17 to the consolidated financial statements.
BHEENERFERITRERFEENENZBERRERKEERN S
AR RMI5E2.4 3 1617

102 vYongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2021

BEFIEHFRTEEFELEEAERR

We performed the following procedures in relation
to the impairment assessment for goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives:
BMPEEARENERAFERTEERTEERE
SHEERANEFNT ¢

We reviewed the appraisal reports prepared
by the external valuation specialists.

RMESBHINSEEERGRNTER

p==4
= °

We evaluated the competency and objectivity
of the external appraisers engaged by the

Group.
BMETh SE£EEZENIIEGEMN
BRI R B ERE

We reviewed the basis of preparation of the
forecasts used for the impairment test of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
lives.
BMEERBENERAFRIEERTE
ERRER TR RREE

We reviewed management’s estimation about
future cash flows by comparing with orders
on hand, framework agreements signed and
external market research.
RMEREFEIBS - EENERBER
SNERTRIBR T EIT LR BREERE R
RRIREREBAIEET o

We involved our internal valuation specialist
to assist us in reviewing the methodology
and certain assumptions adopted in the
assessment of impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives; and
BMERABLESERHERMBEMT
BN ERFERTEE R EERBERR
ERNAERETRSR ; &

We reviewed management’s assessment
of the sensitivity of the Group’s impairment
model to reasonably possible changes and
considered the adequacy of disclosures
for impairment testing in the consolidated
financial statements.

RMEBREEEN S£EEAEELH
BREGETESENHREST G LERE
AHMBERTAENIZRENTE S -



Key audit matter

REEZEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EBEZPNAERERREREE

Valuation of investment properties

The Group chooses the fair value model to subsequently measure all
investment properties. As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate carrying
amounts of investment properties was approximately RMB674,660,000
and the fair value loss on investment properties recognised during the year
was RMB104,651,000. The Group engaged an external valuation expert to
perform valuation of the Group’s investment properties to estimate the fair
values as at 31 December 2021.
EEREEATERASERBMAEREY X - R _Z_—F+-A4
=+—H > REYENEREEN 2 AR E674,660,00070 K F AN BT
REYENTEBEASARK104,651,000t° BEBZREINIGEESE
R ESEENKREVEETHE WEHR 2 —&F+8=1+—
B AFE

Because of significant judgement involved and assumptions adopted to
determine the fair values of the investment properties, which reflect the
current market conditions, this is considered as a key audit matter.
ARNEEREMELATERIS RNEAH B RRARS ERMRE R
i M AR AR E R EE

The accounting policies and disclosures for the investment properties are
included in notes 2.4, 3 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
ERRBEMENSSTBERERBEEHEN S HMBRRWT2.4 3%
140

REYEEE

We performed the following procedures in relation to
the valuation of investment properties:

RPN ERREMELERBNEFNT

1) We evaluated the competency, independence
and objectivity of the external valuer. We
obtained an understanding of the valuation
approach and key assumptions used by the
external valuer.

1) BRSNS EEMNE B
B HMT I L ERMATER A G
B EREFERR-

2) We assessed the related data used by the
external valuation expert as inputs of the
valuations by comparing to the historical data
and market index.

2 HEMEBEEFLHBERMIFIEEETHT
B SN BEEERBEGERARE
RO RE 2035

3) We involved our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in evaluating the valuation
methodology and the underlying assumptions
which principally included the market unit
rental rate and discount rate; and

3) HMEXRASEEEXR BB EGE
FERERRR FEGAETSEUES
BREERE ) &

4) We evaluated the adequacy of disclosures on
the valuations of investment properties.

4)  FRMCHEREVELERENTEE-
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHENER S

ZHMMEZ A HMBRRARKEN
B1E (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lawrence K. W. Lau.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
affEeaREMEETAR

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE_—F+_H=+—HILEE

2021 2020
—E-— —EoEE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARBTT AREFT
REVENUE & 5 270,503 361,936
Cost of sales THE K (203,832) (249,563)
Gross profit EH 66,671 112,373
Other income and gains, net HAMWA K F &8 5 1,571 24,919
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R DS (2,493) (1,428)
Administrative expenses THRX (45,378) (35,508)
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment properties & & #)% 2 A F1E
(&518) Wz 14 (104,651) 369
Impairment losses on financial and ETMEEHNEERMEBERSIR
contract assets, net FEE (817) (10,366)
Impairment losses on goodwill and mERELEERNBEESIE
intangible assets 16&17 (151,803) -
Finance costs BN 7 (7,242) (1,785)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRLAT (8518) EF 6 (244,142) 88,574
Income tax expense FriStRRZ 10 (2,181) (17,431)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FR (BH) B8R (246,323) 71,143
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hth2mEia
Other comprehensive loss that may be FERIBEAERETEEREMN
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Hham|EIE
periods:
Exchange differences on translation of BME BN EBNER EZRE
foreign operations (5,461) (19,363)
Net other comprehensive loss that may be  FE AR A SEET| EE @M
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent HhamEEIEFE
periods (5,461) (19,363)
Other comprehensive loss that will not be FRBEBETEEINEER
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent NEMEEEIS :
periods:
Exchange differences on translation of BB EFNERZER
foreign operations (216) (368)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
AfHAREREMBEWAR

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_ZE " —F+_F=+—HILEE

2021 2020
—E-—f —EoEsE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 ARBTT AREFT
Net other comprehensive loss that will not be B AZ =Y EiE8%H
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent HNEMEEmEIRFE
periods (216) (368)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FRHEMEEESE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (0PI IE) (5,677) (19,731)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ EREZE (§518) WA EEE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR (252,000) 51,412
(Loss)/profit attributable to: LUFFEfh (B518) A
Shareholders of the Company /NI (245,307) 72,685
Non-controlling interests JEERR (1,016) (1,542)
(246,323) 71,143
Total comprehensive(loss)/income UTEGZE BHR) BA
attributable to: 40%EE -
Shareholders of the Company KABIPRER (250,724) 53,978
Non-controlling interests JEERR R (1,276) (2,566)
(252,000) 51,412
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE EATRREESR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE (8518) B F
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 12
Basic HA RMBA R (33.5) cents# RVBA 9.9 cents?)
Diluted 58 RMBA R %(33.5) cents 7 RMBA R 9.8 cents 7
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BHIAFEIR AT

31 December 2021 —Z_—F+_H=+—H

2021 2020
T —F —EBCTH
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARETT ARHFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment I~ TR R st 13 116,815 82,526
Investment properties REY 14 674,660 755,323
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 10,624 11,518
Goodwil e 16 - 99,514
Other intangible assets HtEFEEE 17 2,169 57,061
Investments in a joint venture REEtENKE 18 3,478 =
Loan receivables FEUE R 23(b) - 9,501
Other non-current assets HiIEREBEE 23(c) 81,217 330
Amount due from related parties FE YR RR B 75 =B 38 5,583 -
Deferred tax assets IEIEAR I E A 33 6,179 1,597
Total non-current assets JERENE ELEEE 900,725 1,017,370
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories =FE8 19 6,547 4,793
Properties under development EREPYE 20 - 223,025
Completed properties held for sale FEHENER T Y= 21 225,630 =
Trade and bills receivables B SRR IE K E N E S 22 62,578 74,819
Contract assets BHEE 24 18,656 30,274
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FE1 7B~ 34 & K Elfth
FEWERIE 23(a) 35,555 18,781
Loan receivables FEWE R 23(b) 158,409 107,040
Bills receivable at fair value through other BATEF AREME®E
comprehensive income WA FE R Z 4 25 3,773 16,363
Financial assets at fair value through BATEF AERN TR
profit or loss BE 26 48,641 199,056
Amounts due from related parties e BB 75 718 38 4,451 759
Tax recoverable A Y [E1F3 T8 3,070 =
Cash and cash equivalents BEKMRIREEEY 27 86,551 89,718
Total current assets BB EARER 653,861 764,628
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Trade payables B ENHIE 28 99,954 123,913
Other payables and accruals H e FRIE K FE 5T 7B 29 24,567 21,682
Derivative financial instruments THEEMITA 30 654 1,981
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t B R1T R ELfthfE=x 31 69,995 41,062
Government grants BER) 32 387 387
Amount due to related parties P& BB 75 78 38 673 -
Income tax payable FETFR1SIR 7,451 15,972
Total current liabilities MENE B4R 203,681 204,997
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFEE 450,180 559,631
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT wEERREAE
LIABILITIES 1,350,905 1,577,001
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
SHBERRRR

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

2021 2020
—E-— —EoEE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARBTT AREFT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERBERE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t B R1T R ELfthfE =R 31 167,191 128,311
Government grants IgSE=4:l] 32 6,515 6,902
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBE(E 33 9,396 11,556
Amount due to related parties FE < BB 75 7R I8 38 428 =
Deposits payable e E 2,292 -
Total non-current liabilities JEREN B (BAERE 185,822 146,769
Net assets REE 1,165,083 1,430,232
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to shareholders of AT RE LR
the Company
Share capital [N 34 6,063 6,054
Share premium RRADREB 34 810,013 826,670
Other reserves HhEE 36 344,235 595,560
1,160,311 1,428,284
Non-controlling interests JEIER R 4,772 1,948
Total equity B4R TR 1,165,083 1,430,232
Li Cheng Ma Qinghai
k57 E5E
Director Director
EBEE BE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
S EREER

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZTE_—F+_A=+—HLEE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

FAARRE

Foreign Equity-

currency  Statutory settled Non-
Share Share  Retained translation surplus arrangement Other controlling Total
capital  premium earnings* reserve* reserve* reserve*  reserves* Total interests equity

ARBE  AERE  EnAE
ke ROEE  RERA fafe fif B AfEE i ke ER0E
RMB'000  RMB000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR AREBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR

(note 34) (note 34) (note 36) (note 36) (note 35)
(M) (Mf3t34) (Wzs6)  (Wse)  (Mss)

AT January 2021 = R 6054 826670 566558 (11,698 76,987 9471 (45758 1428284 148 1430282
Loss for the year ENER - - (245307) - - - - (245307) (1,016)  (246,329)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: EREMEESE !
Exchange differences on tranglation of BENBRRNEREE

financial statements - - - (5,417) - - - (5,417) (260) (5,677)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREHEEE - - (245,307) (5,417) - - - (250,724) (1,276)  (252,000)
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company ~ AAABIRES RS - (18,206) - - - - - (18,206) - (18,206)
Appropriation to statutory reserve PEEEERE - - (5,005) - 5,005 - - - - -
Capital contribution by non-controling FrRRETE

shareholders - - - - - - - - 4,100 4,100
Exercise of share options TiEBRE 9 1,549 - - - (601) - 957 - 957
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—-&+"B=1+-H 6,063 810,013 316,246 (17,115) 81,992 8,870 (45,758) 1,160,311 4772 1,165,083
At 1 January 2020 RIEZE-FE-H 6,217 886,872 498,937 7,009 71,928 11,840 (45,758) 1,437,040 - 1437,040
Profit for the year FRET - - 72,685 - - - - 72,685 (1542) 71,143
Other comprehensive loss for the year: EREMRESE
Exchange differences on tranglation of financial BB ERRNEREE

statements - - - peon - . SopeTon (e (19730)
Total comprehensive income/(oss) for the year ~ ERZEMA/ (B8) 5 = = 72,685 (18,707) = = = 53,978 (2,566) 51412
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company ~ AAATIREX RS - 29,600) - - - - - (29,609) - 29,609)
Appropriation to statutory reserve NETLEHE - - (5,064) - 5,064 - - - - -
Capital contribution by non-controling FERRRTE

shareholders - - - - - - - - 4514 4514
Shres repurchased EE%H (79 @) - - - - - 4% S )
Exercise of share options ek 15 2910 - - - (1,081) - 1,844 - 1,844
Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfeiture  EERRTEREQ TS BB EEfE

of share options - 1,288 - - - (1,288) - - - -
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-F&+°B=1+-H 6,054 826,670 566,558 (11,698) 76,987 9,471 (45,758) 1,428,284 1948 1430232

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves * ZERBREEAHTERTIRAN S HEM
of RMB344,235,000 (2020: RMB595,560,000) in the consolidated 18 AR 16344,235,0007T (CB-B4F . AR
statement of financial position. 595,560,0007T)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2021

aHRERE

BE_T_—FT_A=T—HLFE

2021 2020
% —EBCEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARETT AREEFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFHHERE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax BRIRAT (B518) &R (244,142) 88,574
Adjustments for: MU TIEEEHRAE
Finance costs BN 7 7,242 1,785
Interest income A E WA 5 (14,805) (10,765)
Investment income KEWA 5 (4,504) (8,414)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE  BERRER
equipment T 6 9) -
Fair value (gains)/loss, net: NE ) S ESRIFEE
Financial assets at fair value through BRFEFFABRIER
profit or loss HE 5 18,697 (3,556)
Derivative instruments — transaction not METRE-XZTERE
qualifying as hedge H 5 653 1,981
Investment properties HE=LY/ES 14 104,651 (369)
Depreciation of property, plant and MR E e BT EE
equipment 13 5,318 4,850
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHESERE 15 1,231 1,309
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hihm & E 17 350 5,629
Impairment of trade receivables and BERWMIERGHNEE 22andk
contract assets BB 24 771 6,538
Impairment of goodwill BmERE 16 98,064 =
Impairment of other intangible assets HhmrEERE 17 53,739 =
Impairment of amounts due from related & YR BR B 5 =R IBIRL(E
parties 6 482 S
Write-off of amounts due from a related party i £ F& Wy — & R Bé: 75 =08 6 - 2,877
(Reversal)/impairment of loan receivables FEW SRR () RIE 6 and&X
23(0) (436) 951
Release of deferred income AR BRIEIEUTA 32 (387) (388)
Share of losses of a joint venture EBh—E&EhEEsE 5andki18 122 =
27,037 91,002
Increase in inventories FEEM (1,754) (997)
Increase in properties under development B3k ESS (8,498) (12,690)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from FE U RE B 7w IER D
related parties (1) 388 (607)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills B 5 AR I R FE I i
receivables L, (G0 8,472 (16,573)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BREERL, (80 13,525 (14,640)
Decrease/(increase) in bills receivable at fair 1R AT EsT AEME EUA
value through other comprehensive income — BIFEURZ #7870 (1E70) 12,590 (16,363)
Increase in deposits and other receivables & R B FE R RIEIE N (14,011) (931)
Increase in trade payables B2 R RIEEM 7,806 9,099
Increase in amount due to related parties FE{T R B 75 = IE g 0 1,101 =
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and HiERIB R ESTIE
accruals #an Ceb) 5,156 6,713)
Cash generated from operations KEPRRE 51,812 30,587
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

aHEERER

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE " —F+_A=+—HIEFE

2021 2020
—E-— —EoEE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARBTT AREFT
Interest received BUWFE 30 128
Interest paid BEfEFHE (71) (45)
Income taxes paid BEFTER (20,410) (28,623)
Net cash flows from operating activities RETBPRIREMEF4E 31,361 2,047
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING KRETHMERERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BWFHIE 9,409 9,048
Investment income received BB WA 4,959 9,110
Purchases of items of property, plant, BEYE - BE -REBEEXK
equipment and leasehold land FAE i (95,225) (3,591)
Purchases of an investment property RE—BREYE (72,284) (51,924)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWXE - MEKKZEER
plant and equipment BIFTERIE 88 =
Investments in a joint venture R—REaErENKE (3,600) =
Proceeds from settlement of financial assets 41318 A EsT AIBTHEH
at fair value through profit or loss SREENTSRIA 481,827 601,328
Increase in loan receivables R E =R IE M (234,032) (232,127)
Settlement of loan receivables EIEWER 192,040 258,654
Purchases of financial assets at fair value BERATEFAEGRN
through profit or loss TREE (352,545) (696,828)
Decrease in amounts due from a related party & U — % BB 75 78R - 40,200
Advances to a related party ] —$A e B 75 B SE FUIE (10,001) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities KERHFMARENEFE (79,364) (66,130)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHREERER
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE_—F+_B=+—HIEE

2021 2020
—E-— —EoEE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARBTT AREFT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT PSR 957 1,844
New bank loans MERITE™R 43(b) 108,620 98,023
Repayment of bank loans Té‘iéfﬁhiéfﬂ\ 43(b) (40,255) (25,261)
Capital injection of non-controlling interests ~ JEITA& 4,100 4,514
Repurchase of shares B 15 Bl - (34,969)
Principal portion of a lease payment HENREEZD 43(b) (840) (956)
Dividend paid BENRE (18,206) (29,609)
Interest paid BAFE (7,007) (1,785)
Net cash flows from financing activities MEESPAEIRENE R 47,369 11,801
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERREZEYRH LV FE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (634) (52,282)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yearE# I & K IR & S EY) 89,718 148,679
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 4N FE R &4 8) 1Y 72 225 28 (2,533) (6,679)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRASRASSEYN
AT END OF YEAR 27 86,551 89,718
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND REMIREEBYEGOT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B KIRITHER 86,551 88,870
Non-pledged time deposits with original R ERRIIERE DR =@
maturity of less than three months when BZIFEREHER
acquired - 848
Cash and cash equivalents as stated inthe ~ R ERNIERZIZRE K
statement of financial position BEEEY 86,551 89,718
Cash and cash equivalents as stated inthe RIRSHREXRZIZHREK
statement of cash flows BEEEY 86,551 89,718
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B IHE TR MIEE

31 December 2021 —Z_—F+_H=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 19
April 2012 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the Cayman Islands.
The address of the Company’s registered office is 2/F, Century
Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902, Grand Cayman, KY1-1103,
Cayman Islands.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

° Provision of dyeing services of differentiated polyester
filament fabric

o Properties investment

o Renovation, maintenance, alteration and additional services
(“RMAA Service”); and

o Investment, development, construction, operation and
management of renewable energy businesses, water
treatment businesses and environmental protection
businesses

In the opinion of directors, the holding company and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Ever Thrive Global Limited
(“Ever Thrive”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”) and controlled by Mr. Li Cheng (the “Controlling
Shareholder”).
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1.

31 December 2021

BHMBEER R

== H ST — H

REREBREHN (B

B AR NER

KABWBABRFEBUT

Particulars of
issued and
Place of incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
Name registration and business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
BETK
it FHRARIL R RS R SRS KAFREMEEEE AL TEEH
Direct Indirect
=t i

Yongsheng Advanced Materials (BVI)  Limited liability company incorporated US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited (“Yongsheng BVI") in the BVI

KEIIE BVI) BRAS REBELHSHMRINERAR E30 100 - REER
(KEEBVI 1)

Yongsheng Advanced Materials (HK)  Limited liability company incorporated US$1 = 100 Investment holding
Limited (“Yongsheng HK’) in Hong Kong

KEIME (BB BRAT REBEMRINERAR 1E7 - 100 REER
(TXEEH)

Hangzhou Huvis Yongsheng Limited liability company established in RMB200,000,000 - 100 Provision of dyeing services in
Dyeing and Finishing Co. Limited the PRC the PRC
(“Yongsheng Dyeing’)

TNEELXRFEBRAT RABERINERAF A %200,000,0007T - 100 RAERERERY

(TKERE)

First Intelligence International Limited  Limited liability company incorporated US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
(‘First Intelligence”) in Hong Kong

EERERAT () REAZMAUNERAT 50,000% 7T 100 - RERR

Chang Sheng investment Holding Limited liability company incorporated HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Co. Limited (“Chang Sheng in Hong Kong
investment”)

WRREERERAF REBERRIOERAR AT - 100 REER

(eEKE)

Changsheng Property (Hangzhou) Limited liability company established in RMB200,000,000 - 100 Property services in the PRC
Company Limited (‘Changsheng the PRC
Property”)

AEIE (M) BIRAF RARER A RAS AR #200,000,0007 - 100 RAPEREMERS

(TeEME)
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1.
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

REREBEHN (B

i@ AT RER (8)
FATMBATNHBENT : (@

(Continued)
Particulars of
issued and
Place of incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
Name registration and business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
BETR
g SRR RS SR AEE FAFREMEREE AL TEEH
Direct Indirect
Ef# ik
Hangzhou Yonghao Investment Limited liability company established in RMB50,500,000 - 100 Properties investment in the
Management Company Limited the PRC PRC
(*Hangzhou Yonghao Investment”)
MK EREBERERAR RABERINERAF A %50,500,0007% - 100 RAERENERE
(MU ACERE)
Philosojoy Investment Limited Limited liability company incorporated HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
(‘Philoscjoy Investment”) in Hong Kong
ERREERAR ((ERRE) KREEEMMUNERAD 1AL - 100 REER
Summer Power International Inc. Limited liability company incorporated US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
(“Summer Power”) in Hong Kong
ENERERAR (EHER)  NREEIMRINERAT 50,0007t 100 - REER
Widely Construction & Engineering Limited liability company incorporated HK$10,000 - 100 RMAA Service in Hong Kong
Limited ("Widely Construction & in Hong Kong
Engineering’)
BARETIRERAT REAFMRINERAG 10,0008 7T - 100 REBRHERMAARE
(MeRIEETRE)
Inya Water Group Limited Limited liability company incorporated HK$150,000,000 60 - Exploitation, operation and
(‘Inya Group”) in the Cayman Islands management of hydro-
related projects
Inya Water Group Limited REEHERMBUNAERAT 150,000,000 75 60 - BB EERERKKERE
(Tinya Group ) B
WZ Environment Limited Limited liability company incorporated HK$10,000 - 60  Investment holding
(*WZ Environment”) in Hong Kong
ERABERAR (EHkE)  REBEMRINERAD 10,000 7T - 60 KELK
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BHMBEER R
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ATIREEEF (&)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) M AT HEE (48)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: AATIMBATNFHBUT | ()
(Continued)
Particulars of
issued and
Place of incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
Name registration and business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
B&1TR
g SRR RS SR AEE FAFREMEREE AL TEEH
Direct Indirect
Ef# ik
Inya Water Engineering (M) Sdn Bhd  Limited liability company incorporated RM10 - 60  Exploitation, operation and
(‘Inya MY”) in Malaysia management of hydro-
related projects
Inya Water Engineering (M) SdnBhd ~ R ERATHMAUNERAT 1025 - 60 FE EEREEKEEHEE
(Mnya MY ) =
Inya Water (Myanmar) Limited Limited liability company incorporated US$100,000 - 60  Exploitation, operation and
(‘Inya Myanmar”) in Myanmar management of hydro-
related projects
Inya Water (Myanmar) Limited REEERRUINERAR 100,000% 7T - 60 FH HEREEKKIEEE
(TInya Myanmar ) g
WZ Inya Water Company Limited Limited liability company incorporated US$5,000 - 60  Exploitation, operation and
("WZ Inya") in Cambodia management of hydro-
related projects
WZ Inya Water Company Limited RRBEFMAUNERAT 5,000% 7T - 60 BE% EEREEKKERE
(TWZ Inya_) =
Inya (Zhejiang) Environment Limited liability company established in RMB12,000,000 - 60  Consultancy services and sale
Consulting Limited the PRC of environmental protection
(‘Inya Zhejiang”) machineries
B (D) BEZAERAR RAERINERAF A 12,000,007 - 60 HEHRBREERREN
(3 :3 )
Anhui Inya New Material Technology  Limited liability company established in RMB50,000,000 - 60  Development, operation and
Limited (*Anhui Inya”) the PRC management of waste
treatment projects
PHARRMERLAERAT RABERINERAF AE #50,000,0007 - 60 ¥ EEREEKBIERE

("zfEEst)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 RREE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which
include all International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, bills
receivable at fair value through other comprehensive income,
derivative financial assets and investment properties which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in RMB and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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2.1

2.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021 (early
adopted)

Amendment to IFRS 16

2.1

2.2

SRR RMIEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described
below:

(@  Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments
which affect financial reporting when an existing interest
rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate
(“RFR”). The amendments provide a practical expedient
to allow the effective interest rate to be updated without
adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets and
liabilities when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets
and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of
the interest rate benchmark reform and the new basis for
determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding
the change. In addition, the amendments permit changes
required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be
made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any
gains or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to
meet the separately identifiable requirement when an
RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows
an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that
the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform
on an entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy. The amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group as the
Group does not have any interest rate hedging relationships
and any interest-bearing bank borrowings based on the
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or the London Interbank
Offered Rate (‘LIBOR”) as at 31 December 2021.

122 VYongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2021

2.2

BEFEHBRRIKE (B

RIESTRRMBREERNEE R EH L
mE

@ ERANXEENHMERRBAE (ME
REBFE) SRR EMBREER
BRI RS ED FEOR  FER G+
BI5539%% ~ EIPR B 75k 5 ZE RSB 79
MREA SRS D FAFE R ARG RS
B 165N IBET IR AET PR
BRNEE ZEEIRETERER
A RAREETSHEERAGBEL
HERENWEESHR > WESHEF X
HENEHEES I BEEAENREE M
ENHEELHE FEERRIBEEHHHN
TR EE  EAALRTENBRTE
MEBEME I ZE BT AFHE
HENE TR PLRERE A E
HAES) > B RS hR % B EH
B EESXNEREBRHEERAREEMG
REZEBFIORNEEERETEE
UStERBREAERE - EEAEF
EWIEEARBARIBDR  ZFEE]
NERERERERNETEBANMN
HE - BRAFBTENIETH PREFER
REBEARNNRE AiEREES
EESAERREANERRKD R K24
BE AR BB tbsh  ZFEEET
NERERBFEEMEN  UEFEPLHM
KERMNEREEN THRNEEEY
FHERSHTAERAREEREN
FE-HARAERAR _ZE_—F+_4
—t+t—HUESEEEUNEHEAERRER
EBBRTRAEREABBRITRAERS
(TLIBOR)) XMt BIRITMHBR > &
ZEEITHAERMNM BN RRRL
AT E



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

)

Amendments to IFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic
by 12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies
to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or before
30 June 2022, provided the other conditions for applying
the practical expedient are met. The amendment is effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2021 with any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendment recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits at the beginning of the current
accounting period. Earlier application is permitted. The
Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2021. However, the Group has not received Covid-19-
related rent concessions and plans to apply the practical
expedient when it becomes applicable within the allowed
period of application.

31 December 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement

2
Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Annual Improverments to
IFRS Standards 2018-
2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS
9-Comparative Information?

Insurance Contracts®?

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transactior?

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use’

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling
a Contract’

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 417
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

. No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

t As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in

October 2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS
9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also add
to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to
refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or
IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a
business combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS
37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.

BHMBEER R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE
31 December 2021 —_ZB_—F+_H=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 BiEME N RE N 2 EE 5 R

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 (2011) in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB
in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an
entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if it
complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted.
Since the guidance provided in the amendments to IFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of the amendments on the Group’s accounting policy
disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start
of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE
31 December 2021 —_ZB_—F+_H=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 BiEME N RE N 2 EE 5 R

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities
are required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences arising from these transactions.
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to
transactions related to leases and decommissioning obligations
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented,
with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits or other component of equity
as appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall
be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did
not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences for transactions related to leases. Upon
initial application of these amendments, the Group will recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for deductible
and taxable temporary differences associated with right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, and recognise the cumulative effect
of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of those
items, in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
retrospectively only to items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented in the financial statements in which the entity
first applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfiling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfiling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfiling that contract
(e.9., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfiling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an
entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16,
and IAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that
are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
18 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS 16.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEEHBENE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates or joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures
is included as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
properties under development, contract assets, deferred tax
assets, financial assets, investment properties), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing
a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of
the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

U

(i)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

U

(i)

(iii)

(v)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted
for in accordance with IFRS 5. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2.52% to 20%
Plant and machinery 5% to 33%
Vehicles 10% to 33%
Office equipment, leasehold

improvements and others 8% to 33%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investment properties (Continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned
property and/or accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Right-of-use assets” for property held
as a right-of-use asset up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount and
the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with IAS16. For a transfer from inventories to
investment properties, any difference between the fair value of
the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Technical know-how

Acquired technical know-how of manufacturing processes
is shown at historical cost. Acquired technical know-how is
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire the know-
how and is amortised over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software is shown at historical cost and is
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful
lives of 10 years.

Sewage pipe usage right

Acquired sewage pipe usage right is shown at historical cost and
is capitalised on the basis of the cost incurred to acquire the usage
right. The costs are amortised over the contractual lives of 20
years.

Contract backlog

Contract backlog acquired as part of business combinations is
valued at fair value based on present value technique. Contract
backlog is amortised over the period up to the completion of each
of the contracts.

Brand

Brand acquired as part of business combinations is valued at
fair value based on the relief from the royalty method. Brand
is considered as the main attribute to the revenue and future
growth of the Group’s RMAA Service in Hong Kong, and thus is
recognised as an intangible asset with indefinite useful life and
tested for impairment annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021

Rt ] = e

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

@

®)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings

50 years
2 to 3 years

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the
lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

142 vYongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2021

24 TEGFERBME (&)

HE (&)

FEBEREA-EA (B)

@)

®)

EHEEE

ERAREENEERBAH BIEME
ETMRERABAHN Ml -ERAREE
BB R R T RMEABEIEBKIE
TR UMEEEEZERENFTEF
HEE - ERAREEZNABEDES
HEBRTE BREVBEERNAEAR
RRBEARNZA I ZHAENTREE
WERZEREEEE -EREEENE
ENEERRGEEIEAEHR URE
ERE) AUEREFENT !

HE i 504
BF 2E3F
HEEE

HEaENHERKBERRNEERA
FHZHAEMNRRERD -BAEMRE
BEEEN® (BEBEEEE MR BER
RKEEES BURNRE —IEBEEX
Z R BBEEN R ERRERGREEE
RNz E - BEMRTBEELE
BoERECTHEBEEEERZTEE
HEAEHARRT AEBITHEQLILER
T R BT L B S A SRR © I IR AR
AR E—IERH LR AT EEE NN
BEBENRZFH TN EABFEE S
sz e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

®)

(©

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset. The Group’s lease liabilities are included in
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of buildings (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are
accounted for as finance leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income is recycled to the statement of profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which include
asset management debt investment are carried in the statement
of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain
a significant financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, derivative financial instruments, lease
liabilities and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs, and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during
the development period and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless they will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. Upon
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the statements of
financial position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined by an apportionment of the total costs of land and
buildings attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value
takes into account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less
estimated costs to be incurred in selling the properties.

Allocation of property development costs

Land costs are allocated to each unit according to their respective
saleable gross floor areas (“GFA”) to the total saleable GFA.
Construction costs relating to units were identified and allocated
specifically. Common construction costs have been allocated
according to the saleable GFA similar to land costs.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined by the weighted average method. Cost of work
in progress and finished goods comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amount of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial
reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE
31 December 2021 —_ZB_—F+_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amount of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

@

®)

(©

Sale of industrial products

Revenue from the sale of industrial products is recognised at
the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the industrial products.

Processing services

Revenue from the provision of processing services is
recognised at the point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
processed products.

Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The input method recognises revenue based on
the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the construction
services.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period

in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset
is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of
which are included in the accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of
which are given in note 34 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions
are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme. No contributions have
been forfeited during the year ended 31 December 2021. As at 31
December 2021, the Group had no forfeited contributions available
to reduce its contributions to the MPF Scheme in future years
(2020: nil).

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. This
subsidiary is required to contribute certain percentages of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain
or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of the Company and certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate to
those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of the Company and overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Renminbi at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue recognition for construction contracts

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
revenue from construction contracting and the related businesses
amounting to RMB64,321,000 (2020: RMB185,115,000). The
Group has recognised revenue from the provision of construction
services over time, using an input method to measure the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the Group’s
performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. The input method
recognises revenue based on the proportion of the actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs for satisfaction of
the construction services. This involves the use of management
judgements and estimation uncertainty, including estimating the
progress towards completion of the services, scope of deliveries
and services required, total contract costs incurred and forecasts
in relation to costs to complete and profit margin.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties, owner-
occupied properties and properties held for sale

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. One of the Group’s properties
comprises a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for administrative
purposes or held for sale. The Group considers its intention for
holding the properties at the early development stage of the
related properties. During the course of construction, the related
properties under construction are accounted for as properties
under development if the properties are intended for sale after
completion. Upon completion of construction, properties under
development are transferred to completed properties held for
sale and are stated at cost. Properties under construction are
accounted for as investment properties if the properties are
intended to be held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
after completion. Properties under construction are accounted for
as owner-occupied properties if the properties are intended to be
held for administrative purposes after completion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Measurement of progress towards complete satisfaction
of performance obligation

The Group recognises contract revenue and relevant direct
costs according to management’s estimation of the progress
and outcome of a project. Estimated revenue is determined
in accordance with the terms set out in the relevant contracts
or, in the case of variation orders, based on contract terms or
other forms of agreements. Estimated direct costs, which mainly
comprise direct labour cost, subcontracting charges and costs
of materials, are variable and estimated by the directors of the
Company according to the amount of direct labour, subcontracting
charges and costs of materials incurred from time to time based
on quotations provided by the major subcontractors/suppliers/
vendors involved and the experience of the directors of the
Company. Notwithstanding that the directors of the Company
frequently review and revise the estimates of both the estimated
revenue and direct costs as the contracts progress, changes in
estimates or the actual outcome will affect the carrying amounts
of contract assets/contract liabilities with the corresponding
adjustments to future revenue and/or direct costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021

3.

—=—_
= _

o S = -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns by geographical region, customer type
and rating.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in note
22 and note 24 to the financial statements, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on loan receivables

The Group calculates ECLs for loan receivables and amount due
from the Group’s joint ventures by considering the probability of
default and the loss given default. The probability of default is
based on average cumulative issuer-weighted global default rates
and the loss given default based on average debt recovery rates
issued by Moody’s Investors Service. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting inputs to the ECLs
calculations, based on the credit rating of the debtor which is
accessed by the Group using Moody’s Rating Methodology.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2021 was Nil (2020: RMB99,514,000). Further details
are given in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives

The Group determines whether intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives. Estimating the recoverable amount
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives at 31 December 2021
was RMB275,000 (2020: RMB54,817,000). Further details are
given in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021

3.

Rt ] = e

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimate of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties carried at fair value based on the appraised
market value provided by independent professional valuers. Such
valuation was based on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainty and might differ from actual results. In making
the estimation, the Group considers information from current
rental prices in an active market for similar properties and uses
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the end of the year.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of the fair
value of the completed investment properties include those related
to estimated rental values with reference to the current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and condition,
and discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

At 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of investment
properties was RMB674,660,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB755,323,000). Further details, including the key assumptions
used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has four reportable
operating segments as follows:

— Processing: Dyeing and processing of differentiated
polyester filament fabric

— Properties Investment, development and sale of properties

investment:

— RMAA Service: Provision of construction services in building
construction, building maintenance and
improvement works, renovation and decoration
works

— Environmental  Consultancy services and sale of machineries

water project  related to environmental protection, including
operation: operation and maintenance services

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on profit before tax without
allocation of interest income/costs and other expenses which are
not incurred directly for operating segments.

Segment assets exclude corporate cash, deferred tax assets and
tax recoverable as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate accruals, payroll payable,
deferred tax liabilities and income tax payable as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., REFEHEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Operating segments KEER
Environmental
RMAA Properties  water project
Processing Service investment operation Total
RfRk#H
I  RMAARRH MERE EREE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®TR ARETn ARETR ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-Z—--&
+ZB=+—HLEE
Segment revenue (note 5) Stk (HiEE5)
Sales to external customers HEFIRER 200,338 64,321 5,844 - 270,503
Revenue Woga 270,503
Segment results PEES | 43,217 (164,686) (105,599) (5,213) (232,281)
Reconciliations: ik
Corporate and other unallocated expenses AT REMAKDERZ (23,928
Interest income FIEWA 14,805
Investment income LEIA 4,504
Finance costs =17 (7,242)
Loss before tax BriAIEE (244,142)
Segment assets NBEE 479,057 35,685 992,929 142,175 1,649,846
Reconciliations: o/
Elimination of intersegment receivables K84 PR M RIE (167,581)
Corporate and other unallocated assets NAREMENREE 72,321
Total assets nEE 1,554,586
Segment liabilities PBEE 106,513 21,320 323,345 81,889 533,067
Reconciliations: o/
Elimination of intersegment payables K84 RS B (167,581)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities REREMENEERE 24,017
Total liabilities FA=NE 389,503
Other segment information HitH IR
Share of losses of a joint venture HMEAETESE - - - (122) (122)
Depreciation and amortisation WEXEH 6,277 220 399 3 6,899
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible ~~ BEREMENEERHE
assets - 151,803 - - 151,803
Impairment of trade receivables, BoRBTIE SNEER
contract assets and other receivables, net Hitt W= EF58 - m - 482 1,253
Investments in a joint venture R—BEELENKE - - - 3,478 3,478
Capital expenditure* BAREY 4,411 25 59,547 78,280 142,263

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant

and equipment and investment properties and prepayment for
property, plant equipment and leasehold land.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMBEER R

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFEEE ()
(CONTINUED)
Operating segments (Continued) KEDE ()
Environmental
RMAA Properties  water project
Processing Service investment operation Total
BRIEKE
mT RMAARR MELRE BEEEE imst
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBTR ARETR AR%ETn AREBTx
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_EEE
+ZB=+—Hit&
Segment revenue (note 5) S ERE (iEE5)
Sales to external customers HEFHARR 175,647 185,115 1,174 - 361,936
Revenue e 361,936
Segment results DEEE 43,380 34,536 (208) (3,848) 73,860
Reconciliations: HEk:
Corporate and other unallocated expenses REKEME BT (2,680)
Interest income FIBHA 10,765
Investment income REWA 8,414
Finance costs B M4 (1,785)
Profit before tax AR 88,574
Segment assets HBEE 434,348 215476 1,018,803 63126 1,731,753
Reconciliations: Eor 3
Elimination of intersegment receivables K84 R RIE (25,250)
Corporate and other unallocated assets NAREMENREE 75,495
Total assets BEE 1,781,998
Segment liabilities NiaE 88,308 33,043 202,881 24,278 348,510
Reconciliations: ik
Elimination of intersegment payables K4 (S B (25,250)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities REREMENEERE 28,506
Total liabilities F=li 351,766
Other segment information Hity Rt
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH 6,265 5,427 % - 11,788
Impairment of trade receivables, contract assets & 7 EWIE X EERK
and other receivables Htt W =B E - 9,415 - - 9,415
Capital expenditure* e 1,063 10 104,957 = 106,030

*

equipment and investment properties.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

No revenue with a single external customer accounted for 10% or

more of the Group’s revenue.

* BEARZBEREYHE BERRBEUKRE
EL/EL

BERE—IIMERAEEZWALEER
WA Z10%3 L o

KM RAS 20214®R 173



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Operating segments (Continued)
Geographical information

(a)  Revenue from external customers

4,

REDBER (B

REEDER (48

IZE

@ FKESEFERZHA

2021 2020
—E—F ZEEFF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBEFTT

Hong Kong 548 64,321 185,115
Mainland China HR [ P 179,192 155,870
Other Hih 26,990 20,951
270,503 361,936

The revenue information above is based on the locations of
the customers.

(b)  Non-current assets

LHRABER T REBEZRAIEMZS] -

b) FRBEE

2021 2020
—F—F “EIEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

Hong Kong 548 905 56,001
Mainland China R B g it 893,641 860,258
894,546 916,259

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets and
goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. IRA~EHMUTA R

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WARHFWMT :
2021 2020
—E_—F .=Ja =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARFT
Revenue from contracts with customers BRI Z WA 264,659 360,762
Revenue from other sources: Hg AR R
Gross rental income from investment KREHEBETHNREYE
properties under operating leases U A 5,844 1,174
270,503 361,936
Revenue from contracts with customers BERFRTIEHZIA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) SIBAEF
2021 2020
—E—F ZFETE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARMFT
Types of goods or services A RS ER
Processing mT 200,338 175,647
RMAA Service RMAARRFS 64,321 185,115
Total revenue from contracts with REEMEI A2 WA LELE
customers 264,659 360,762
Geographical markets Eig i
Hong Kong 548 64,321 185,115
Mainland China FRE Py i 173,348 154,696
Other Hih 26,990 20,951
Total revenue from contracts with HMERFEI SN2 WA LEEE
customers 264,659 360,762
Timing of revenue recognition I A R SR BF RS
Goods or services transferred RE—RFRER 2RI RS
at a point in time 200,338 175,647
Services transferred over time e B [ 8 A8 R 7% 64,321 185,115
Total revenue from contracts with MERFEI A2 WA LEEE
customers 264,659 360,762
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. IRA~EBEMKA RIS (8)

(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers BMERMIIEHZIBA (&)
(Continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (a) SDIKAEF (4B)
The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised TREIN AR EAB BT ARS
in the current reporting period that was included in the BYEHNaBENRam s &% .

contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

2021 2020
—E—F TECEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBEFTT
Revenue recognised that was included in B REsBAYET AR S EAHI 549
contract liabilities at the beginning of the B &AL :
reporting period:
Processing T - 13
RMAA Service RMAARR 7% 304 5,277
304 5,290
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Processing

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
processed products and payment is generally due within 30
to 90 days from delivery, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required.

RMAA Service

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 14 days
to 90 days from the date of billing. A certain percentage
of payment is retained by customers until the end of the
retention period as the Group’s entitlement to the final
payment is conditional on the satisfaction of the service
quality by the customers over a certain period as stipulated
in the contracts.

BHIREHRRIEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b) Performance obligations (Continued)
RMAA Service (Continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)

WE A~ E AUt A Bz (48)

BERFFIEHNZHIA (&)

(b) EHEE )
RMAARR (#)

R+ZRA=+—BaEEFNGRENSE
CREMABARER) IRZERE

as at 31 December are as follows: ZEOF
2021 2020
—E—F “ECEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREBF T

Amounts expected to be recognised as TERARER AW AR -
revenue:

Within one year —&FER 27,971 44,857
After one year —FE% 19,971 67,285
47,942 112,142

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be
recognised as revenue after one year relate to construction
services, of which the performance obligations are to
be satisfied within two years. All the other amounts of
transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations are expected to be recognised as revenue within
one year. The amounts disclosed above do not include
variable consideration which is constrained.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2021

& I ERRMIEE
T —HF+"HA=+—H

We A~ AUt A Bl e (48)

(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers BMERMIIEHZIBA (&)
(Continued)
(b) Performance obligations (Continued) (b) EBHEE )
RMAA Service (Continued) RMAARR (&
An analysis of other income and gains is as follows: Ht A RW @D T -
2021 2020
—EF—F EEREFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEFTT
Other income and gains, net BMIKA KW e FEE
Bank and other interest income IRITREMF B WA 14,805 10,765
Investment income KREKRA 4,504 8,414
Share of losses of a joint venture DME—EEEhEEE (122) =
Fair value (losses)/gains on financial assets & A T EFT AIBFEHSRE
at fair value through profit or loss ENATE EBH) /Wa (18,697) 3,556
Fair value changes on derivative TEEMIAEZ AT EED
financial instruments (653) (1,981)
Gross rental income from plants i B & WA 4858 772 772
Government grants BNER 657 3,403
Foreign exchange differences, net PERERE/FRE (205) (892)
Others Hth 510 882
1,571 24,919
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BEMELRF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): NEBEBRRANAEF LN, GEA) UTEE
BEL

2021 2020

—EFE—F TETERE

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5F ARETT ARHFT

Cost of services provided BRERFE K 203,832 249,563

Depreciation of property, plant and M BB R EITE 13

equipment* 5,318 4,850

Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEITE 15(a) 1,231 1,309

Amortisation of other intangible assets* ELfthiEH, & E# S5 17 350 5,629

Lease payments not included in the WAt ABEGESEZE 150

measurement of lease liabilities =LNER 351 172
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 2 Em i B 1,350 1,250
Employee benefit expense (including ERERANHES (BREEEKER

directors’ and chief executive’s BITEASFHE)

remuneration) *:

Wages and salaries TITERFE 34,838 34,874

Pension scheme contributions ** BIREEHEIH R 5,564 3,169

Foreign exchange differences, net BE R ERRIR R 205 892

Write-off of amounts due from a related  #if$5 F& U — & RE Bt 75 3018

party - 2,877

Impairment of trade receivables B 5 EWEIERE 22 3,387 3,708

(Reversal)/impairment of contract assets &4 & & (#[o]) FE 24 (2,616) 2,830

Impairment of due from related parties & U B8 Bk 75 =R IE R (B 482 =

(Reversal)/impairment of loan receivablesFEWE = (#[ol) E{E 23(b) (436) 951

Research and development costs PR EE A 5,016 4,046

Fair value losses/(gains), net: NFERBE (W) $58

Fair value changes on derivative financial T &/ T B2 A FEEH)

instruments 653 1,981
Financial assets at fair value through 2 AT E5T AIBZEHY

profit or loss THEE 18,697 (3,556)

Bank and other interest income SRIT R EAMF) BUA (14,805) (10,765)

Investment income REWA (4,504) (8,414)

Gain on disposal of items of property, HEY¥ -MEKRZEIER

plant and equipment, net Z W B EE ) -

* Part of the depreciation, amortisation of other intangible assets * AEEHEMBEEENTERBHEUKRES
and employee benefit expense for the year are included in “Cost BREEZN—H2Et ASHERREM
of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 2EWAFKANEEE A ©
comprehensive income.

** There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by > BEaHAER ((FAREE) BREREHM
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of KEZBELERER RZE2EZ—F+ZAH
contributions. At 31 December 2021, the Group had no forfeited =+ —H AEEHESRERERATAR
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the pension HORKREENEARESEEHR (CEZE
schemes in future years (2020: Nil). F ) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HMIFEIRRMEE
31 December 2021 —Z-—&H+_"H=+—H
FINANCE COSTS 7. BB
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MEREANDTUT -
2021 2020
—E=—F ZEIEFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Interest on bank loans IRITERHE 12,907 9,455
Interest on deposits payable ﬁ§ T8 15 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEaGNE 71 45
Total interest expense HHEREE 12,993 9,500
Less: Interest capitalised B BRI B (5,751) (7,715)
7,242 1,785
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EFEKRESITHAERMN
REMUNERATION
Directors and chief executives’ remuneration for the year, disclosed EERESTHAERERNFBIEER L™

pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

RA

B B(REMEAINE383(1)(@) ~ (b) ~ (c) K (f)

HERARE REBEESFZER) RO F28B

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, BUWT
is as follows:
2021 2020
—EZ—F TEIEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARMEFT
Fees wWE 606 649
Other emoluments: HAup = -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e 2 AREYEF 1,327 1,384
Performance related bonuses EERATEAL 1,590 1,260
Pension scheme contributions BRIRE R 118 100
3,641 3,393
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S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EEREEITHAEEHN (B
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BILIERITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FRABIERITESEZANEEN
the year were as follows: K
2021 2020
—E—5F _ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREBF T
Mr. Shiping James Wang FHFLED 21 89
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BEBLLT 108 116
Mr. Wang Huaping FEFLEE 83 89
Mr. He Chengying @ Bt 62 -
274 294
There were no other emoluments payable to the FERUEENBILIIENTEEZHM
independent non-executive directors during the year (2020: e (CEZZTF 8| o
Nil).
0 Mr. Shiping James Wang resigned on 1 April 2021. i FHERER T —FMEOBE—H
BHfEe
@ Mr. He Chengying was appointed on 1 April 2021. @ AHBEENR S —FEW0E—H
BT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EEREEITHAEHN (B
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors (b) BITESE
2021 —E-—F
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Name of directors Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
E0RY= 95 EWER BAEHE
EENA ik BUER 4 3 gt

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AEBTT ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR

Executive directors: BTES!
Mr. Li Cheng THLE 83 846 420 52 1401
Mr. Li Conghua TRERE 83 - - - 83
Mr. Ma Qinghai EFERLE 83 301 750 52 1186
Mr. Xu Wensheng X BRE 83 180 420 14 697
332 1,327 1,590 118 3,367
2020 —E-=H
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Name of directors Fees in kind bonuses contrioutions Total
E = Gyl RiNEEd
BENY & BMER ft4 H3R gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEBTR  ARETR ARETT ARETR  ARBTR
Executive directors; PITES!
Mr. Li Cheng FHAE 89 Q07 420 17 1433
Mr. Li Conghua FRERL 89 - - - 89
Mr. Ma Qinghai EFERLE 89 301 420 75 885
Mr. Xu Wensheng BB RE 88 176 420 8 692
355 1,384 1,260 100 3,099
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FREERARNEEREXRERNET
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. AT $r BBy 2 Bk
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S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. ZAEREIHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included 3 FR AR HNMEEBRE=-2HTESE
executive directors (2020: 3 executive directors), details of (Z2IZF  Z2WTESR) > BENFHW
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Detalils of the BN EXMIEE8 s T (T2 IR E
remuneration for the year of the remaining 2 (2020: 2) highest paid Me) REamEERFERNNFMEBOT

employees are as follows:

2021 2020
—E—HF TEISEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®EFT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYIET 958 792
Performance related bonuses BEXARRETEAL 456 320
Pension scheme contributions BIAREEHEIHR 150 88
1,564 1,200

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose FWNFETIHEEFEENRESHFMEEA

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: U1

2021 2020
—E—F _E_RE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 51,000,00078 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 775 22,500,0007 75 = =
HK$4,500,000 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,0007%8 75 2 5,000,0007 7T = -
2 2
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Pursuant to the applicable rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman lIslands and the BVI.

All of the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are
subject to profits tax at a rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying
entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2020: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this
subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%).

A subsidiary of the Group incorporated in Malaysia is subject to
profits tax at a rate of 24% (2020: 24%). No provision for taxation
in Malaysia has been made, as the subsidiary did not generate
any assessable profits arising in Malaysia for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

A subsidiary of the Group incorporated in Cambodia is subject to
profits tax at a rate of 20% (2020: 20%). No provision for taxation
in Cambodia has been made, as the subsidiary did not generate
any assessable profits arising in Cambodia for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

A subsidiary of the Group incorporated in Myanmar is subject to
profits tax at a rate of 25% (2020: 25%). No provision for taxation
in Myanmar has been made, as the subsidiary did not generate
any assessable profits arising in Myanmar for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

All of the Group’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC having
operations only in Mainland China are subject to the PRC
enterprise income tax on the taxable income as reported in their
PRC statutory accounts adjusted in accordance with relevant PRC
income tax laws. The PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law introduced
a wide range of changes which include, but are not limited to,
the unification of the income tax rates for domestic-invested and
foreign-invested enterprises at 25%.

BHMBEER R

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

10. FRISMEAX

REREEEREBEXEENERRIR
ERAEEBRNRENEREBE LB
SRMIERRSR-

AEEFREESEEMARILINKBATNEA
1BF)EINEK16.5% (ZEZZTF : 16.5%) 4

MRIB-MERNREBELE ZGERER R
Mms EAEEN—ERBRERIN ZA
BATEMMBEFSRMEFIENSE -Z
Mt B A B E2,000,0008 7T (ZE_ZF !
2,000,000/ 7t) M AER IR EF]1%8.25% (Z &
T 1 8.25%) IR EER > HerERR A
FE#216.5% (T - F 1 16.5%) IR EH
o

FEERERADEMA I —HWEAF
ERFIBME24% (ZEZTE 1 24%) 4
MRNBE-ARZNBRATIRBE—T - —F
+ZR=t+—HLEEEIERERADESL
ERERREH > BARTERAERIBIFL
BE CZIZE | o

FEERFFHEEZMRIZ —BNBLBA
BABIRE20% (ZEZZF 1 20%) HHR
B -HRZWEBARRBE_Z_—F+_
B=+t—HLFELERRERELEME
AER MR IUARRBFLER CF

TRE H) e

AEBREAGZMRIIZ — BB ABABRE
FIEMEK25% (B _TF : 25%) MK
BHo-mRZHBRARRSEE S -_—F+=
B=+—HIEFETEN EaESXTMAER
Mad WA AaRBIEHEE CTE
FE) e

REEFRARPEEMLERPEAMEE
BB B A B A AN R EDEER B (IRBIEE
REIPRISIAFHRE) A2WRIERRUA
BT EE PRSI - PEEFEFTEHRIZES
A—RINE  BEEFTRRBEARER
SNEEERIPISRERM—7525%°
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S HIFEHRRMEE
31 December 2021 —_ZB_—F+_H=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
with the approval from the tax authorities in charge, one of the
Group’s subsidiaries, Yongsheng Dyeing, qualified as a High and
New Technology Enterprise, is entitled to the preferential enterprise
income tax rate of 15% for three years from 2021 to 2023.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on the dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore
liable to 5% withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of their earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately RMB96,720,000 at 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB96,720,000). In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future.

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 are:

10. FRSIRFAX (@)

BB RERBARRE AU RE S EREK
BE AEEE R — A E AR KERE
I BB RS E BN T —
EE-B = EMEA15%NEELERE
GED

RIEPEEEMERE EPRPEMRILIE
TEBBIIGEEERNEEBHNI0%TE
mn BRRAEHRIZENF—B—HELE
BoBAR_ZEELFE+ZA=1+—HEWN
E%IJoﬁuﬁEPFﬁii’é%?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ’ﬁiﬂ%@ﬂﬁ
MEGL A EBEERENTEINRE ARE
BRMBOEENZEETERIININE A
BAEZEENFE—FB —HEBRNNEBFFTIK
EHREBASREINRM - R T —F+Z
B=+—H EBEERBEGHAHEIEARN
FRABERMKEBABRENGRERES
N NRET96,720,0007t (ZE2EZZF | AR
#96,720,0007T) cEEFR A > ZEWB LA
R REREHFEFEDIRZERF]

BE T —EFRIFTEEL_AZ=+—
HIEFE FASIMASHNIEMEMMBOWT !

2021 2020

—E"—F “ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREF T
Current tax BNAERTRIE 8,435 16,143
Deferred tax (note 33) IRIERRIE (Ff15E33) (6,254) 1,288
Total tax charge for the year FRRIBS HAREE 2,181 17,431

15BE VYongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E-—F+-"B=+—H
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10. FRIFIRRAX (B&)

MERATEGRMRUEARBDREKRSH

Reconciliation of the tax expense and the accounting profit
multiplied by the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the

WEABMEREREIEERENEIRD

Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled: T
2021 2020
=5 TECEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEFTT
(Loss)/profit before tax BRIRAT (B518) A (244,142) 88,574
Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate of 25% %75 E IR F25% 5T E IR 18 (61,036) 22,143
Lower tax rates enacted by local authority EHRNEFENRERE 14,264 (2,870)
Effect of preferential enterprise income tax rate BRI HEFTEMENSE (3,702) (6,216)
Income not subject to tax BEMBUWA (17) (153)
Expenses not deductible for tax AENKRES 50,463 873
Tax losses and temporary difference RN IE R R ERE
not recognised 1,493 1,914
Tax losses utilised from previous periods FABFHRERIESE 2 (191)
Derecognition of deferred tax assets for the BUHRESR E—FEM
previous year FIER IS EE 681 =
Recognition of deterred tax assets R E—FENRIERBEE
for the previous year (629) -
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the BAERTENB AT Z
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC AR F5%ET EFEINMR 2
subsidiaries T 1,418 2,387
Additional deduction of research and Bt 22 AR AN RO BB SMO B
development cost (752) (456)
Tax charge at the effective income tax rate of IR B EEFF1ER Z(0.9)%
(0.9)% (2020: 19.7%) TEITEF 1197%) 518
HiRIES H 2,181 17,431
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BHMERRMEE
31 December 2021 —Z-Z—F+"H=+—H
11. DIVIDENDS 11. I8
2021 2020
—E—5F _ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBEF T
Interim — HK$0.01 (equivalent to RMB0.0083) HHI—& IR ZiER0.0178 7T
(2020: HK$0.015 (equivalent to RMB0.0134))  ({HE 7 A R #£0.00837T)
per ordinary share (CZ T4 0.0158 T
FEER AR0.01347T)) 6,083 9,797
Proposed final - nil BRI —SREERS
(2020: HK$0.02 (equivalent to (ZZZEHF 1 0.0287T
RMB0.0168)) per ordinary share (HEER AR0.01687T)) - 12,330
6,083 22,127
The Board of directors has resolved not to propose any final EEERRATEBKNEBE_ZE - —&F+Z
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: propose a B=+—HLEEENEMKRPRE (T2 -
final dividend of HK$0.02 per ordinary share amounting to a total of F BB RBRESKREERK0.028 T
RMB12,330,000). 4 st AR #12,330,0007T) ©
12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. ZRT)REREGER (B518)

ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

Basic (loss)/earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing
the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
the same as the basic loss per share as the share options had an
anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share during the year. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, diluted earnings per share
amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, plus the weighted average number
of ordinary shares that would be issued on the deemed exercise of
all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic
and diluted earnings per share computations:

& I ERRMIEE
31 December 2021 —Z-—&H+_"H=+—H
12. ZRFRREEER (518)
755*'] (n\ﬁ)

UTRMANRGESRERREERF W
AR RAD 8

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARHTT
Earnings: R
(Loss)/profit attributable to shareholders of the  Z<A T IR SR FE(L (B518) /& F)
Company — basic and diluted —BEARKREE (245,307) 72,685
Number of shares
& E
2021 2020
—E-—% —Eo®E
Shares: B1n :
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FLEtEESREREFIME 2
for basic earnings per share calculation @A %:Fi’:]%( 732,428,523 735,805,931
Effect of dilution — weighted average number of ##E57 £— @k
ordinary shares: 7][]7%3@’3%1 5
Share options* B - 7,029,580
Weighted average number of ordinary shares S IE #2221 E @K
adjusted for the effect of dilution INHEF 8 732,428,523 742,835,511

*

The calculation of diluted loss per share for the years ended
31 December 2021 did not assume the exercise of the share
options since its inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

* AERE_Z_—F+-_A=+—HLEF
}#E’Jﬁﬁx%ﬁ‘éﬁﬂé I ERRITERERE
HER#HTE
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31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - B ER=E

Office
Plant and equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings machinery Vehicles and others  improvements in progress Total
WAERER
BF  HEREH RE Hitr HE%E ERIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARETT ARETR ARETx ARETR  ARETR  ARETx
At 1 January 2021, RZB2Z-5-F-H1

net of accumulated depreciation E?D BREHTE 26,890 27,687 197 903 794 26,055 82,526
Additions - 2,539 1,793 2,239 - 8,938 15,509
Transfer from investment properties @ﬁ" BREME (HzH4)

(note 14) = = = = = 24,180 24,180
Depreciation provided during the year ~ EI5HEA0ITE (1,604) (3,192 (52) (187) (283) - (5,318)
Exchange realignment ERBEE - - - 3 (5) - @
Disposals HE - (80) - - - - (80)
Transfer o 34,993 - - - - (34,993) -
At 31 December 2021, R_E_—£+_R8

net of accumulated depreciation =+—H BNRRANE 60,279 26,954 1,938 2,958 506 24,180 116,815
At 31 December 2021: RZB_—&+ZA8

=+-R:

Cost R 84,563 71,405 3,736 5,384 3,052 24,180 192,320

Accumulated depreciation RiE (24,284) (44,451) (1,798) (2,426) (2,546) - (75,505)

Net carrying amount REFE 60,279 26,954 1,938 2,958 506 24,180 116,815
At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated R =E-FF—F—H

depreciation EMBEHTE 28,243 30,065 219 980 752 21,355 81,614
Additions RE - 1,004 - 17 53 4,700 5,774
Depreciation provided during the year E REHRETE (1,353) (3,382) (19) (90) ) - 4,850)
Exchange realignment BEREY - - @) @ (5) - (12)
At 31 December 2020, net of RIBZEE+CA

accumulated depreciation =+—H BNBRRHTE 26,800 27,687 197 903 794 26,055 82,526
At 31 December 2020: RZBZEE+ZA

=t+-B:

Cost %S 49,569 69,507 1,945 3,147 3,054 26,055 153,277

Accumulated depreciation KEE (22,679) (41,820) (1,748) (2,244) (2,260) - (70,751)

Net carmying amount BEEE 26,890 27,687 197 903 79 26,055 82,56

At 31 December 2021, certain of the construction in progress with
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB24,180,000 (2020:

A_E_—F+"BA=+—H > REFEY
A ARM24,180,0007c (ZE_ZFF | ARK

RMB26,055,000) was pledged to secure long-term loan facilities
granted to the Group by a bank.

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s buildings with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB54,460,000 (2020:
RMB21,646,000) were pledged to secure short-term and long-
term loan facilities granted to the Group by a bank.
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BHMBEER R

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. IEWE
Under
construction Completed Total
EiErh BT #ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT AREBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 A —E-EF-B—HMNEREE 614,298 40,400 654,698
Additions NE 100,256 — 100,256
Fair value changes recognised RIEE RN AT EEE
in profit or loss 4,769 (4,400) 369
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 and C:g_ ZE+_A=+—HRK
1 January 2021 2T HF—-F—HWKREE 719,323 36,000 755,323
Additions NE 48,168 = 48,168
Transferred to investment properties BEBFECBTREYE
completed (767,491) 767,491 -
Fair value changes recognised RIEEPEEN AT EEE
in profit or loss - (104,651) (104,651)
Transfer to owner-occupied property T q R - (24,180) (24,180)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 RIEZ—F+Z“HA=1+—HH
REE - 674,660 674,660

The Group’s investment properties consist of two commercial
properties in Hangzhou, the PRC. The Group’s investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2021 based on
valuations performed by Avista Valuation Advisory Limited
(“Avista”), an independent professionally qualified valuer, at
RMB674,660,000. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s finance manager and the chief
financial officer have discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed
for financial reporting.

The completed investment properties are leased under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 15 to
the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s investment properties with
a carrying value of RMB638,760,000 (2020: RMB719,323,000)
were pledged to secure long-term loan facilities granted to the
Group by a bank.

AEEBNKEYESEMER FEIMN
BEME - AEBNREMWER ST —F
+ A=+ HRBBIEESERMGERM
N EETEABAERAE (MEH)) HITH
fHEET TETE%AE”A%GM,(SG0,000 7T o B BE
ZREEMSBI#H - BE - BUMREEES
SEERE RN BRBETHER £EE
BERERERYEERGEERIRGHES
REMEEMET Mo

BRIREMERBEEHERE
— A B SN R 5E160

BRI

AR —F+ZA=+—HB AEBRKEA
EA ARH638,760,000 0 (CE_ZTF: AR
#719,323,0007T) L B E B FIKIH LIGE
—HEiRITEAERBEHRBERRME -
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31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. HEWE (B
(CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy NTEERELR
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy TRAAXEERLENEN AT EFEBR:

of the Group’s investment properties:

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2021 using

FERUTHALENR
—®--F+IA=+-BNATEHE
Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HiEEmS AHRYN  FAHEN

DREE EZBUAYE EZBRAYE

(E—1R) (B4 E=R) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TR AE%®Tn AE¥TR AR%TR

Recurring fair value measurement for: UTEBNESERATENE !
Completed commercial properties L ANERYES - - 674,660 674,660
- - 674,660 674,660
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2020 using
EALUTHARBIR
ZEIZF+ A+ —HARATERHE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HiEEMS AERRN  TABREN
DERE EZHAME SZBAYE \
E—H) (EZH) (BE=H W5t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ABBTRE  ARETT  ARETR
Recurring fair value measurement for: UTERENEEMATESS
Completed commercial properties BTEEYE - - 36,000 36,000
Commercial properties under construction EREEYE - - 719,323 719,323
- - 755,323 755,323
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FRER—ARME AR E AFEFE
BYE O MEZRITREAGAIEL (T2

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3

(2020: Ni). T ) o

AR
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2021

& I ERRMIEE
- —F+”"H=+—H

14. REYE (@)

UTHREVELAEERNGLERTRES

inputs to the valuation of investment properties: B A SRRV RE A
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
BRI TRIHRNEER A YIS EE S NET 9
2021 2020
—E—f ZEIEF
Property 1 — Yongsheng Plaza ~ Term and reversionary ~ Term yields 3.8%-5.3% NA
ME1 —KBEKRE method FRAM G = TEA
FHRIERE
Reversionary yields 4.0%-5.5% NA
BER U TEA
Market rents RMB NA
(RMB/square meter/month) ARE TEA
misEE 76-1907T

Residual method

BREE

Property 2 — Zhejiang Private Term and reversionary

Enterprise Development method
Building FHARIERE
M2 —MIRE

TrEERAE

ANREFHK/A)

Reversionary yields
I ES

Budgeted construction
costs to be incurred
(RMB/square metre/month)
BELNFEEREME
(NR¥,/TEHK/B)

Developer’s profit
EREEmA

Market rents
(RMB/square meter/month)
eprickn
ANRE/FHXK/B)

Term yields
FHBGER

Reversionary yields
R =

Market rents

(RMB/square meter/month)
btk

AR/ FEHK/A))

NA 4.0%-5.5%

FiEF
NA 776

R
NA 5%-20%

T8
NA RMB
RiEF AR
90-2107T
3.5% 3.5%
4.0% 4.0%
73 73
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31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. IREYE (B)

(CONTINUED)

For completed commercial properties, fair values are generally
derived using the term and reversionary method. This method is
based on the tenancy agreements as at the respective valuation
dates. The rental income derived within the tenancy agreements is
discounted by adopting term yields and the potential reversionary
income is discounted by adopting appropriate reversionary yields
for the period beyond the rental period in the tenancy agreements.
Potential reversionary income and the reversionary yields are
derived from analysis of prevailing market rents and the valuer’s
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or expectations.
The prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation were
determined with reference to recent lettings, within the subject
properties and other comparable properties.

A significant increase (decrease) in the market rent per month
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the
term yield and the reversionary yield in isolation would result in a
significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of the investment
properties.

Fair values of the investment properties under development are
generally derived using the residual method. This valuation method
is essentially a means of valuing the construction with reference
to its development potential by deducting development costs and
developer’s profit and risk from the estimated capital value of the
proposed development assuming completed as at the date of
valuation.

A significant increase (decrease) in the market rent per month
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the
reversionary yield, budgeted construction costs to be incurred per
month and developer’s profit in isolation would result in a significant
decrease (increase) in the fair value of the investment properties.
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S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

15. LEASES 15. 15

The Group as a lessee EEBERZEHEA

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leased land and AEBMEELIHMEBFELEEBEBHIAHE
buildings. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the BN -—RUENREERMPZNUBES
leased land from the owners with lease periods of 50 years, and ABEHRE T # > FAEEAL0F BT E
no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land HEKBERRFAEMNR - EFHENHBRR
leases. Leases of buildings generally have lease terms between 2 BRESF - BEME  NEBT AT HINEE
and 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and FEAANERNHEEE - EETEEMHE
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There are several TREEEN BErE TITXE—Ftmeo

lease contracts with constant lease payments, which are further
discussed below.

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EHEESE

The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets and FRAEEGTHAREENERERES
the movements during the year are as follows: EUulF

Leasehold
land Buildings Total
HE LT Bg¥ “aEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EFT AR®EFT ARETFT

As at 1 January 2020 RE-ZEE—F—H 10,746 662 11,408
Additions wRE S 1,479 1,479
Depreciation charge TEMX (315) (994) (1,309)
Exchange realignment FE DT - (60) (60)
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 RZEZIZEF+ZA=+—H

January 2021 —2-—%F—HF—H 10,431 1,087 11,518
Additions RE S 343 343
Depreciation charge mERS (315) 916) (1,231)
Exchange realignment BRI = (6) ©6)
As at 31 December 2021 A _E_—F+"B=+—H 10,116 508 10,624
The Group’s land use rights are corresponding to the lands RNEBEW T MERRE S KA ER
located in Hangzhou of the PRC and the remaining lease M+ R B —F+-H=+—
periods were 32 years as at 31 December 2021. B8R TNHEEIAR325
At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s land use rights A TE T —F+_A=+—H KxER
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB3,894,000 IREVFEN S ARS,894,0005T (ZF
(2020: RMB4,017,000) were pledged to secure short-term —_ZFE AR¥4,017,0007T) WET L
loan facilities granted to the Group by a bank. MEREDFIRF UZE—HIETAER

ERERHEHERRE -

KM RRAT 2021FH% 195



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. fAE (&)
TEBEAEREAN @)

(b) Lease liabilities (b) THEEE

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

FREEER (BEGRBRITRAEME
) BREEREHNT :

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) and the
movements during the year are as follows:

2021 2020

—E—F —ECEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTT AR¥TT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—HB—HBZEAE 1,106 646

New leases MEE 343 1,479
Accretion of interest recognised FRERENEIESE

during the year 71 45

Payments IR (911) (1,001)

Exchange realignment PE R R (40) (63)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZBA=+—HZEKEE 569 1,106

Analysed into: PR iiw=
Current portion BRERER 3 539 803
Non-current portion JERNEREL 30 303

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 42 HEEGEZIBESMEERSHIF

to the consolidated financial statements.

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (c)
are as follows:

HmRMIEE420

MEERBEEREINEEROT

2021 2020

—E"—F “ETE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT AREBFT
Interest on lease liabilities HMEaEZFE 71 45
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ERAREEZITERX 1,231 1,309
Expense relating to short-term leases PR EAERENVRE 351 172
Total amount recognised in profit or loss M8 PSR AR AR 1,653 1,526
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15. LEASES (CONTINUED)

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in notes 43(c)
to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor
The Group leases certain of its completed investment properties

(note 14) and plants to third parties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for completed investment properties are

BHIREHRRIEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

15. fHE (48)

(d) HENRTRLBENM BRI
43(c)HF I EE o

FEEFRLEA
AEERBCEAERFHARETERT

REME HE14) KBETHE=ZH -BET
REVEZHPRBESNF—EE+F M

negotiated for terms ranging from 1 year to 10 years and those for

B2 AR —F-

plants are for terms of 1 year.

Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB6,616,000 (2020: RMB1,946,000), details of which are
include in note 5 to the financial statements.

ERAEBCREIVNEAEHRABARE
6,616,0007c (ZZ2-ZF | AR ¥1,946,000
7T)  BREGEBE N B RRM S

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments N_E-—F+_"_HB=+—H BBAxEH

receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable BIEEEAE Y A BN KSSHENEI R

operating leases with its tenants are as follows: BRIBFA S IEW T :
2021 2020
—EZ—F TETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AR¥TT
Within one year —FR 19,160 1,431
After one year but within two years —F U EBREMURN 24,232 1,857
After two years but within three years MEU EEB=FURN 23,839 1,933
After three years but within four years =ZF U EBEEUR 21,709 1,928
After four years but within five years WEMN EEBREMUA 22,341 1,439
After five years but within six years AEEM EBREMUR 22,726 1,457
After six years but within seven years NEUEBEEMUR 22,317 1,511
After seven years but within eight years T HEUEBNAEUR 21,230 1,133
177,554 12,689
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BHMERRMEE
31 December 2021 —ZE_—F+_"_H=+—H
16. GOODWILL 16. &
RMB’000
AR#FT
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2020 RZEZEF—HA—HZHEAKEREE 105,923
Exchange realignment bE R EE (6,409)
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2020 RZEZEF+-"A=+—HZ
PR AN 5 BRI (B 99,514
At 31 December 2020 RIEZEF+°"H=1+—H
Cost D% 99,514
Accumulated impairment RETRE -
Net carrying amount REEE 99,514
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2021 MR- —F—HA—HZHEAREEE 99,514
Impairment during the year FRRE (98,064)
Exchange realignment PE 2 A (1,450)
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2021 A CET—F+"A=+—HZ
%7 R AR T (B -
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+ZHB=+—H
Cost |27 96,676
Accumulated impairment RETRE (96,676)

Net carrying amount

RERE -

Impairment testing of goodwill

BERENR

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to
the following cash-generating unit (CGU) for impairment testing:

. RMAA Service CGU;

The recoverable amount of the RMAA Service cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 22.0% (2020: 18.1%).
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the RMAA
Service cash-generating unit beyond the five-year period is 2.5%
(2020: 2.5%), which is the same as the long-term average growth
rate of the RMAA Service industry.
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S HIFEHRRMEE
31 December 2021 —E - —%F+_HA=+—H

16. GOODWILL(CONTINUED) 16. B2 (8B)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued) &R ENE (B

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the cash-generating PEERSESFEMNZBHEEEENT -

unit is as follows:

RMAA services Total
RMAARR# @t
2021 2020 2021 2020
—EC-f ZECEE ZECZ-F “ECERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AERBFRT ARETT ARBTR ARETT

Carrying amount of goodwil FEERMEE - 99,514 - 99,514
Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the A2 —F+ZA=1+—HRMAARRFR
RMAA Service cash-generating unit for 31 December 2021. The CELBEMATHEENTSBEERTRSE -8

EERFREAEV/AEELETHERE
ARz EET2HREAOT

following describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
increased for expected efficiency improvements, and expected
market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Growth rate estimate — Rate is based on common industry
practice.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of RMB98,064,000 in relation to the goodwiill
of the RMAA Service CGU (2020: Nil), the principal activity of
which is the provision of renovation, maintenance, alteration and
addition services. Because of the effect of COVID-19, the operating
performances and the growth rate of the RMAA Service CGU
were below expectations which resulted in an operating loss.
Accordingly, management provided for the impairment for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

BREENX-AREENRETFTREEN XD
BEMRANEEREEREFEN —FR
FRERNTHENR SHNERNEEE
FRBHANTIGERMAPTRMN

IR -FrRAMAEREDGRATRIRER N
f2 Bk B AR R BB (L R4S TE R g o

BERGSF-HBERXDER—RITREMNF
LIJjO

REE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILEE:"
AEBMRMAARBE RS EL BN ER
TR EEREARKS,064,000 T (ZE =
F .8 HIBEKZREEE RE X
BRMEZIR - ANCOVID-198 % RMAA
RERESELCBUNKCEEEREEERRR
T BRKEEE - RIL EEEREEC
T —F+A=+—BILFEFRBER
e
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B HMERRMGE

31 December 2021

— ==

—=—_

o S = -

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. HtW B\ EE

Technical Sewage pipe Contract
know-how usage right backlog Brand Total
LI BKEERRE FRIAK kg fast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT N S ARETT AREFT
At 1 January 2021, net of RIE_—F-F—H>
accumulated amortisation BIIR R EH 150 2,094 - 54,817 57,061
Amortisation provided during the A5 R H0E 8
year (150) (200) - - (350)
Impairment during the year ERAE - - - (53,739) (53,739)
Exchange realignment ERHE - - - (809) (803)
At31 December 2021, netof ~ RZBZ—&F+”-F=1+—H>
accumulated amortisation EMBRR - 1,804 = 275 2,169
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—-F+_F=1—H
Cost [IEN 6,326 4,190 - 53,254 63,770
Accumulated impairment RAE - - - (52979) (52,979)
Accumulated amortisation BB (6,326) (2,296) - = (8629
Net carrying amount REEE - 1,804 - 275 2,169
At 1 January 2020, net of RIEZ2E-F—H>
accumulated amortisation B R 386 2,295 5233 58,347 66,261
Amortisation provided during the A2 R0 8
year 236) 01) (5,19 - (5629
Exchange realignment ERAE - - 1) (3,530) (3,571)
At 31 December 2020, netof ~ RZEF_FE+_A=+-H>
accumulated amortisation BINBRR 150 2,094 - 54,817 57,061
At 31 December 2020 RIZZ2F+ZA=1-H
Cost [ 6,326 4,190 9,014 54,817 74,347
Acoumulated amortisation Rt B 6,176) (2,096) (0.014) - (17,286)
Net carrying amount REE 150 2,004 - 54,817 57,061
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(CONTINUED)

(@)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Brand with indefinite useful life acquired through business
combination is allocated to the RMAA Service CGU.

Impairment testing of intangible asset with indefinite

useful life

The value of brand with indefinite useful life is assessed annually
by using the relief from the royalty method calculated based on a
five-year cash flow projection approved by senior management.
The fair value of the brand was equal to the future royalty saving

resulting from ownership of the asset.

The key assumptions, royalty saving rate, long term growth rate
and discount rate used in the annual impairment testing of brand
with indefinite useful life in 2020 and 2021 are as follows:

31 December 2021

BHMAEHRRMEE
T —HF+"HA=+—H

17. HiWEBEEE (B)

(a)

BREBAHERBZEREAFENRE
D ECTFRMAARR 53R S EE LR B AL ©

BREAFPELEERENS

BERCAEHREZEESERARR
ﬁ#%@ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ}ftﬁuﬂﬁ S8
ERNKESREEERENLFHREMRE
BAl-mEATESNEEEEMSDNS
BIRRFFFREERE -

CECSER-SEC 5 BERERE
PRBEERENRTRE T EE
D BHREEBPNE EPREX

K BEIREET ¢
2021 2020
—E_—F ZETEF
Brand (%) Brand (%)
Key assumptions FER/RR i h (%) S (%)
Sales annual growth rate HEREFEREX (59)%-3% (5)%-11%
Royalty saving rate SRR EHNX 0.3% 7.6%
Long term growth rate R EX 2.5% 2.5%
Pre-tax discount rate FRIGATALIR 20.4% 19.4%

Sales annual growth rate is the average annual growth rate over
the forecast period, which is based on past performance and
management’s expectations of market development.

The royalty saving rate used is with reference to comparable
intangible assets and the related royalty rates that the buyers

typically pay for the use of such assets.

The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific risks

relating to the RMAA Service CGU.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with

external information sources.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of RMB53,739,000 in relation
to the brand of the RMAA Service CGU (2020: Nil). As detailed
in note 16, the operating performances and the growth rate of
the RMAA Service CGU were below expectations. Accordingly,
based on the impairment test, management provided for the
impairment for the year ended 31 December 2021.

S B R E T A B AR KT

FRER ANBTEUAREEEHT
GRRETA -
PR AR ST REERBHAXN 2R

BLERETEERBEAWERAREE
BEXMNARMEFEERE-

Fﬁ?‘%ﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁf]ﬁ%%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ?ﬁ

RMAARRF IR & EE BUMABNEE

[
PDEFEERERNEELINBE RN KR

HE—Ro

RBEE_E-_—F+-_F=+—HIHF

B> REBTFRMAARTF IR E4E B
B SR REHE SR E B 18 AR 153,739,000
TT(CTEZEFE L8| o sE16FTE
ﬁ’RMAAHEFEE$§$$149U%§%¥
BREEEENTAR EIL RIBRHE
Aa  EEERS8E_S2-_—F+_H4
=+ —HIEFEEHRAEREE -
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31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. REEEENRKE
2021 2020
—E—HF —_E°F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREBF T
Share of net assets TMEEEZFE 3,478 =
The Group’s other receivable balance with the joint venture was AEEBEEELENEMBWEREERITE
disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements. HRERMIFE38 0
(a) Particulars of the Group’s joint venture (@) TEENSETEHRE
Particulars Place of Percentage of
of issued registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held and business interest power sharing activities
FrEZBH#T R BEERE
L& R s%1E R BAL KRER AMEER TEEHR
Hangzhou Zhixing New Registered capital of ~ PRC/Mainland 40 40 40  Production and
Material Technology Co.,Ltd RMB9,000,000 China sales of building
(*Hangzhou Zhixing”) structural
reinforcement
materials
MNESEHMREBERAR (M FRREARE hE,/ B LERBERTE
MEE) 9,000,000 e
The above investment is indirectly held by the Company. MR ERANBEETE o
Hangzhou Zhixing, which is considered as a material joint MMNERBEREAEENEAGE
venture of the Group, acts as the Group's distributor of 2 EARATERTFREAM TEERH
industrial products in Mainland China and is accounted for KiIEmITE L AR EARK

using the equity method.
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S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E - —%F+_HA=+—H

18. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

18. REEEFENRKRE (@)

(@) TEENSEEREFE (B

(a) Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures

(Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Hangzhou Zhixing adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the
carrying amount in the financial statements:

TERRAA BN S EA R E R
2 EREAERNERAERFHAE
Mt B RAANREEZHIR

2021
—E—F
RMB’000
AR®ETT
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRSEEY 434
Other current assets HftvmEh& E 59
Current assets RBEE 493
Other non-current assets HMIERBEE 2,006
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERRE 8,794
Right-of-use assets FREEE 4,950
Other intangible assets HihWEFTEE 12,062
Non-current assets IEREE E 27,812
Other current liabilities Himeshas (19,610)
Current liabilities mEaE (19,610)
Net assets BEEFE 8,695
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest KEBREGENE)HmZHER
in the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership RERBZ EARELLA 40%
Carrying amount of the investment KEZIREE 3,478
Depreciation and amortisation T EE R 8 (204)
Interest expenses MERZ (100)
Tax I8 -
Loss for the year FERNEIE (304)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREMEEIBEEE (304)
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31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

19. INVENTORIES 19. 7 &
2021 2020
—E—5F _ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥TT
Raw materials Er 3,969 3,380
Work in progress RS 1,453 450
Finished goods E e 1,125 963
6,547 4,793
20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20. ERERHPWE
2021 2020
—EF—F TEIEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEFTT
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year ~ FE#JREE 223,025 198,524
Additions B 2,605 24,501
Transferred to completed properties held EBEEFFHENEB T Y=
for sale (Note 21) (MFzE21) (225,630) =
Carrying amount at the end of the year FREREE - 223,025
The Group’s properties under development are situated on AEBZERPYWEMUNPEAMBEE L
leasehold land in Mainland China. ] o
At 31 December 2020, certain properties under development of RZEZEF+HA=1+—H AR
approximately RMB223,025,000 were pledged to secure long- 223,025,000t E TEEHRMESEFHE
term loan facilities granted to the Group by a bank (note 31). No o ABR—ERTALSERR T ZEH
such pledged properties under development as at 31 December EX#ME (E31) cRZE2E-—F+_A4
2021, =+t—H #HEERERERYE-
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22.
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B OHIATER AR ML
31 December 2021 —E-—F+-"B=+—H
COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR 21. HIELEMNEETYE
SALE
2021 2020
—B=—% —BoBE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBF

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year ~ E#1IRE &

Transferred from properties under development 3 H 3 E % (Mf5120)

(Note 20)

225,630 =

Carrying amount at the end of the year FERREE

225,630 =

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s completed
properties held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMB225,630,000 (2020: Nil) were pledged to
secure long-term loan facilities granted to the Group by a bank
(note 31). The value of completed properties held for sale was
assessed at the end of the reporting period. There was no
impairment and the realisable value of the completed properties
held for sale exceeded their carrying value.

N _E_—F+_B=+—H > Ax&EBET
“(E AK N R 225,630,000 (C B - Z4HF !
#)NBELEEBRTIYECFHER 1A
ER—ERTHAERRFZREBERRE
(fF5E31) - FELHENEEIYEMNBED
REREHARMEH TG T E Y IREE RE
AFFHENEB ITYE S JHIREBBB
HERmE@E-

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22. B REKRIEREKRERE
2021 2020
—E—F TETEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
Trade receivables B EIEIE 24,637 42,425
Bills receivable iglet 42,907 38,116
67,544 80,541
Impairment BE (4,966) (5,722)
Net trade and bills receivable B 5 RN IB K e N ZE 5 3B 62,578 74,819
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31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally 3 months. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

22. BHRWRIEREWREE (&)

FEBRZERBNESRRUEERT &
MEF—RARKENRGEIN -EEHEESS
BR -SREFPHURERSEERE FEH
RNBREFRRECEBRE MR EE
[ B TE AR 5 8 B A B o BB E PRt N b
FEREZRIERBERREDHERERM
BMIEBEEREERBRETHERL BZEK
MERRE

RBREHAR BHRKHRIERERH N
BDMRWT

2021 2020

B —5F —ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Within 3 months MEAA 18,945 28,502
3 to 6 months 3EA E6MEA 42 1,272
6 months to 1 year 68 B E14F 643 8,656
1 to 2 years 1526 1,525 3,497
More than 2 years HBiE2F 3,482 498
24,637 42,425
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S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22. B RUWFRIEREWRE R (&)
(CONTINUED)
The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are B RWHRIERERENESHNT
as follows:
2021 2020
—E—F ZETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBEF T
At beginning of year F4) (5,722) (2,347)
Impairment losses recognised (note 6)* ERBERE (H:6)* (3,387) (3,708)
Amount written off as uncollectible s 2 AW EIN & EE 3,991 -
Exchange difference FERERE 152 333
At end of year FR (4,966) (5,722)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using BEIMNEREBHARBEGHERET
the provision matrices to measure expected credit losses. The MEtEEHEERE BHEXTLEREME
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various ERBUENTRADEFHUGSERANS
customer segments with similar loss patterns by geographical BEEDEHANNABRBHET ZTER
region, customer type and rating. The calculation reflects the MEBENMEGER EBRERNKRSHHAT
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and BN ERMBESEE BRI R R RELHERK
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the NEANEGERAFER -

reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

The bills receivable were due within 3 or 6 months. The Group has FEWZERNIH6EENEIH AEBBERY)
closely monitored the credit qualities and the collectability of these IFZERREENEERE RoIBI k-
bills receivable and considers that expected credit risks arising WRAZERRNEENEREERBETES
from them are close to zero. To

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on TEREH A E B EE B ENE R

the Group’s accounts receivable using the provision matrices: ENEERREN .

* As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables of approximately * N _E_—F+_A=+—H B5EKH
RMB3,991,000 (2020:Nil) has been fully provided for loss B AR3,991,000t (CEZEF BB
allowance as individually impaired trade receivables, which is EAERRERNE 5 B IEE T RE
related to customer who is experiencing unexpected economic BEG LA EERIMNMOERENETRE
difficulties. The Group expects that the entire amounts of the R o AR B FEAA LR SR Bl FE W RN IE > T
receivables will have difficulty to be recovered and has been ERIE—FHEN-

written off in 2021.
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BHMEERRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021

22. BHRWRIEREWREE (&)

R-_F_—#+-RA=+—H

Past due
bl
Less than 3to 12 Over
Current 3 months months 1 year Total
MERE
BER DRS(ER 1288 #E—F fact
GROUP A B4
Expected credit loss rate BHEEHEEE 2.56% 11.90% 22.55% 93.76% 48.13%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) REAE ARETD 4,530 42 643 4918 10,133
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) RREEEE ARETT) 116 5 145 4,611 4,877
Past due
Less than 3to 12 Over
Current 3 months months 1 year Total
MERE
BE DR3fER 12/ BE—-F st
GROUP B 24
Expected credit loss rate RPREEREX 0.04% 0.07% 0.40% 93.26% 0.61%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) RERE ARETT) 14,415 - - 89 14,504
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEEEE ARETT) 6 - - 83 89
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(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

BHMBEER R

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

22. BHRWREREWRERE (&)

RIEZZEF+-_B=+—H

Past due
fks
Less than 3t012 Over
Current 3 months months 1 year Total
ERE

I Y SeiE)E 28R BE-F 5t

GROUP A B4
Expected credit loss rate BHEEHREE 3.01% 12.19% 19.77% 87.72% 21.11%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) RERE ARETT) 12,854 1272 8,722 3,837 26,685
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHREESEE ARETT) 387 155 1,724 3,367 5,633
Past due
prak:t
Less than 3to12 Over
Current 3 months months 1 year Total
MEEE
B8 DRSEAR 1288 BE—fF st
GROUP B 24
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEREE 0.04% 0.07% 0.40% 90.22% 0.57%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) RERE ARETT) 15,647 1 = 92 15,740
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEERRE ARETT) 6 = = 83 89

The Group categorised its customers with reference to their
geographical regions into the following groups:

° Group A: Geographical region in Hong Kong

° Group B: Geographical region in Mainland China

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying value of the trade receivables.

FEEKS2EERAMEMEBREDERNUT
BIE

o HM:FBME
C 24 RE A&

RBEEHRARZEXNEERRERE SR
FRIRRVERE A ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND LOAN RECEIVABLES

(@) Prepayments, deposits and other

23. TE(IRRIA R & R HEMEURRIA

KUK FEWE R (48)

(@) FEfITRIE R HE MR
15

receivables
2021 2020
—EF—F ISR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARHEFT
Prepayments to suppliers B E AN RN 672 1,515
Deposits and other receivables B R EMEWRIE 11,191 1,942
Prepaid expenses BX 177 169
Interest receivables FEURF] B 7,517 2,208
Value-added tax recoverable AU [ElIEE R 15,998 12,857
35,555 18,781

The above balances are unsecured and interest-free.
The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables
approximate to their fair values.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default
and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the end of the

reporting period is the carrying value of interest receivables,
deposits and other receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND LOAN RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Loan receivables

BHMBEER R

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

23. FA{ITRIA & R HAth FE IR IE
KUK B ER (&)

(b) FEWERR

2021 2020
—E-—& TECEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF AR¥TT
Loan receivables — current (a)-(e) FEWER—ENEA @—(e) 158,893 107,518
Loan receivables — non-current (f) W ERR—IEBNER () - 9,950
158,893 117,468
Impairment HE (484) (927)
158,409 116,541

(@ The Group entered into a one-year trust loan @ #®EBR_ZE_—FHEA+—HH

arrangement with a commercial bank on 11 May 2021,
pursuant to which a loan of RMB50,000,000 was lent to
an independent third party. The balance is unsecured,
bears an interest rate of 6% per annum and is repayable
on 10 May 2022.

The Group entered into a one-year trust loan
arrangement with a commercial bank on 8 July 2021,
pursuant to which a loan of RMB45,000,000 was lent to
an independent third party. The balance is unsecured,
bears an interest rate of 6% per annum and is repayable
on 15 July 2022.

The Group entered into a one-year trust loan
arrangement with a commercial bank on 11 May 2021,
pursuant to which a loan of RMB10,000,000 was lent to
an independent third party. The balance is unsecured,
bears an interest rate of 6% per annum and is repayable
on 10 May 2022.

The Group entered into a one-year loan arrangement
on 28 December 2020, pursuant to which a loan of
RMB27,773,000 was lent to an independent third party.
The balance is unsecured, bears an interest rate of 5%
per annum. During the year of 2021, the amount of
RMB16,613,000 of the loan has been recoverable, and
the remaining loan of RMB11,160,000 was subsequently
repayable on 4 Jan 2022.

—REERTIIL—FLZTERR
e It & %84 AR 150,000,000
TTHERMEEBHE —BBIUE=F *
ERABRIRE BEMNE6WER
BRIE__FRB+HERE

b)) H®EEBR_ZE_—FtA/N\HHEH—
BEERTIL LT8R ZH
It &5 A AR #45,000,0007tH
EREEH—RBILE = - &Sk
AEIEE BEMNERTERAR
BT "FtHRt+AREE-

) HAEEBR-_B-_—HFHRA+—AB0%
N—ERTERZH BIL £55
AR #10,000,000c N ER BB —
BBIUE = o ZAERABERR %
FEMRe%TERBNR _E__FH
At+HEER-

) H®EER_BE_ZFE+_A_+N
HEIII—FERTH BKIL > ©585
AR#E27,773,000cHI BB B4
—ZBIUE = o ZIE A EIRF
BEMESRFE - R_T-_—F %
B4 AR 116,613,000 cHERE W
B Mz FERARKE11,160,0007T
WErAER_S-__F—ANBEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE
31 December 2021 —_ZB_—F+_H=+—H

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. FE{IFRIE

RECEIVABLES AND LOAN RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Loan receivables (Continued)

(e)  The Group entered into several arrangements from 2020
to 2021, pursuant to which a supply chain financing loan
of RMB32,783,000 was lent to an independent third
party. The balance is secured, bears an interest rate of
12% per annum and is repayable before 30 Jun 2022.

() The Group entered into several arrangement in 2020,
pursuant to which a loan of RMB9,950,000 was lent to an
independent third party. The balance is secured, bears an
interest rate of 8% per annum and is repayable before 3
Jun 2022.

The movements in provision for impairment of loan
receivables are as follows:

BE Kk HthEURRIE

LUK FEUN B30 (48)

(b)

FEWE R (48)
e HEBBEB-_TZTEE-_T_—F

STUETZH B SEAARE
32,783,000 T HEERBEERE
BH— BB E = H o ZEGAE
IR IBEFE12% 5t B RARZE
—EARXB=1+HAEER-

AERR_E-Z2FIUATZH
BRI £ EE 4 A R 19,950,000t E
NEEBHR—RBIUFE = ZEHRA
IR MEFES%FTERBR
T _HFBE=-HAEE-

BWERREREFHEESNT :

2021 2020

& “ETE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#F ARETT
At beginning of year F4) (927) -
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) B RERE (f:6) 436 (951)
Exchange difference ERELR 7 24
At end of year ER (484) (927)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using three categories for loan receivables which reflect their
credit risk and how the expected credit loss provision is
determined. Management considered the credit risk on the
loan receivables has not increased significantly since initial
recognition. The Group measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to expected credit
losses within the next 12 months.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND LOAN RECEIVABLES

(c)

BHIREHRRIEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

23. TE(IRRIA R & R HEMBURRIA

KUK FEWE R (48)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Loan receivables (Continued) (b) FEWETR (&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk TR AEEERERFTEENEE
exposure on the Group’s loan receivables: REER
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEIEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET AREF T
Expected credit loss rate FEEEEREX 0.27% 0.81%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) IREAEE ARETT 158,893 117,468
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) FEHEEEE ARETT 436 951
Other non-current assets (c) EtIERBHEE
2021 2020
—E—F ZEIEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREF T
Prepayment for property, plant equipment and B E¥ ¥ BEKREUKREE
leasehold land (a) TN TEIE() 78,797 330
Long-term deposits receivable R ERZE 1,924 -
Others Hith 496 -
81,217 330
(@  As at 31 December 2021, the Group had prepaid the @ RIZBZT—F+ZA=+—H %%

consideration for purchase of certain property, plant,
equipment and leasehold land, but the land transfer
procedures and land certificate is in the process.

ERMNBEETYE BEARE
WRMEE LM A6 L EF
R LB E R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

24. CONTRACT ASSETS 24. EHNEE
2021 2020
—E—F ZETEFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥TT

Contract assets arising from: MUTRBEELENENEE .

Construction services (a) BERE () 4,179 10,258

Retention money receivables (b) FEU 1R B8 & (b) 15,404 23,625

19,583 33,883

Impairment A (927) (3,609)

18,656 30,274

(8  Unbilled revenue is initially recognised for revenue earned (a) REEWmIHIIMIBHERRFAIEER
from the provision of construction services as the receipt Wammil & sl RWERE AU
of consideration is conditional on successful completion of SHIRAEH RIS RERR
construction. Upon completion of construction and acceptance BNE BIAARHENRRZ
by the customer, the amounts recognised as unbilled revenue MO EEEIARR o
are reclassified to accounts receivable.

(o)  Retention money receivables are part of the consideration that b) ERFREEAHTARBERDTNEF
the customers retain and is payable on successful completion of FE 28R E LR REARE
the contracts in order to provide the customers with assurance BEBEEHNSARRHEREST:
that the Group will complete its obligation satisfactorily under the MIEME P IRMHEME -
contracts, rather than to provide financing to the customers.

The decrease in contract assets in 2021 and 2020 was result of CECEFERIECEEAHNEERD
the decrease in the unbilled revenue earned from the provision of Th R IR R RRFE T AN R ZE U
construction services. R o

The comparative figures in respect of the year ended 31 HE_S - EF+_-_HBA=+—HILEFE
December 2020 have been reclassified to conform with the ZIEREFEENDE UEAFE
current year ‘s presentation. 23 HFAREF—Re
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE
31 December 2021 —E - —%F+_HA=+—H

24. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 24, BB E (8B)

R+ZRA=+—HBaWMNEEZRRKREEE

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets

as at 31 December is as follows: ERFEmT
2021 2020
B —5F —ECF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEFT
Within one year —FR 18,974 30,877
After one year —F% 609 3,006
Total contract assets BHIEEMETE 19,583 33,883
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract EHNEENRESBBEESNT .
assets are as follows:
2021 2020
—E—F RS
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARFT
At beginning of year =) (3,609) (989)
Impairment reversals/(losses) (note 6) BB R (HI56) 2,616 (2,830)
Exchange difference PERERE 66 210
At end of year FR (927) (3,609)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses of the
contract assets are based on those of the trade receivables as
the contract assets and the trade receivables are from the same
customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets are based
on days past due of trade receivables for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns by geographical
region. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

REREHHRBEABEREETRED
Ut ERMEERE -FEaNEERBRE
ERRZERXDNENESBIRBZBE
o ARGHNEERESERWREAELRER
—ERER -SMNEEZEBBXRDERZM
BEDABEMUBEEANZER R 28
NEBZEUREARRBETE -ZtER
R MEAR ERFERNREEHH
TOAMBESM  BERTARR R ARREHE AR
MBANGERIEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

24. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 24. EHEE (B
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on TREHEHABEEEAELAEBGNEE
the Group’s contract assets using a provision matrix: EERBHNER !
2021 2020
—E—F ZEIEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARHEFIT
Expected credit loss rate TEHEEEBIEX 4.73% 10.65%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) FREAE (ARETT) 19,583 33,883
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) BHEEBE ARBTT 927 3,609
25. BILLS RECEIVABLE AT FAIR VALUE 25. IATESAHMEERANRE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE WEE
INCOME
2021 2020
—EF—F TEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEFTT
Bank acceptance bills at fair value LA EFEMRITARERE 3,773 16,363
Bills receivable that are held for collection of contractual cash flows BEUReORERENEESHEENRE
and for selling the financial assets are measured at FVOCI. Bills WEE BRAFEFAEMEZEABAGTE A
receivable held by the Group are usually collected at the maturity EEFAENEWERERE SN EHE WE DR
date or endorsed before the maturity date. EHBHAI S
The bills receivable were due within 3 or 6 months. Management FEUS 4R H8e6EE NEIH - SR B FaHE > I
expects that there is no significant credit risk associated with bills BEAEMBREBRZ2EXRGEERRE  FERA®K
receivables since they are held with large-size listed banks and the EHARARY EHRTAFE BAREELEY
credit risks arising from them are close to zero. EERBRTAZ-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

BHIREHRRIEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

26. BATEFABGNEMEE

2021 2020
BT —F _ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Asset management agreements, at fair value B ZE BB 0 1A TE
(note 41) (BHg5E41) 48,641 199,056

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, Yongsheng
Dyeing entered into certain asset management agreements with
the corresponding asset managers, pursuant to which Yongsheng
Dyeing agreed to participate in the asset management plans
operated by these asset managers and to deposit investments
to the designated accounts maintained by the asset managers.
The asset management plans mainly invest in inter-bank deposits,
bonds and equity investment. The financial assets at 31 December
2021 and 2020 were classified as held for trading and were, upon
initial recognition, classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

The details of the investments at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are
set out below:

RBEE_ZE_-—FK_ZT-_TF+°-A1
=t+—HLEFE kBEREAAEREEEE
ANFJUETEEEEHZ Bt kBRE
FAR2UEZEEEEEANEBEENEEEE
FoUmEEEEAMKRNEERAFEAR
B-HEEEFIETERENRITHAEEZT
BERREARE -ZREETMEEN _T - —
ERZBEZEFFT A=+ —HWIARFE
EE UNEARATEFABRENERE
7o

B —FER-_ZE_BF+"_F=+—H
REMFBEHIMT :

Investment Fair value at
Assets Manager Custodian amount  Agreement date year-end
REXRMN
BEEBEA FEA REE HEEH ATE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARH®FT AREBFT
2021
—E--&
Minsheng Wealth Investment Management Co., Ltd.  China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. 24218  24-Jun-20 5,522
REVMEREBRAERRA BEESRNERAT “EERAZ+TMAH
Shanghai Tiange Investment Management Co., Ltd.  HengTai Securities Co., Ltd 22,000  25-Feb-21 22,509
FERXBEEEERAT BRESRNERAT ——#ZAZ+EH
Shanghai Tiange Investment Management Co., Ltd.  HengTai Securities Co., Ltd 20,000  01-Feb-21 20,610
FERXBEEEERAT BRESRNERAT ——5ZA-H
48,641
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BHMEERRMEE

31 December 2021

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

Rt ] = e

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

26. BATEFAEGNEMEE

Investment Fair value at
Assets Manager Custodian amount  Agreement date year-end
REXRMN
BEBEA FEA RE®E H=EAS ATE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREFT
2020
ZECEE
Minsheng Wealth Investment Management Co., Ltd.  China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. 30,000  24-Jun-20 31,120
REMEREEEERAA BEESRMERAT “EFBZTMA
Liangke Investment Management Co., Ltd. China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. 30,000  14-Dec-20 32,213
SEREEE (IR BRAT BEESRNERAT “ZF+ZH+WmH
CITIC Securities Co., Ltd. CITIC Securities Co., Ltd. 20,000  04-Sep-20 20,223
REERSFRHERAH FEEFRHBRAR “ZEHAMH
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 15,000  24-Dec-20 15,000
RERERIT FEIRERT “ZF+ZAZ+MWA
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 50,000  25-Dec-20 50,000
PEIRXRIT HBIRERIT “ZFE+"AZ+EH
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 20,000  28-Dec-20 20,000
REREET FEIRZERT “ZF+ZRAZ+N\H
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 20,000  30-Dec-20 20,000
RERERIT FEIRERT “EFE+ZHA=1H
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 4,000  30-Dec-20 4,000
PEIRXRIT HBIRERIT “2F+°A=1+H
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 5500  31-Dec-20 5,500
REREET FEIRZERT “ZF+ZRA=1+—H
Agricultural Bank of China Agricultural Bank of China 1,000  31-Dec-20 1,000
RERERIT FEIRERT “ZF+ZA=1+—H
199,056
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27.

28.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BHIREHRRIEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

27. REKRREEZEY

2021 2020

—E_—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Cash and bank balances BB RIRTTAEER 86,551 88,870
Time deposits EHAEM = 848
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 86,551 89,718

At the end of the year, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB were RMB19,530,000 (2020:
RMB3,860,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates.

TRADE PAYABLES

RER AEBUAREHENRESRIRT
“EER A AR 19 530,00070 (ZEBE B4 1 A
R #3,860,0007T) - A\REAREERRTIRAR
& M o SAT o AR 3R AR PO L (91N BE B IR AR 51 )
BRGEE-EERMESERE)  ~EFEE
BRERERTRRARBEAEME K DIE
TONEZETS -

RITHESEREARTERNZ UL EF
REREFH] B -

28. EHETTRIA

2021 2020
—E—F TETEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKBTT ARBET T

Trade payables B BRI 99,954 123,913

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the year,

REXR EFERARERBEERBHANRE

based on the invoice date, is as follows: SFWF
2021 2020
—E-— “EIERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AER®BFIT
Within 6 months SEENR 95,552 117,388
6 months to 1 year 6EAE1F 196 5,804
1 to 2 years 1E26F 3,711 212
More than 2 years BB 495 509
99,954 123,913

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally

settled on 60-day terms.

BZRARMEBERTF R KR —RANRCORHAR

PG ©
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BHMEERRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

29. HthfE{FrRIE R fE 5Tk IE

2021 2020

B —F “EFTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥TT
Contract liabilities () HHIEE@) 1,323 549
Accrued payroll fEsTTE 8,994 7,643
Accruals fEST =B 1,486 2,575
Interest payable EF] B 572 409
Value-added and other taxes payable ETIEER R EMRIE 4,164 7,186

Payables for purchase of property, plantand ~ BEY1¥ -HMEEZEN

equipment ANENE 206 323
Rental received in advance SEleik 4,722 202
Others Hth 3,100 2,795
24,567 21,682

All the amounts of interest payable, value-added and other taxes
payable, payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment
and other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of three months.

FRERNFE BUEERKEMRE -BE
Y2~ R 55 Be 5% 1 B BB (YRR IE LU Bt FE (S

MIEA R ERTFHFHRRZ=EA -

(a)  Detalils of contract liabilities are as follows: @ BHNEENFEBUT
2021 2020
—EF—F TETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTT AR®ET T
Short-term advances received from SRS GNP SEENEE ]
customers
Processing T 59 31
RMAA Service RMAARR 7 1,264 518
Total contract liabilities SHBEEMREE 1,323 549
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver EHBEEEMTBHEINTARE RRMAAR

processing service and RMAA Service. The increase in contract
liabilities in 2021 and 2020 was mainly due to the increase in short-
term advances received from customers in relation to the provision
of construction services at the end of the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

BHMBEER R

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

30. FTEEMTIA

2021 2020
—E & _ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®¥TT ARBEF T
Return rate swap Y a4 A 654 1,981
654 1,981

In February 2021, the Company entered into an asset
management agreement (note 26) named Tiange Liangshi Quanyu
No.1 (“Tiange No.1”) and Tiange Hengrui No.7 (“Tiange No.7”),
and entered into a return swap agreement (“Swap Contract”)
with Wuxi Jizun Technology Co., Ltd., another investor of Tiange,
pursuant to which Wuxi Jizun would guarantee the Company with
a fixed annualised return rate at 6% of the contributions which
Tiange made during the investment period in return for the sharing
of more than proportionate interests in the accumulated available
proceeds of the “Tiange No.1” and “Tiange No.7”.

This Swap Contract was not designated for hedge purposes and
is measured at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of non-hedging return rate swap amounting to RMB654,000
(2020: RMB1,981,000) were charged to the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income during the year.

NS —FZRA AREFIEEER
%% (M3E26) (BDTiange Liangshi Quanyu
—3% (T Tiange—3%1) A& Tiange Hengruit 5%
(TTianget5%1)) > W EiTiangeM B — %K E
FEWuxi Jizun Technology Co., Ltd.5T 37 I &
BEHHE (MR E41) 2 R IE > Wuxi Jizuni&
BANEREEEFLHREE (AERKRER
FRTEFER6%) » LURELE AT Tiange— %1 &
lTianget $%1 89 R 5t ] A FR 1S 7R IB A LBl 4
WD EE

I ARG AW IE A E P E] L W IR A FEE
ABEFE FRAFH PR TR AT
BEEE ARIEK654,0000t (Z2ZZF A
R %1,981,000070) st ABRm R EMEEEA
*o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. FRIRITREMER

BORROWINGS
2021 2020
5% “ECEE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BRI (%) 5IfE AREFRT BIERIE(%) %A AREFT
Current bt
Lease liabilties (note 15) REBRE (F&15) 4.78% 31-Dec-22 539 4.75% 31-Dec-21 803
-2 —E
] +=A=+-H +ZB=1+-H
Bank loans - secured RITER-BHF 4.78% 12-May-22 15,000 4571% 13-May-21 15,000
ZE —_—f
‘ EA+=H il
Bank loans - secured RTED-BHE 4.78% 22-Jun-22 10,000 4.57% 28-Jun-21 10,000
-2 —E
] ~AZ+ZA ~NAZt+N\B
Bank loans - secured BOER-FEE 4.78% 30-Nov-22 15,000 4.79% 03-Dec-21 15,000
CE _—f
] +—-A=+H +ZA=H
Bank loans - secured RTED-BHE 2.70%-3.25% 08-Jun-22 4,118
Ik
] ~NANH
Bank loans - secured BOER-FEE 2.85%-3.40% 27-Jun-22 6,788
it
] ~NBZttA
Bank loans - secured RTED-BHE 6.60% 31-Jul-22 12,788
it
‘ tA=+-H
Bank loans - secured BOER-FEE 6.60% 31-Jan-22 5,500
bt
] —-A=+-AH
Current portion of long-term RERTEFNRBHS 4.25% 31-Dec-21 262 4.25% 31-Dec-21 259
bank loans - secured —~BHR ——f ==
+=A=+-H +-B=1+-H
69,995 41,062
Non-current FERE
Lease liabilties (note 15) HEBRE (FaH5) 4.75% 14-Mar-23 30 4.75% 2022 303
== ECCE
] =B+mA
Bank loans - secured RTER-BHR 4.25% 09-May-23 113 4.25% 09-May-23 386
Z=E ==
‘ 1ANR LANA
Bank loans - secured BOER-FEE 6.60% 31-Jul-25 39,600 6.60% 31-Jul-25 39,600
Zif “RE
o +A=+-H tA=+-A
Bank loans - secured RTER-BHR 6.60% 31-Jul-25 30,000 6.60% 31-Jul-25 30,000
ZhE ZhE
‘ tA=+-H tA=+-A
Bank loans - secured BOER-FEE 6.60% 2024-2025 58,022 6.60% 2024-2025 58,022
—EomE “ECmE
EZECRE FIRTRE
Bank loans - secured BOER-FEE 6.60% 2023-2024 39,426
5=
E_ECME
167,191 128,311
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s bank loans are secured by:

(iii)

)

mortgages over the Group’s buildings, which had an
aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
approximately RMB54,460,000 (2020: RMB21,646,000);

mortgages over the Group’s land use rights, which had
a net carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
approximately RMB3,894,000 (2020: RMB4,017,000);

mortgages over the Group’s properties under development
with a carrying amount of approximately is Nil (2020:
RMB223,025,000) to secure long-term loan facilities granted
to the Group by a bank;

mortgages over the Group’s completed properties
held for sale with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB225,630,000 (2020: Nil) to secure long-term loan
facilities granted to the Group by a bank;

mortgages over the Group’s investment properties
with a carrying value of RMB638,760,000 (2020:
RMB719,323,000) to secure long-term loan facilities granted
to the Group by a bank; and

mortgages over the Group’s construction in progress with
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB24,180,000
(2020: RMB26,055,000) to secure long-term loan facilities
granted to the Group by a bank.

BHMBEER R

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

5t ERITREMER ()

REMZIRTERA TS EREHER

(i)

(iv)

PIRERARIREALE AL AR 1854,460,0007T
TEZE D ARWE21,646,0007T) Z A
EEEF %8 ;

PR & AR ER R B 49 A R 153,894,0007T
(CZ=-ZF . ARME4,017,00070) 224 &
B T E R %18 ;

FEHENZE(Z2-_2F: AR
223,025,00070) Z N EEERPY)EZ1%8
BEFER LE—BRTHAERET R

EMBE ;

IREEAN AR 225,630,000 (Z2 =%
F ) 2AEREFFHENBEIMES
BT ER LE—BRTEAEERT
REIIERRE ;

EREE A R #638,760,0007t (ZEZEHF :
AR719,323,00070) 2 RNEEKEYE
RETER UE—BRTOAEERT
RIIERRE ; &

IREFEL AR24,180,0007T (ZE =
F 1 AR#26,055,0007T) 2 AEBMEET
BZRBETER LGE—RRTRAEAER
BYRIAETME-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

32. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 32. &R
2021 2020
—E—5F _ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREBF T
Government grants BNER 6,902 7,289
Less: Current portion B - BNERER (387) (387)
6,515 6,902
Movements in government grants are as follows: K EBEEMT !
2021 2020
s —5F —ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT
At the beginning of the year == 7,289 7,677
Amortised as income HiHAUWA (387) (388)
At the end of the year FR 6,902 7,289
The grants were related to the subsidies received from local ZEBEREAE TRIENHZIHERER
government authorities for the purpose of compensation for T %S A R W s ARIEW
expenditure on certain facilities and were credited to a deferred AREB -ZEEHNEHEERREREH
income account. The grants were released to profit or loss over the RRERm A o
expected useful lives of the relevant assets.
The Group also received certain financial subsidies from local REBT B EMBATI4RIERSS T BUEAR
government authorities to support local business. There were no UMEFEMEF ZEHNE L BAMK
unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies relating to these ERNEEREMNATE ZEBNER
government grants. These government grants were recognised in RIERFEEm PR -

profit or loss when received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

33. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 33. IRERIEEE &fE
Movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without BILFTEMEENREBRBES KA RIEHEE
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same —NBEEEEANNER) T
tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
The movements in deferred tax assets: FIERIBE ENE
Provision for
impairment
Unrealised  of trade and
Government fair value contract
grants Accruals  adjustment assets Tax losses Total
BRRkmE
K2R  REWEE
B &R EiFE  ATERE HERE HEE#E gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETRT  ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2020 “Z-%FE-F-H 1,150 1,948 - 554 1,888 5,540
Deferted tax credited/ EWK}EE HA/

(charged) to profit or loss during the year (k%) BVEIEIRIE (58) (770) = 1,160 331 663
Exchange dffferences EREE 5 5 5 (%4) . (%4)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RIZ $E+ A=+-H

rZ2--%-A-H 1,092 1,178 - 1620 2,219 6,109
Deferred tax credited/ EWK?Em uﬂ\/

(charged) to profit or loss during the year (40BR) FOIEILIRIE (58) 52 2,734 (607) 4414 6,535
Exchange differences EREE - - - (38) (37) (75)
At 31 December 2021 RZB--F+-B=+-H 1,034 1,230 2,734 975 6,596 12,569

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of RMB24,430,000
(2020: RMB8,655,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose.

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB18,391,000 (2020: RMB10,821,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
losses of RMB11,291,000 (2020: RMB10,600,000) as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making continuously and
it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

FEBREREELENREBEBEERARK
24,430,00070 (ZE - T F : AR 18,655,000
7o) AR ERAIRHEEFIB AR RKIE
R T o

AEEBRTEAMEENREBEGEE AR
18,391,000 (ZE_ZTF : AR
10,821,0007t) Fi &8 7 2k FE SR AR i ) i = i
R—ZEZRFEREm-e

BME AR ARK11,201,0000 (ZEZZ
£ AR%10,600,0007) BRIEILERBE
E RAZEHEBRLXERAEENRGERE
BB AR B3 AN KA RER ERR EF A
LR IHFR IR 18 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

33. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 33. REMEEE &E (@)
(CONTINUED)
The movements in deferred tax liabilities are as follows: FILRIBaENEEN T .
Temporary
difference

between Fair value
accounting  adjustments

basis and arising

Unrealised  Unrealised Coststo tax basis of from the

interest fair value obtain  investment acquisitionof  Withholding

income  adjustment contracts properties  subsidiaries tax Total
RENE S
REEEH i

FERHE RER  EDAAN RBEEZE WEATEL

BA  AFERE BE  WEREE WATESER bt #act

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTRT ARETR ARBTR ARBTfT ARETR ARETR ARBTR

At1 January 2020 HoB-BE-A-A (102) (104) - .02) (669 (15813) (18,908)
Deferred tax (charged)/ ERRER (08 /FA

credited to profit or loss WELIRIE

during the year 102 (132 - (399 857 (2,385) (1.951)
Withholding tax paid [SEnpEbiti = = - - - 4,785 4,785
Exchange differences ERER - - - - 6 - 6
At 31 December 2020 RZEZ2F+°A=+-H

and 1 January 2021 R-E--%5-F-8 - 03) - 419 - (13413) (16,08)
Deferred tax (charged)/ ERRER (08B /A

credited to profit or loss WELRE

during the year (18) 2% (124) 1,044 - (1,419) (081)
Withholding tax paid BAENR - - - - - 563 563
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—%+-B=+-H (18) - (124) (1,375) - (14,269) (15,786)
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33. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHIREHRRIEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

33. IRIEMIBEE, BB (@

(CONTINUED)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and ARAEENTR BETRERBEEERESERER
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial EHPBERRRTPIEHE UTAHEEBENIE
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of ERIBE R B IR E BN ED T -

the Group for financial reporting purposes:

2021 2020
—E—=F _ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARTFIT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the REHT R RRESR
consolidated statement of financial position BIRIEAR IE & E F 2B 6,179 1,597
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the REHTERRRESR
consolidated statement of financial position FRIEIRIE & & F 48 (9,396) (11,556)
SHARE CAPITAL 34. @4
Shares i1
2021 2020
—E—F _ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Issued and fully paid BETRERE
732,543,090 (2020: 731,557,090) 732,543,0000% (CE T F .
ordinary shares 731,557,090%) &A% 6,063 6,054
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HMBIRRME
31 December 2021 —_ZB_—F+_H=+—H

34. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
Shares (Continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as

34. g7 (48)
B&{n (48)

KABDREEHFERREZAT

follows:
Number of Share
shares Share premium
inissue capital account Total
BT
B E] Bx  RipEER Hast
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR®TR ARETR
At 1 January 2020 RIZEZZ2F—-F—H 749,655,890 6,217 886,872 893,089
Share options exercised (3) BiTHEERE@R) 1,701,200 15 2,910 2,925
Dividends paid to shareholders of the BEEVAGIEESNE
Company - - (29,609) (29,609
Shares repurchased and cancelled (b) BB R EMR D (b) (19,800,000) (178) (34,791) (34,969)
Transfer of share option reserve upon the REBRERR S EENERIE
forfeiture of share options (c) i ) - - 1,288 1,288
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 = c E-I— B=+—H
T —F—H—H 731,557,090 6,054 826,670 832,724
Share options exercised (a) Eh@ﬂ%ﬁﬂz&( @) 986,000 9 1,549 1,558
Dividends paid to shareholders of the AAREREZIRE
Company - - (18,206) (18,206)
At 31 December 2021 RZBE_—H+"R=+—H 732,543,090 6,063 810,013 816,076
(a)  The subscription rights attaching to 986,000(2020: (a) 986,000 (ZE-Z 4 :1,701,2001%)

1,701,200) share options were excised at the weighted
average subscription price of HK$1.159 (2020:
HK$1.213) per share (note 35) resulting from the issue
of 986,000 (2020: 1,701,200) ordinary shares for a total
cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
RMB957,000(2020: RMB1,844,000). An amount of
approximately RMB601,000 (2020: RMB1,081,000) was
transferred from the share option reserve to share premium
account upon the exercise of the share options.
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34.

35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
Shares (Continued)

(b)  In 2020, the Company repurchased 19,800,000 of its
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for a total consideration of HK$38,864,000,
which amounted to approximately RMB34,969,000.
The repurchased shares were cancelled during the year
and total amounts paid for the purchase of the shares
have been charged to share capital and share premium
of approximately RMB178,000 and RMB34,791,000
respectively.

(c) In 2020, the subscription rights attaching to 1,978,000
share options were forfeited (note 35). An amount of
approximately RMB1,288,000 was transferred from the
share option reserve to share premium account upon the
forfeiture of share options.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company'’s directors and other employees of the Group. The
Scheme became effective on 7 November 2013.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme is limited to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
on 27 November 2013, the day since which the Company’s shares
have been listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based
on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

34.

35.

SRR RMIEE
31 December2021 —ZE-—F+_-_HB=+—H

Az (48)
{7 (&)

by RZE_ZE > ARBUNERB
38,864,000B T (BHENARKE
34,969,0007T) REABMEXZRA
[RAS BRI E19,800,0008 H @R o
B 8 0] B2 {7 5% 45 P9 5 88 ok BB (B BR 1D
ENNESREEERARKHD RER
DRI ARE178,000c R AR #E
34,791,0007T °

() MIZ-Z 1,978,000 B& IR REBE Ft
BB LU (H5E35) - REHIA
E#51,288,0007T 1 B P& 1 47 08 Wa B

B2 1 O E M1 i AR
RBARRESTE
AATSE—EERR S (T3 8) > 5
EOHAEEEERNELERNAEES

HEREHKRB ALK ZTENEEKRDH
EERERARANEERFAEBEMES - Z
HER _E—=F+—BtH&EXN-

REBEZERFEERONRTERERER
SHE NETERBRBEEASNARINE
AIREEEITRONIION BLEEKRS A
ERBZFEERNBREMY FETH
KROERSHE FTOIBBRBERBRBN -E
—:E—I——)%_-I—‘tET_%%H’éﬁéi%Fﬁﬁ
RBAEHZANERATBEITRMN10%-

BRPFESHIETHAENEREBELSE
JEBITES S AHE LI Wﬂ?+_1lﬁ
B MR AR FERRABIIENT
%%%&fﬁﬁﬂ BANTEABREBRA AR

NEEREEDS ETRMGN0.1%HEE (IR
BAABRMUIBZBHEBENERSE) 88
5,000,000 BERRENRKREAG LEL
HEE o
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S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 35. BBt E (B

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 7 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and commences
after a vesting period of not shorter than 12 months and ends on
a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options.

The exercise price of share options is determined at the highest
of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (i) the
par value of shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

On 6 January 2015, 15,000,000 share options were granted to 39
employees with vesting dates falling from 2 April 2016 to 5 January
2025 and an exercise price of HK$1.48 per share. The expiration
date of the options granted falls within 10 years after the grant
date.

On 30 December 2015, 16,300,000 share options were granted
to 45 employees with vesting dates falling from 1 April 2017 to 30
December 2025 and an exercise price of HK$1.52 per share. The
expiration date of the options granted falls within 10 years after the
grant date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 35. BBt E (B

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme FRZAEEBEBTERTHEZBEBRENT
during the year:

2021 2020
—EC-F _ECE
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
IS M#EEH
IfEfE  BREHE B EREHE
HKD ’000 HKD '000
per share per share
SRAT T3 FRET Fin
At 1 January ®—B—H 1.186 14,924 1,503 18,603
Granted during the year FRRY -
Exercised during the year FRTTE 1.159* (986) 1.213" (1,701)
Forfeited during the year FRRI - - 1.125* (1,978)
At 31 December ®+ZB=1+—~H 1.158 13,938 1.186 14,924
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share FEREBTEBRENRTEHRZMEFER
options exercised during the year was HK$1.92 per share (2020: MEKRAESR1.02BT (CTETZTF 1 2.038
HK$2.03). In)0
* The adjusted exercise prices were in line with the dividend issues * KEETEETaESEMEZREE T

approved by the board of directors.
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S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2021

Number of options Exercise price*

Exercise period

Rzt R (8)

REREAR BRTEBRENITEERT
ERWT -

—E-—F

BRREHE TEE 171EHA
‘000 HKS$
per share
15 BT
2,569 1.095 2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025

B RFNBEHEE_RF—HAAH

1 Apr|| 2017 to 5 January 2025

—tFMNBE—HE_ZE_AF—HAAH

2 Apr|| 2017 to 30 December 2025

—tHFMNBE_HEZE_HF+_-_B=+H

1 Apr|| 2018 to 30 December 2025

—N\EFOB—HEZE_AF+_A=+H

2,569 1.095

4,384 1.195

4,416 1.195
13,938

2020

Number of options Exercise price*

Exercise period

2 April 2016 to 5 January 2025

—ERFNAZREZ_AF—FAH

1 Apnl 2017 to 5 January 2025

E—tFMNB—HEZE_RF—HAAH

2 April 2017 to 30 December 2025

_E—tFMBHEE_AF+A=1+H

1 April 2018 to 30 December 2025

E-N\FNBE-HEZE_AF+A=+H

EREHE TEE 1T1EHA

'000 HK$

per share

T4 FRAT

2,894 1.125
2,894 1.125
4,552 1.225
4,584 1.225

14,924

*

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or dividend issues, or other similar changes
in the Company’s share capital.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the share options granted were RMB8,556,000
for 15,000,000 share options granted on 6 January 2015
(RMBO0.57 each) and RMB10,669,000 for 16,300,000 share
options granted on 30 December 2015 (RMBO0.65 each). No share
option expenses were recognised during the year of 2021 (2020:
Nil).

Approximately 986,000 (2020: 1,701,000) share options were
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2021 resulting in
the issue of 986,000 (2020: 1,701,000) ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of approximately RMB9,000
(2020: RMB15,000), as further detailed in note 34 to the financial
statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 13,938,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 13,938,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of approximately RMB113,957 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 13,938,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme,
which represented approximately 1.90% of the Company’s shares
in issue as at that date.

35.

SRR RMIEE
31 December2021 —ZE-—F+_-_HB=+—H

RERRHESTE ()

ERHNERENAFER T —AF—
H/\E};&Eﬁwoooooof\ﬁﬁﬁﬂgi%)kﬁﬁf}%
8,556,0007t (B3 AR¥0.57T) R =&
—HFE+ZB=1+H#EHM16,300,00015 &8
BEEA AR %10,669,0007 (515 AR 0.65
7o) MR IEZ—FRMEERERERS
(ZE2EZZ2F |

AU R R ESAE— DS REEC
T —F+ A=+ —HLEFEETEDN
986,00014 (Z & == £ :1,701,00017) #& AR ##
H 5 2517986,0008 (ZZ2ZZ 4 1 1,701,000
fS) RATEBIR LAY AR, 0007T
(ZEZZF : AE™15,0007T) °

RESHR AR ZABETE
13,938,00014 B RITHEREARE - L BA AT
MBI AEE BEITENRTHENER
1 B] B B 8 9P 2% 1713,938,0008% 45 A 5 2B Sh
LA EBINRAH NE 113,957 78 (30BR
E1TRAZAN) ©

RHLEZEMBHRRA A28 EZ:TE
75 13,938,00017 M R{TEEEKRE  HER
EABRZBEZEITRINAI1.90%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021

36.

37.

Rt ] = e

RESERVES

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 12 to 13 of the financial
statements.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, certain
subsidiaries of the Group which are domestic enterprises are
required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the relevant PRC accounting standards, to their
respective statutory surplus reserves until the reserves reach 50%
of their respective registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions
set out in the Company Law of the PRC, part of the statutory
surplus reserve may be converted to increase share capital,
provided that the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations with a functional currency other than
RMB.

Other reserve represents (i) the gains/(losses) arising from
transactions with non-controlling interests, (i) the difference
between the fair value of capital contribution received from the
non-controlling interests and the proportionate of the carrying
amount of the net assets of the respective subsidiaries attributable
to owners of the company being deemed disposed of.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

36.

37.

E
FEBEEREEERBEFENSBERE
BHRYBRRE2EEE13ENA HER
BEHEL2F)o

BEBE(REARKMBERTE)  AEEET
MERABHRABEANEE BIRRER T E
ARHMBE S ERIFFEE D RHE10%M%FR
BENEHKBEATRBHRE BEEAMM
BEIHZBFEMELRNS0% EET (R
EARKEMBERBE) #IHETRGIER
B A E EEREE D] RE R LUIE MR A -
AREENEBNGETTONEMELRD
25%°

SINBEERREFEOERENEGESAREL
INEBMBBRREENIEEREZR -

HMEER) R PR Ea X ZEE 2 K/
(BB - (NBWCFERBRZRATEZ AR

FTEARKASCHEZEARATHEE ALLH

BEEWNBEARDEEFEREEZER

iR

RERER > REBNEARAENT !

2021 2020
—E=—F ZEIEFF

Contracted, but not provided for: BEETAEREE
Land and buildings THI R AT 9,853 1,641
Properties under development BRI - 8,553
Investment properties LB - 34,997
9,853 45,191
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31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 38. FAEA X5 R4EEH
BALANCES

(a) Name and relationship (a) #TBREAZ
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
RRES LB B85 [ A9 RA (R

Fuyang Jingshang Agriculture Development Company Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder

Limited
ESmEERRERERRAT FRPERG AR SR
Yongsheng (HK) International Co., Ltd. Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
K& (BB BEBRAT FRERR R B 1
Yongsheng Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
KEERMZERARAS FR TR AR B
Hangzhou Yongsheng High Polymer Fiber Co., Ltd. Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
MMKBSHERNDERAT FRPERG R SRR
Hangzhou Yongsheng Haeil Differential fabric Co., Ltd. Controlled by a close member of the Controlling Shareholder
TUNK BB —ZE R CEBESNBIRAE FR RS B B — S T AR 1
Hangzhou Zhixing New Material Technology Co., Ltd. A joint venture
NS BRI A RA S —fEEERE
Hangzhou Inya Water Co., Ltd. Controlled by a key management personnel of the Group
HUINEHE KT RAE] HAEE—SLFEERASES
Hangzhou Yongsheng Holding Co., Ltd. Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
TN K EIZER B RAT FRERR R B 1
Chang Po Chun Director of a subsidiary
REID —fERB AR ZES
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Yongsheng Foreign Trading Co., Ltd. Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
MM LKEHIEZHRAT FRPERG R SRR
Hangzhou Yibang Technology Co., Ltd. Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
MNEERRERAT FRERR R B 1
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S HMBIRRME

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_H=+—H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 38. EARZ REEEF (B
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Related party transactions (b) FAEFRS

PRIEZEM FHRFZEMBOPAIKRENRK S
FiEgRoh s REBEBEHBEESBEETUT

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the

following material transactions with related parties: BARS .
2021 2020
—E-—F —_EEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 52 ARBTT AREEF T
1) Purchases of goods 1) HEER [0}
— Fuyang Jingshang —ElRRHERRE
Agriculture FHERRAR
Development
Company Limited 28 54
— Hangzhou Yongsheng — N KBS SRS
High Ploymer Fiber BRERFE
Co., Ltd. - 1
28 55
2)  Agency service fees 2)  A—%EESWERE (i)
received from a related AR5 &
party
— Yongsheng Financial —KERERER
Holdings Co., Ltd. BRAE 276 456
— Yongsheng (HK) —K B (B8) B
International Co., Ltd. BRAE 387 -
663 456
3) Management feepaidtoa 3) M—%EESSM (iii
related party BRE
— Yongsheng (HK) —K % () R
International Co., Ltd. BIRAT 39 372
39 372
4)  Interest income 4 FEUWA
- Hangzhou Yongsheng — N KBS S A (iv)
High Polymer Fiber BIRBIRAE]
Co., Ltd. - 887
— Hangzhou Zhixing New — N E E AR (viii)
Material Technology BRAE
Co., Ltd. 148 -
148 887
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31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 38. FAESF X Z REEER (B)

BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(b) Related party transactions (Continued) (b) FAEFRZ (@
2021 2020
—E_—F TECEE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 52 ARETT ARHTT
5)  Rental expense 5 HMERZ v)
— Hangzhou Inya Water —HINEMAKBHRR
Co., Ltd. Gl 157 -
6) Rentalincome andother 6) FABUWAKREMER (vi)
charges
- Hangzhou Yongsheng — UMK B SRS
High Ploymer Fiber BRAF
Co., Ltd. = 213
- Hangzhou Yongsheng — N KRB —E
Haeil Differential 1CHHEBY)
fabric Co., Ltd. BIRAE 1,449 1,434
- Hangzhou Yongsheng — MK EEIERE
Holding Co., Ltd. RAE 440 =
— Hangzhou Xiaoshan — LN EE LU K BR S
Yongsheng Foreign BZ2ERAR
Trading Co., Ltd. 149 =
— Hangzhou Yibang — N ERE
Technology Co., Ltd. BEAT 22 _
2,060 1,647
7)  Processing service 7)) INIARF (vii)
—Hangzhou Yongsheng — N KBS B—ZRIME
Haeil Differential HEBYARAE
fabric Co., Ltd. - 456
8)  Lend to a Joint venture, 8) EXRMFEELEMRMNE
Hangzhou Zhixing New BRI AR AT
Material Technology Co.,
Ltd.
- Loan Lent —BREHEMR (viii) 10,001 -
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S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Related party transactions (Continued)
Notes:

0] The purchases of goods were made according to the
published prices and conditions similar to those offered to
the major customers of the suppliers.

(ii) The agency service fees received from related parties
were charged at prices similar to those offered to other
customers of the Group.

(iii) The management fee was paid for the management
and administrative services provided by Yongsheng (HK)
International Co. Ltd, a company which was controlled
by the Controlling Shareholder of the Group. The
management fee was charged pursuant to the terms
in the agreement signed between the Company and
Yongsheng (HK) International Co. Ltd.

vy  The Group entered into a contract with Hangzhou
Yongsheng High Polymer Fiber Co., Ltd. to lend
RMB40,000,000 at an annual interest rate of 6% and is
repayable on 31 May 2020. During the year ended 31
December 2020, Hangzhou Yongsheng High Polymer
Fiber Co., Ltd. has settled all principal and interest
incurred.

(V) The rental expense was paid to Hangzhou Inya Water
Co., Ltd., a company which was controlled by a key
management personnel of the Group. The rental expense
was charged pursuant to the terms in the agreement
signed between the Company and Hangzhou Inya Water
Co., Ltd.

(vi) Rental income and other charges mainly represented the
arrangements about that the Group charged its related
parties for rental transactions, water and electricity
expenses and other overhead costs according to the
actual costs incurred.

(vi)  The price of processing service was made according to
the published prices and conditions offered to the major
customers of the Group.

(vii)  The Group entered into a contract with Hangzhou

Zhixing New Material Technology Co., Ltd. to lend
RMB10,001,000 at an annual interest rate of 12%.

235  Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2021

38. FEA R 57 KGR (48)

(b) FAE

MIE -

U

(i)

(i

(iv)

(V)

(vii

(vii

KR 5 ()

wBERNREHRTHEBNIE
ZREENRAREBNIREET

) B 75 U ER B9 AR AR 75 B 2 B4R
HIAEBEMETANERBEE
W ER -

EEETLDHEAKE (BB BRER
AE (ARERERRRZERZAT)
PRtz EERITHRE - EEET)
RIEARRBEKE (B8 BEERA
BIER5] 2 & IR R U ER

75 5 B B AT N ok BR S 4 ME IR 1 B IR
NBTU— MM EHNUBHIARLE
40,000,00070 ZERZEMNEXS
6% BN _E_EFERR=+—
HEgZ RNBEE_Z_ZF+_A4
=+—HIEFEE MINKRS MR
DERADECEEFELASREE
EFRE o

HEMX BN FRMERKZE
RAB (—EHRAEER-—HTBEE
ABEHBNRE) - HERAXTHIRE
RRBEFNERAFARATR
EBY1H R IRRUER

HERAREMERTIEERER
BEERELENERRHERBER K
BHEXZE KEEREMEEE
FByZ k-

MIMBNEEHREBELAEETE
ZERBAFRBEERFTREMEAEEL

AEBERMNSEEHFHFR L ER
RBFTIU—HEHNUBTARE
10,001,0007c ZERZFFIES
12% o
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S HIFEHRRMEE
31 December 2021 —E - —%F+_HA=+—H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 38. FAESF X Z REEER (B)

BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) ERFERMIKREERLMEER
Maximum At Maximum
amount 31 December amount
At outstanding 2020 and outstanding At
31 December during 1 January during 1 January
2021 the year 2021 the year 2020
RIZZEE
+ZBA=+—H
RIEZ—5& FRARE R-EZ-F FREE RITIEE
Due from related parties FERRE A B +ZBA=+-H KEBESE —HB—H KEBEESE —B—H
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTT AREBTTT ARBTT ARETT
- Yongsheng (HK) International ~ —X 2 (&%) EI&
Co., Ltd. (i BRAF) 190 190 61 61 45
- Yongsheng Financial Holdings ~ —sk B & B AR AR A B)(i)
Co., Ltd. (i 23 25 25 114 114
—Hangzhou Yongsheng Haeil ~ — )ik & E—EH)
Differential Fabric Co., Ltd. EHEEMBERAS - 673 673 673 =
— Hangzhou Yongsheng High — MK RS ERD
Polymer Fiber Co., Ltd. () BRAE() - - - 40,200 40,200
— Chang Po Chun i) —REBi) - - - 2,900 2,900
— Hangzhou Zhixing New Material — & & #15 i
Technology Co., Ltd. (iv) BRRAF(V) 9,821 10,001 - - -
10,034 10,889 759 43,948 43,259
Maximum At Maximum
amount 31 December amount
At outstanding 2020 and outstanding At
31 December during 1 January during 1 January
2021 the year 2021 the year 2020
RZIEZEE
+ZB=+—-H
RIEZ—%F FARE R-EZ-F FREE RITIZE
Due to related parties I RERTRE +ZA=+—-H AEELH —A—H KEELH —A—H
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREBTT ARETT AREFT ARETTT
- Hangzhou Yongsheng Holding ~ —#uN K B2 B RAEIV)
Co., Ltd. (v 760 1,229 . - -
- Hangzhou Xiaoshan Yongsheng —#iNEE LK R EINE 57
Foreign Trading Co., Ltd. (v) BERATVY 258 417 = = =
~ Hangzhou Yibang Technology -z BRI ARAEWY)
Co., Ltd. (v) 38 63 = = =
- Hangzhou Yongsheng Haeil ik Bi5—2Z 3!
Differential Fabric Co., Ltd. EHEGMBRAS 45 45 = = =
1,101 1,754 - - -
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S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021

—=—_
= _

o S = -

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties
(Continued)

Notes:

M

(i)

(i)

()

The amounts due from Hangzhou Yongsheng High
Polymer Fiber Co., Ltd at 1 January 2020 are the
outstanding loans and interest at the end of the year.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, Hangzhou
Yongsheng High Polymer Fiber Co., Ltd. has settled all
the principal and interest incurred.

The amounts due from Yongsheng (HK) International
Co., Ltd and Yongsheng Financial Holdings Co., Ltd are
outstanding agency service fee.

The Group has written off all of the bad debts from Chang
Po Chun of HK$3,237,000 during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The amounts due from Hangzhou Zhixing New Material
Technology Co., Ltd. at the year ended 31 December
2021 are the outstanding loans and interest net with the
expected credit losses.

The amounts due to related parties at the year ended 31
December 2021 are the rent deposits and rental received
in advance.

(d) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

38. FEA R 57 KGR (48)

(c) HEREFBKREE

B E -

U

(i)

(i

()

n\:lgl: E? (I%E)

RIZEZZTFE—F—H BUYHIM X
BREMERNERATNNIEALE
EREBERRABE -REHEE -
TE+_A=Z+—HLEEE > MK
BRe#ERDERABDCHEENEA
rERBEEF B

FEWOK B (BF8) BB RAR Kok
TRMERBRATDRIESKREE
RIERFE -

REE_ZE-_ZF+_HA=+—H
EFE AEBECOMIHAREL B
BYPR A 12 8R3,237,0008 7T ©

BE_Z-_—F+-A=+—HL
FE BRFUNEEFRRRARR
BINRIERAREEER LI E (0%
RBEEER) -

WE-S-—F+-A=+—8L
FE ENRESRESESRER
GRS

d) =EBZTEERASZFHMN

2021 2020

—EZ—HF TETEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARMEFT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 7% ~ 285 R BYIEF] 3,034 2,442

Performance related bonus EABRETEAL 2,466 1,722

Pension scheme contributions BAREEEIMHR 320 231
Total compensation paid to key mEFEEEAEBENZ

management personnel #HM4azE 5,820 4,395
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

39. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 39. EEEH
At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s buildings, land use A ZE—F+ZA=+—HB K~EEET
rights, completed properties held for sale, investment properties BFE - THERAE - FEHENBB T Y
and construction in progress were pledged to commercial banks KREVMENETIEIREEMAERERN RS
relating to the long-term and short-term loans granted to the RIEHEMRBERTEERT -FBIEN
Group. Details are included in notes 13, 14, 15, 21 and 31, EHMBRRME13 14152131

respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 40. #FZERZISMERMIT A
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REEHR SBESHTENKREEDNT !

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2021 —EZ—F
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
Financial at fair value through other
assets at through profit  comprehensive
amortised cost or loss income Total
BATERA
R BATEA Hitr2ERA
FlRMERMEE BENERNEE HEREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AEBFT AERBFT U ARBTR

Financial assets at fair value through AT EF ABZNEHEE

profit or loss - 48,641 - 48,641
Trade and bills receivables BERITIER BN R 62,578 - - 62,578
Loan receivables ElER 158,409 - - 158,409
Bills receivable at fair value through B AFEF AEMEEBA

other comprehensive income ek ZE - - 3,773 3,773
Financial assets included in HABRARE BER

prepayments, deposits and HMEWFIBZ SRHEE

other receivables 18,708 - - 18,708
Amounts due from related parties  FEWRREE S B 10,034 - - 10,034
Deposits receivable included in e e

other non-current assets GrAHMIERHERE) 1,924 - - 1,924
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEEY 86,551 - - 86,551
At 31 December 2021 RZB_—H+"A=+—H 338,204 48,641 3,773 390,618

KM RAT 2021FH% 241



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

40. FHEFHBE TSI A (&)

CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities TRAaE
Financial
Financial liabilities
liabilities at fair value
at amortised through profit
cost or loss Total
R P A5 AR BATEHA
MEMERE BEENERaRE #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%F AR¥F AREFT
Trade payables B PRIE 99,954 - 99,954
Derivative financial instruments TEEMTA - 654 654
Financial liabilities included in other st AEAMEIRIER
payables and accruals EstRIEZ R8s 5,364 - 5,364
Amounts due to related parties FESREE A TIE 1,101 - 1,101
Interest-bearing bank and other SHEIRITREMBER
borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) realEEa®) 236,617 - 236,617
Lease liabilities HEESR& 569 - 569
Deposits payable fEg@E 2,292 - 2,292
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ—F
+-B=+—H 345,897 654 346,551
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S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 40. HERHEISHNERM T A (8@
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
2020 —E-SE
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
Financial at fair value through other
assets at through profit comprehensive
amortised cost or loss income Total
BATESTA
B A BATERA Htn2mEBA
FENEREE BaNeEE MEmEE 4t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000

ARETT ARBETT ARETT ARETT

Financial assets at fair value through B AFEFABGZHNEREE

profit or loss - 199,056 - 199,056
Trade and bills receivables BRREIEREKER 74,819 - - 74,819
Loan receivables URER 116,541 - - 116,541
Bills receivable at fair value through AT EFAEMZEKAN

other comprehensive income EWEE - - 16,363 16,363
Financial assets included in SABRMHE BER

prepayments, deposits and HittEWREZ $MEE

other receivables 4,240 - - 4,240
Amounts due from related parties  FEUREE HFIE 759 - - 759
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED 89,718 = = 89,718
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZEFE+"HA=+—H 286,077 199,056 16,363 501,496
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S HIFEHRRMEE
31 December 2021 —_ZB_—F+_H=+—H

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

40. FHEFHBE TSI A (&)

TRBRE

Financial liabilities

Financial assets

Financial at fair value
assets at through profit
amortised cost or loss Total
REER A BAEEFA
JRMNEMEE BaNEHEE 1Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREFT
Trade payables B ENRIE 123,913 - 123,913
Derivative financial instruments TEERmIA - 1,981 1,981
Financial liabilities included in other STAEMBEARIER
payables and accruals BBz SREaR 6,304 = 6,304
Interest-bearing bank and other FTEIRITRAMBR
borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) rEslEa® 168,267 - 168,267
Lease liabilities HESE 1,106 - 1,106
At 31 December 2020 R_ZE_EF+_F=+—H 299,590 1,981 301,571
Transfers of Financial Assets ERIEENEE

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety

At 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Endorsed Bills”) with
a carrying amount of RMB23,189,000 (2020: RMB14,510,000)
to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers (the “Endorsement”). In the opinion of the
directors, the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards,
which include default risks relating to such Endorsed Bills, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying amount
of the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables settled.
Subsequent to the Endorsement, the Group did not retain any
rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including the sale, transfer
or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties. As at 31
December 2021, no trade payables settled by the Endorsed Bills
during the year have been recourse by the suppliers.
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AE T —F+"HA=+—H AEERH
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14,510,0007t) > U BRNZEHERNE
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
Transfers of Financial Assets (Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety (Continued)

At the same time, the Group discounted certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Discounted Bills”) with
a carrying amount of RMB11,026,000 (2020: nil) to Ningbo Bank in
exchange for cash. After discounting, the Group has retained the
substantial risks and rewards, which include default risks relating to
such Discounted Bills, and accordingly, it continued to recognise
the full carrying amount of the Discounted Bills. Subsequent to
the Discounting, the Group did not retain any rights on the use of
the Discounted Bills, including the sale, transfer or pledge of the
Discounted Bills to any other third parties. As at December 31,
2021, during the year, the discounted bills were not recovered by
the discounted bank.

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety

At 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Derecognised Bills”)
to some of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers with a carrying amount in aggregate of
RMB12,033,000 (2020: RMB12,949,000). The Derecognised Bills
had a maturity of one to six months at the end of the reporting
period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right
of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating
to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full
carrying amount of the Derecognised Bills and the associated trade
payables.

At the same time, the Group discounted some of the
bills receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the
“Derecognised Bills”) to Ningbo Bank in exchange for cash, with
a carrying amount of RMB4,245,000 (2020: nil). In the opinion
of the directors, the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has
derecognised the full carrying amount of the Derecognised Bills.

BHIREHRRIEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

40. ZFHBTHIERIT A (&)

EHMEENEER (@
iR EAR L RBNEBREMEE ()

AR AEBARBRIRESAEKIRITR
HEREEAAR®E11,026,000c (ZE &
F ) WEEPREAMBITEMANE TR
Zik (TERIBER)) -RERE ztS%ET%
BREATDERKLER SEBEAZEERM
REENEORR  WItHEEE weﬁﬁiﬁ
EEMNEHREE NZAIRE NEBWE
REFEAEHRZEENTAER @FEE
MEME=Z FHE - EEZRERCHIRER.
RZZ2EZ—F+ZA=+—H BREBITRN
FRBEINEIEAIRER -

EEREAILEBRNEERTMEE

N _E _—F+_B=+—H ' &x&EEHH
HETHERSZEE TR AMBITE
,,WE’J%JFF%M& = E (TERIEBBERE]) »
MEFRNTZSHERBEREESEA A
R #12,033,000c (Z B2 T F : )\EW;‘
12,949,0007T) WE ZEM MBS
RO BRIEBIABZEMNEEHRS — i/\@
B REBE(hEAREMNBEZE L) HPEHN
IRITEL NERLBRIZENTEAEE
EEEEBRE (BESH) - EFRA X
%@Eﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁe%ﬂﬁw SR MAB KIS
B Rz E%R o AL HEAR LR E A& IR
%%&*a%ﬁ,\%%m HW 2 EPARE S EE o

HEER AEEARRBEEAE KRBT
REEMEEEA ARE4L,245,000c (ZEZZ
F ) NEEPERMIRITIEANE TR
ZiE (TBRIEHEBER) - EXE0A A5EH
CERERHEREEEIZHENEAI SRR
KElsRe At HEA LB EARIEEREE
& SPERE(E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021

40.

41.

Rt ] = e

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

Transfers of Financial Assets (Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety (Continued)

The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash
flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to their
carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are
not significant.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
did not recognise any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the
Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were recognised from the
Continuing Involvement, both during the years or cumulatively. The
endorsement has been made evenly throughout the years.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, trade payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in trade payables, other payables and
accruals, loan receivables, the current portion of interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, the current portion of amounts due
from related parties, derivative financial instruments, bills receivable
at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss approximate to their
carrying amounts as largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.

245  VYongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2021

40.

41.

BREHNBSNERIA (B

TREENEE (B

EZEAIEZNEERSREZE (8

FERAAFESHERILIEIRZERBELOZ
FERIEIZBORITBEREAEMEYH
NEsSBEERAR HENHEKEE EFR
HAEERFBESHERIERIRENAT
BEREK-

BE_F_—ER-_F_FF+A=t—
ALEFE AERTRERDEK ERBRR
PEEARNEARENER - NZEFE
AREAMS HREDRFESRNOBEIES
BoNBEFERSEFLES

THMIANAFERXTFERER

EEENE REBEEEEY BZRBIR
BEREREE - BIRMRIE st ABEMR
E-REREMERRENEREE St AE
ZRERMNRE - AMMEMRERETRENE
REE BWER st RIBTREMER RS
WO EWRREARERBO TESRT
B BAFESFAEME2ERANERERE
R ATEFABRENEREEN R TE
BREZREERE TEREAEZETIR
BEEIE®AE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The management considers that the fair value of the non-current
interest-free financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair
value approximates to their carrying amount as the impact of
discounting is not significant. The management also considers that
the fair value of the non-current interest-bearing financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value approximates to their carrying
amount.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the CFO (the “Chief Financial Officer”) and the
board of directors. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation
is reviewed and approved by the CFO.

The fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss require the directors to make estimates about the expected
future cash flows from future proceeds when the investments
mature and the fair values have been estimated to be the principal
plus estimated investment income. The directors believe that
the estimated fair values which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes in fair
values, which are recorded in profit or loss, are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.

Below is the significant unobservable input to the valuation of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss together with a

quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2020:

Significant

BHMBEER R

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

M. ERTENATFERAFERLR

(&)

EERSA ARMREBUERER WIFE
FEGAEZIFABIFEETREERER
ATERFEZREERS -EEEITTR
CRATEAEZIFRDFEEREER
B2 ATEARSEZIREEBERSE-

ELNSS

\

R BEEMBENFERAMBAEEETE
EMIANATEFENHRRERF - MH
REEERMBRE (HHEE) REFS
ER-NERSBH FHEHOMERMITA
BENZHIECEBREENTIZHAH
BozMERYBRERN RER-

BAFEFAEENEREENATEER
EENREINBAREGBEHAFTERSETEM
At R B WAL BRI MIEN AR
RIBEREFHRES - EFRBR st AGHE
BRREN G AT ERFABEZNERA
TEZSHBESE  TANKRSARREE
BEE-

TXRBATEAANBENEMEEGLET
NEATTBERBARE ERRN_2=F
FH+ZA=T—HBNEEHRED

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

DT EHEABROSRE

unobservable input Input

EATABRRBARE WA

Financial assets at fair value Estimated return rate 71%
through profit or loss

2% increase (decrease) in estimated
return rate would result in increase
(decrease) in fair value by RMB320,000

BAFES AT (EECIEES st EIERE EF (T 2% EHAF
TRBEE &g Cei-l) AR %320,00070

KM RAT 2021FH% 247
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31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE M. ERTAENAFERAFEELR
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL (#&)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy NEEBR
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TRMMPAEEESRTANAFTETEEBR:

of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value: BATEFENEE

As at 31 December 2021 HWZE-_—®+"-HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using
ATEHEER
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
fiEEm JERN FIHEN
DRHE EZBOARE EZBOARE
E—%) (EZH) (BE=H) fazt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETET

Bills receivable at fair value through other BATEFARMZERAN

comprehensive income EWELE - 3,773 = 3,773

Financial assets at fair value BATERHABRN
through profit or loss TRHEE 43,119 5,522 - 48,641
43,119 9,295 - 52,414
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020

BHMBEER R

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

M. ERTENATFERAFERLR

(&)

DTEELR (B

RoB-SE+-A=+—§

Fair value measurement using

ATEHBER
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HEEmS EEYN FIUREN
NERE EZHAEE SZHAYE
(E—H) (EZR) (E=ZR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEFTT AREBTT ARBTRT ARETR
Bills receivable at fair value through other BATEFARMZERAN
comprehensive income W =S - 16,363 = 16,363
Financial assets at fair value BATEFHABEN
through profit or loss ETHEE 32,213 135,723 31,120 199,056
32,213 152,086 31,120 215,419
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31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE M. ERTAENAFERAFEELR
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL (48)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RIERELR (B
Liabilities measured at fair value: BAFESENERE
As at 31 December 2021 R-E2-_—%+_"-HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using
ATEHEEA
Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

iR m RN FUBREN

NERE EZHRAZE EZRAYE
(E—14) (B=) (F=4) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETT AR%TR AR¥ETR AR%ETR

Derivative financial instruments fTE+MmIA - 654 - 654

As at 31 December 2020 RN_E_ZEFE+_H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AFEHBE
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EEEHS REN TUREN

NERE E2RAUE E2RAHUE
(C ) EZH) E=R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREBT  AREBTR AREBTR ARETR

Derivative financial instruments fTEERIA = 1,081 = 1,081
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and short-term deposits and Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities, such as trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables, which arise directly from
its operations.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management
oversees the management of these risks. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,
which are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 8% (2020: 6%)
of the Group’s sales were denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of the operating units making the sale,
whilst approximately nil (2020: nil) of costs were denominated in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

BHMBEER R

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

42, TRIEAMREIEBERBE

AEENTIESHTIREEEREREHER
Rt BRTKEMER ZETMTANE
EENAEELAERKEMAETS F&H
BEAZEHMNERMEENER REEM
ERELRNE 5 EUTRIE K H M FE IR IE
KB B RIERH A A RRIE

AEBAENERR FERER - ERARKR
NPETRB - FEENSREEEREEZ
EREBENEERN EFTRILAEERE
BIEZE ARAER W T St o

S L B

FEFAEHRZERR R ILFRRELE
BANHEINEEBEUIINEBETHENR
BEEL -AEEMFHERN8% (CTE-E
F16%) LETHENKEBMUNINEE
UMK E RSB BHNENT (CEERE !
) AU BT ERUIIMIE R E.
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S HIFEHRRMEE
31 December 2021 —_ZB_—F+_H=+—H

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities).

42, SREAMGEIEEEREBGEE (B8)

Shs mBE (48)

TRETRERSHRAEEMEERITTE

BBERT  AERERA N (HEBEEK

BENATEEHME BARBEXNGE
FIREE BN RIGRRIIE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in RMB rate before tax
ARMEER PR AT
EFH 7 (FER) o, G
RMB’000
AREF T
2021 B —F
If US$ weakens against RMB HETRAREEE 10% (385)
If US$ strengthens against RMB HETRAREHE (10%) 385
2020 .
If US$ weakens against RMB hi TRARKEE 10% (559)
If US$ strengthens against RMB HETRAREAE (10%) 559

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank and other borrowings (note 31). Management
monitors the interest rate exposures and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposures should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relates
to loan receivables and bank balances carried at prevailing market
rates. However, such exposure is minimal to the Group as these
loan receivables and bank balances are almost short-term in
nature.

The Group'’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on

the fluctuation of the interest rate as stipulated by the People’s
Bank of China arising from the Group’s RMB borrowings.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

42, EREAMGEIEEEREBEE (B8)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank and other
borrowings, which is prepared assuming the amount of liabilities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax through the impact on
floating rate borrowings.

Shs mBE (48)

UTHREDMTLRBEFBRITREMMEE
BIF K E BRI RE © 4R B UIL 0 17 By R AR I 4R
TR ZREEERTHEETE2ERDRKE

o

B

fi

TRETEEMEBERFETNENBERT
FEBGRAGENBEBIHNNXEENTE
HA RN AEFREEBRIERIL -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
basis points profit before tax

HEh FRFR alEF
‘i, G Bm,/ Gad)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFT ARETFTT
2021 —E—F
RMB AR 50 (1,083)
Hong Kong dollar BT 50 (3)
RMB AR (50) 1,083
Hong Kong dollar BT (50) 3
2020 ZEIEE
RMB AR 50 (660)
Hong Kong dollar BT 50 (5)
RMB AR (50) 660
Hong Kong dollar BT (50) 5
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31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42, TRHEGEIEHEREE (B)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group trades mainly with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis. For transactions that are not denominated in the functional
currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer
credit terms without the specific approval of senior management.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, loan receivables, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, bills receivable, other
receivables and amounts due from related parties, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amount of these instruments.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated
with loan receivables since the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debtor at the end of each reporting
period to ensure adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by analysis by customer/counterparty
and geographical region. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of the Group’s
trade receivables are widely dispersed in different regions.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables, loan receivables
and contract assets are disclosed in notes 22, 23(b) and 24,
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.
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S HMZERRMEE
31 December 2021 —ZE_-_—F+_-_B=+—H
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

42, EREAMGEIEEEREBEE (B8)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging B K B B bl O Rz B SR P BE P ER
THREVNENRAEEBEEREKITNEER
ZERBRAEERBHO (HEFEZEERNEFA
HER  BRIEFBBNHANENRA T E S
B ESEMENSERNH AR+ 2A
—t+—HBZFREBEDE -T2 EXE
AETHEENEREE

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

31 December 2021 —E_—F+ZHA=+—8
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 A TaH
ZE5HE 2PEREEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
b5l iz 73 $HR3 e by
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR#ETR
Trade and bills receivables™ B ERERERE S - - - 62,578 62,578
Contract assets” BHNEE - - - 18,656 18,656
Loan receivable FEWER 158,409 - - - 158,409
Bills receivable at fair value through other R AFEF AEMEE
comprehensive income AR EREE 3,773 - - - 3,773
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5t ATB{IFUE  EffELL
other receivables and other assets FERAMEEZ
SHEE
- Normal** —E&E™ 18,708 - - - 18,708
Amounts due from related parties FEW A FE 10,034 - - - 10,034
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY
— Not yet past due — e AR 86,551 - - - 86,551
277,475 - - 81,234 358,709
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31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(Continued)

31 December 2020

42, RIAMEEBFREE (B)

BRA BB O R F KRR ER (8)

—_EZHF+”"HA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12[ER B
ZEE1B 2HRHEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ugial FER2 FER3 [kl st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFT ARETT AREBTT AREBFT
Trade and bills receivables* B 7 eI IE e fE W i - - - 74,819 74,819
Contract assets” BHEE - - - 30,274 30,274
Loan receivable FEWER 116,541 - - - 116,541
Bills receivable at fair value through other AT @A AEMZE
comprehensive income WAREREE 16,363 - - - 16,363
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5t ATBATEIE  EHFEWFIE
other receivables and other assets REMEEZ SHMEE
~ Normal** —EE™ 4,240 - - - 4,240
Amounts due from related parties e BR R A RIB 759 = = = 759
Cash and cash equivalents ReERReEEY
— Not yet past due — e R 89,718 - - = 89,718
007,601 - - 105,003 332,714

For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group
applies the simplified approach for impairment, information
based on the provision matrix is disclosed in notes 22 and 24 to
the financial statements, respectively.

ke

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be
“doubtful”.
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BHIREHRRIEE

31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42. AR EREBEKRBER (B)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk WMENE & RS
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring AEEBUKEURHECRIATAERES
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its R -t TARNEESMITAKREH
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) BE WEZERWRIE) NEIHB > I 78R E
and projected cash flows from operations. BEENRERE
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity KERNEEERBFERETERTIEESW
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans. FEMEREEM ZBRF -
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at each REREHP ZEBZESORTENES
reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, PTHETREENIISEBROT
is as follows:
31 December 2021 —E-—F+=-H=+—H
On
demand
or within 1to5 Over 5
one year years years Total
BEKRS
—£R —EERE BRRE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT
Trade payables PN 99,954 - = 99,954
Amounts due to a related party FETRARE A B 673 428 = 1,101
Financial liabilities included in other payables 5t A L& 2B K
and accruals EAmENERERE 5,364 - - 5,364
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t 25817 R EME X
(excluding lease liabilties) FrEzHEam) 82,373 188,028 - 270,401
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmIA 654 - - 654
Deposits payable fEftize - 49 2,243 2,292
Lease liabilities HESE 579 36 - 615
189,597 188,541 2,243 380,381
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31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42, TRHEMREIEEEREE (B)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mBEERAE (B

31 December 2020

—E-sE+-A=+—8

On
demand or
with in 1t05 Over 5
one year years years Total
—FR —EERF BBhE st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Trade payables B EPHIE 123,913 - - 123,913
Financial liabilities included in other payables &t A EL (S B K
and accruals fE EJrTAIEEfJéﬁEhﬁﬁ 6,263 4 = 6,304
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t & %EHEZEW N
(excluding lease liabilties) FrasiEa® 50,290 156,936 = 207,226
Derivative financial instruments ?‘E%%EQIE 1,081 = = 1,081
Leas liabilities HEaR 945 363 - 1,308
183,392 157,340 - 340,732
Capital management BAERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order
to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

$%%§K%EE’JIEE¢@7‘%E’§@K%%
BEENENARFRRFRENEET D RIER
E’J%Z!Ktt% CUEFHEBEERERRER
mERAE

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments AEERBE&HERIHNESLEREHEENR
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk BRI EIREHEERRBILE Hjéﬁ Bodit

characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2021.

The Group regards total shareholders’ equity as its capital and
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt to total
shareholders’ equity. Total debt includes interest-bearing bank.
Total shareholders’ equity comprises all components of equity
attributable to shareholders of the company. The Group’s policy is
to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

2585  Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited Annual Report 2021

RARBEERER ~EBJEREIRY T
HX%E’\JHQU\ﬁﬁy%%&i&éﬁiiﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬁy%o
$$@ﬁ’EL—TEH%?§ﬁ’MDEﬁiéfﬁgﬁi°
BE “EERIF—F+ZRA=+—
Elu:fﬁf BEAEAHNER BRWEFILE
BEBE-

FEERKRREDE@BHEEATLERAES
BELEX REBEERURRE DB
B ERELA - BHEHRBEFSRGES
RERDBIECESABER ABGERD
FIERD AEENBRAREFARILER
HREREKTF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E - —%F+_HA=+—H

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 43.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BHRERERME

(@) Major non-cash transactions (@) FEFREXRS
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had
non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of RMB343,400 (2020: RMB1,479,000), and RMB343,400
(2020: RMB1,479,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for buildings.

REEZZE-_—F+A=+—HIEF
B AEEREFHETHIERSS
FARESERTEEENFERESREA
R#343,400 T (CE_TE : AR
1,479,0007T) & AR #343,400 7T (2 &
ZZ&F . AR¥1,479,0007T) ©

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) RMIBEEHELENEEED
financing activities

2021 T —F
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
RITEE HEaR’
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEFT
At 1 January 2021 R —&F—F—H 168,267 1,106
Changes from financing cash flows MERESREEEF) 68,365 (840)
New leases g E - 343
Foreign exchange movement & 81 (15) (40)
Interest expense MERZ - 7
Interest paid classified as DEAREHERE
operating cash flows ZBAHE = (71)
At 31 December 2021 RIB—F+"HB=+—H 236,617 569

KERFMARAS 20214k =29
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S HIFEHRRMEE
31 December 2021 —_ZB_—F+_H=+—H

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)

43. SHRTRERME (@)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) MEFHEENEGGRES (B
financing activities (Continued)
2020 —E-EF
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
IRITHEE HEEaE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT
At 1 January 2020 RZEZZF—H—H 95,549 646
Changes from financing cash flows MERESREEH 72,762 (956)
New leases IS = 1,479
Foreign exchange movement FE R &) (44) 63)
Interest expense MEMZ = 45
Interest paid classified as DERREREREY
operating cash flows BEFE - (45)
At 31 December 2020 R_E_TE+_/=+—~H 168,267 1,106

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

(c) HEEEMIREMHAERE

2021 2020

BT —5F _ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREBEFTT
Within operating activities A& EE P 422 217
Within financing activities ARE A 840 956
At 31 December W+-B=+—H 1,262 1,173

44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 44, JREHREIE

PERIOD

On 7 January 2022, Yongsheng Advanced Materials (HK) Limited
(“Yongsheng HK”), a wholly owned subsidiary entered into a loan
agreement with a third party, pursuant to which Yongsheng HK
provided a loan of HK$45,000,000 to this third party with a period
of one year, bearing an interest of 5%.
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31 December 2021 —&E " —F+_"_F=+—H

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  45. xR F BRI R
THE COMPANY

ERBNHREMRYBRRRNOERDT ¢

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥TT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IEMEEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBABTNKE 881,632 1,065,255
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERENE ELRZE 881,632 1,065,255
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables T FIBE 3G & &
HAthFE U RIS 177 169
Cash and cash equivalents BERIREEEY 16,269 2,014
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS MENEELRZE 16,446 2,183
CURRENT LIABILITIES V=K
Other payables, advances from customers and EMERTUIE BRE B
accruals K&t RIE 349 616
Due to subsidiaries AN NI 227,144 211,055
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEELEEE 227,493 211,671
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES MEIBEFEE (211,047) (209,488)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #&EERRHEES 670,585 855,767
NET ASSETS REE 670,585 855,767
EQUITY Em
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 7~ F] S B FE(L
OF THE COMPANY
Share capital [N 6,063 6,054
Share premium 1R iEE 810,013 826,670
Other reserves HinfEEs (145,491) 23,043
TOTAL EQUITY HEmAE%E 670,585 855,767
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S HIFEHRRMEE

31 December 2021 —E_—F+_"_H=+—H

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 45. Zx/A SR FEIR R R (48)
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KABVEENBEENT !
Foreign Equity-
currency settled
Share Share Accumulated  translation arrangement
capital premium losses* reserve* reserve*  Total equity

SMNERE  BEEH
ks RVEE  RBR R ZhER REAR
RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBO0O  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBO0D
AREBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%T:n

At 1 January 2020 R_2"EE—-F—H 6,217 886,872 (23,158) 17,378 11,840 899,149
Profit for the year EREA - - 19,720 - = 19,720
Other comprehensive loss for the year: EREMRESRSE - - - - - -
Exchange differences on translation of financial B BREANER 25

statements - - - (368) - (368)
Total comprehensive income for the year FENZRNALE - - 19,720 (368) - 19,352
Shares repurchased BEDRA (178) (34,791) = = = (34,969)
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company ~ BIRABREZAHRE - (29,609) - - - (29,609)
Exercise of share options TiErEmRE 15 2910 - - (1,081) 1,844
Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfeiture 7 BERRAE1R 3 IS

of share options BRERE - 1,288 - - (1,288) S
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RIEZ2F+°A=1—H

kZE_—F—-f— 6,054 826,670 (3,438) 17,010 9,471 855,767

Loss for the year FRER - - (167,717) - - (167,717)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FREMZEEE
Exchange differences on translation of financial B HHRANERZE

statements - - - (216) - (216)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEWALE - - (167,717) (216) - (167,933)
Shares repurchased BEERS - - - - - -
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company ~ AIRABREZ[TRE - (18,206) - - - (18,206)
Exercise of share options TfEramRE 9 1,549 - - (601) 957
Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfeiture T BERRAER 2 INES

of share options BRERERE - - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 RIS+ 2A=+-H 6063 810013 (71188 167%4 8810 607585
* These reserve accounts comprise the other reserves of * %2%1%(%&%\@?%215@@%%%%5;%%@E’\JH

RMB(145,491,000) (2020: RMB23,043,000) in the statement of ffet 5 A B #5(145,491,000)70 (= 2 = F
financial position of the Company. AR #23,043,0007T) ©
AY
46. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 46. It EMBFIRER

STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue MBEBRER_-_ZF-__F=-A=1+HES=S
by the board of directors on 30 March 2022. G HUE R IR TS -
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Five-year Financial Summary

I AT E

RESULTS HiE

For the year ended 31 December

HE+ZA=+—HLEFE

Adjusted
e
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E_-F “ZTZR Z-hF ZZ-N\F S of 2
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(Represent)
(&5
Revenue from continuing operations &% & £ & 270,503 361,936 306,539 206,420 647,811
Gross profit from continuing FHEREERERN
operations 66,671 112,373 102,454 89,987 180,159
Operating profit B (236,900) 90,359 69,615 73,071 121,563
Finance costs B (7,242) (1,785) (1,005) (297) (766)
Profit before tax PRAR A EF (244,142) 88,574 68,610 72,774 120,797
Income tax expense FriEMmS (2,181) (17,431) (17,597) (15,252) (22,347)
Profit from continuing operations  #E/T & ¥ EF (246,323) 71,143 51,013 57,522 98,450
Gain/(loss) for a discontinued BRI
operation Wit/ (518) - = 84,035 29,157 =
Profit for the year FRh) (246,323) 71,143 135,048 29,167 98,450
Attributable to: DUF R &R -
Shareholders of the Company ERTERER (245,307) 72,685 113,895 80,751 92,144
Non-controlling interests E[ei g (1,016) (1,542) 21,153 5,928 6,306
Earnings per share BREHN
Basic (RMB cents per share) BEX (BRARES) (33.5) 9.9 16.4 20.4 23.0
Diluted (RMB cents per share) BE (ERARES) (33.5) 98 16.2 199 227
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Five-year Financial Summary

L FEMBHRE
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
As at 31 December
®+-ZB=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E_—F “TCEE Z-hEF ZZ-N\F S of 2
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AEETR AREFT AREFT AREFT AREBFT
Non-current assets FRBEE 900,725 1,017,370 920,649 268,953 266,514
Current assets MEEE 653,861 764,628 740,712 532,173 534,436
Total assets BEE 1,554,586 1,781,998 1,661,361 801,126 800,950
Current liabilities nEaR (203,681) (204,997) (132,772) (179,716) (217,143)
Non-current liabilities ElFrEal=i (185,822) (146,769) (91,549 (21,496) (18,950)
Total liabilities RS 636,002 706,400 (224,321) (201,212) (236,093)
EQUITY s
Equity attrioutable to AABREEGER
shareholders of the Company 1,160,311 1,428,284 1,437,040 556,198 518,806
Non-controlling interests e R 4,772 1,948 - 43,716 46,051
Total equity i 1,165,083 1,430,232 1,437,040 509,914 564,857
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